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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5% Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
0pp Sion Chunabhattl Slgnal Sion (East), Mumbal - 400 022

NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Notice is hereby given that the 34™ Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED to be held on Friday, September 30, 2022
at 5:30 p.m. at the registered office of the Company situated at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5%
Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai-
400 022 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

2. To re-appoint M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the
Company and to fix their remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without
modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) and
pursuant to the recommendations of the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. Singhi
& Co., Chartered Accountants, having registration No. 302049E be and are hereby re-
appomted as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for term of five consecutive years,
who shall hold office from the conclusion of this 34™ Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 39" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027 on such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the
Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Appointment of Mr. Ravi Sharma (DIN: 09516462) as a Non-Executive Director

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to provisions
of Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ravi Sharma (DIN: 09516462), who was
appointed as an Additional Director with effect from February 24, 2022 in terms of
Section 161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”



4. Appointment of Ms. Sujata Rao (DIN: 03478837) as a Non-Executive Director
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to provisions
of Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Sujata Rao (DIN: 03478837), who was
appointed as an Additional Director with effect from February 24, 2022 in terms of
Section 161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

5. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modifications or amendments made thereof), the remuneration of Rs. 52,500/-
(Rupees Fifty Two Thousand Five Hundred only), payable to M/s V J Talati & Co., Cost
Accountants, bearing Firm Registration number R00213, who was appointed by the Board
of Directors of the Company as the Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost
accounting records maintained by the Company relating to “Construction Business™ for
Financial Year 2022-23 be and is hereby ratified and approved.”

FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
. Madlews
PALLAVI MATKARI J

DIRECTOR
DIN: 08054518

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 30, 2022
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e Members / Authorized Representatives are requested to fill in the Attendance Slip and submit
it at the venue of the AGM.

e The Explanatory Statement made pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed herewith.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

Mr. Ravi Sharma (DIN: 09516462) was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of
Director w.e.f. February 24, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the aforementioned Director holds
office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In terms of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules under the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), his
appointment is to be confirmed by the Members of the Company.

The Board considers that the continued association of Mr. Ravi Sharma would be of
immense benefit to the company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out
at Item No. 3 of the Notice relating to his appointment as a Director for approval by the
Members.

None of the Directors, except Mr. Ravi Sharma is concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No. 3 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution by
members.

Item No. 4

Ms. Sujata Rao (DIN: 03478837) was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of
Director w.e.f. February 24, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the aforementioned Directors holds
office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In terms of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules under the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), her
appointment is to be confirmed by the Members of the Company.

The Board considers that the continued association of Ms. Sujata Rao would be of immense
benefit to the company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out at Item
No. 4 of the Notice relating to her appointment as a Director for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors, except Ms. Sujata Rao is concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No. 4 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution by
members.



Item No. 5

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 at a remuneration of Rs. 52,500/-
(Rupees Piﬁ‘y Twwo Thousand Five Hundred nnl}r}

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
applicable Rules, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor needs to be ratified by the
Shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, approval of the members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out in the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor to conduct audit of the cost accounting records maintained by the Company
relating to “Construction Business™ for the Financial Year 2022-23. Relevant documents in
respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days during the office hours up to the date of the Meeting.

None of the Directors or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the
resolution set out in the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the shareholders.

FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Pullinsi_fetfnns
PALLAVI MATKARI

DIRECTOR
DIN: 08054518

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 30, 2022



FURTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL

STANDARD NO. 2 IS LISTED OUT HEREIN BELOW FOR ITEM NO. 3 & 4:

Retail Management

Particulars Mr. Ravi Sharma Ms. Sujata Rao
Age 46 Year 45 Years
Qualification Bachelors in Economics & MBA in | Master of Business

Administration (MBA) in the

following streams:

1. Marketing & Human
Resource

2. Project Management

appointment on the
Board.

Experience He spearheads the function across a | Sujata Rao, one of the core
portfolio of residential, commercial | pillars of Runwal. She brings
with 11 ongoing projects & about 25 | her expertise to the table as
Mn Sq.ft. under development across | the firm’s Vice President,
Mumbai, MMR, Pune. He has over | specializing in Sales and
25 years of multi-faceted experience | CRM. With 25 years of
in spearheading businesses of | experience, she knows how to
leading organizations in Real Estate, | untangle any Gordian knot in
Retail, FMCG, Telecom, IT | the smoothest way possible.
consistently delivering results in '
terms of high revenue growth,
operational performance, process
creation, execution, profitability
across solution sales, consultative
selling, brand amplification, &
business augmentation. He was
earlier associated with organizations
like RPG Group, Times of India
Group, Lodha Group.

Terms and | - .

Conditions of

Appointment

Remuneration Last | N.A. N.A.

Drawn (if any)

Remuneration N.A. N.A.

Proposed to be paid

Date of first | February 24, 2022 February 24, 2022

Shareholding in the
Company

Relationship ~ with
other Directors,
Managers and other
Key Managerial
Personnel.




Number of meetings
attended during the
year

Number of other

Directorship/
Chairmanship of
Committees of other
Board.




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MH1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5" Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,

FaY
Opp—Stomr-Chrmmablrattr-Sigmat-Stor-(East Mombar—466-622

Tel: +91-22-6113 3000, Fax: +91-22-2409 3749, Corporate(@runwal.com, www.runwal.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
34™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Register Folio No. / DP ID No.* / Client ID
No.*

Number of Shares held

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

[ certify that I am a registered Member for the registered Member of the Company. I hereby
record my presence at the 34" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5 Floor, Off. Eastern
Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Mumbai — 400022, on Friday, September 30,
2022, at 5:30 p.m. (IST).

Name of the Member Signature of Member

NOTE: Members holders are requested to bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting and
hand over the same at the entrance duly signed.
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Director’s Report FY 2021-22

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Mumbai

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 34" Annual Report of the Company together
with the audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is one of Mumbai’s premier real estate developers, operating in the
residential, commercial and organized retails verticals. We operate in the Luxury, Premium
and Large-Format Townships categories in residential development.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

2021-22

2020-21

2021-22

2020-21

Total Income

466,667.91

68,412.52

82,570.34

85,960.84

Total Expenditure

42,590.36

61.697.33

65,478.47

74,738.82

Profit / (Loss)
Before Taxation

4,077.55

6,715.19

17,091.87

11,222.02

Share of Profit / Loss
of Joint Venture /
Associate

(712.24)

1,542.99

Profit / Loss before
exceptional items
and tax from
continuing
operations

16,379.63

12,765.01

Less: Income Tax

(2,054.43)

(2,206)

(3,690.64)

(3,863.57)

Less: MAT Credit
reversal

(395.38)

(395.38)

Less: Tax related to
previous year

0.23

(0.46)

0.23

(0.46)

Less: Deferred Tax

(407.92)

377.24

(19,660.82)

1,039.45

Profit / (Loss) After
Taxation

1,615.43

4,490.59

(6,971.60)

9,545.05

Other
Comprehensive
Income

(i) Items that will
not be reclassified
to profit or loss

Remesurement of
actuarial gains and
losses

13.02

23.90

10.55

22.41

Net (loss)/gain on
FVTOCI equity
Securities / Share of
other comprehensive
income in associate

703.32

5.18

2.84




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Director’s Report FY 2021-22

and joint venture

(ii) Income tax (3.28) (183.04) (2.96) (5.64)
relating to items that

will not be

reclassified to profit

or loss

Total 1,625.17 5,034.77 (6,958.83) 9,564.66
Comprehensive

Income for the

period

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Standalone

During the year under review, the Standalone Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 1,625.17 Lakhs as
against Rs. 5,034.77 Lakhs in the previous year.

Consolidated

During the year under review, the Consolidated Loss After Tax stands at Rs. 6,958.83 Lakhs
as against Profit of Rs. 9,564.66/- in the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s Equity Share Capital position as on March 31, 2022 is as follows:-

Authorised Share Capital Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Share Capital
Share Capital ™, "of | Face Value] Amount No. of Face Amount
Shares (Rs.) (Rs.) Shares Value (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Equity 1,03,50,000 10 10,35,00,000] 6,36,829 10 63,68,290
Equity 55,000 100 55,00,000 - - -
Preference 6,55,000 10 65,50.000 | 6.49,000 10 64,90,000
(7%)
Preference 1,80,00,000 10 18,00,00,000 |1,73,83,200 10 [17,38,32,000
(0.01%)
Total 29,55,50,000 Total 18,66,90,290

The following sequence of transactions / events occurred post March 31, 2022:

Sr.
No.

Type of Meeting

Date of Meeting

Transactions Occurred

1 | Board Meeting

September 21, 2022 1.

Redemption of 6,49,000 7%
Redeemable Preference Shares on
September 26, 2022

. Redemption of 1,73,83,200 0.01%

Redeemable Preference Shares on
September 26, 2022

. Reclassification of 7% and 0.01%

Authorised Preference Share Capital
to Authorised Equity Share Capital

. Sub division of 55,000 Equity Shares
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of Rs. 100/- each to 5,50,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each
5. Alteration to Memorandum of

A L . o i
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nos. (3) and (4)

2 | Extra Ordinary | September 26, 2022 | 1. Reclassification of 7% and 0.01%
General Meeting Authorised Preference Share Capital
to Authorised Equity Share Capital
2. Sub division of 55,000 Equity Share
Capital of Rs. 100/- each to 5,50,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

3. Alteration to Memorandum of
Association giving effect to point
nos. (1) and (2)

3 | Board Meeting September 27, 2022 | 1. Split of 1 Equity Share having Face
Value of X10/- to 10 Equity Shares
having Face Value of Z1/- each

2. Alteration to Memorandum of
Association giving the above effect

4 | Extra Ordinary | September 27,2022 | 1. Split of 1 Equity Share having Face

General Meeting Value of X10/- to 10 Equity Shares
having Face Value of X1/- each

2. Alteration to Memorandum of
Association giving the above effect

5 | Board Meeting September 28, 2022 | Issue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 34:1

6 | Extra Ordinary | September 28, 2022 | Issue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 34:1
General Meeting

7 | Circular Resolution | September 29, 2022 Allotment of Bonus Shares

As on the date of this report, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is ¥29,55,50,000/-
divided into 29,55,50,000 Equity Shares of %1/- and Issued, Subscribed and Paid—up Equity
Share Capital is 322,28,90,150/- consisting of 22,28,90,150 equity shares of Z1/- each.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2022.

IMPACT OF COVID 19

During the year, the second and third wave of the COVID-19 pandemic accelerated across
the country. The second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on lives,
livelihoods, and business. The COVID-19 pandemic and measures implemented by the
authorities to contain it have created new challenges. The pandemic also presented primary
risks to the health of employees and their families while impacting business. Even as the
country scrambled to drive vaccination, various forms of restrictions were imposed initially,
and then continuous lockdowns were placed across cities and states by local authorities. It
ramped up Work from Home (“WFH”) to 50% of the workforce with selected team members
alone coming to the office. In these unprecedented times, economies are facing one crisis
after another. We had not yet recovered from the aftermath of COVID, and a consequential
crisis of high inflation hit us. The health and safety of its employees and stakeholders
remained the top priority for the Company, with several initiatives to support employees and
their families during the pandemic.
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DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend dividend on Equity shares for the financial year ended 31*

Pursuant to the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Runwal Realty Private Limited, Runwal
Projects Private Limited and Runwal Township Private Limited with Runwal Developers
Private Limited sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 4 July 2019, 6,49,000 7% Redeemable Preference shares of
Rs. 10 each were allotted by the Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies
on 30" November 2019. During the period under review, your Directors had paid the
dividend of Rs. 4,54,300/- to the Preference Shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme of merger of Runwal Builders Private Limited, Veear Property
Developers Private Limited, Runwal Properties Private Limited and Odeon Exhibitors Private
Limited with RDPL sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal of Mumbai
Bench vide its order dated on 17" June, 2020, 17,383,200 0.01% Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company were allotted to the Equity shareholders of Runwal
Builders Private Limited, Veear Property Developers Private Limited and Runwal Properties
Private Limited on 4™ November 2020. During the period under review, your Directors had
paid the dividend of Rs. 17,383.20/- to the Preference Shareholders.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Except as stated in this Report, there have been no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of your Company which have occurred between March 31,
2022 and the date of this Directors’ Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i.  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy- Not applicable

ii. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy - Not
Applicable

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment — Not Applicable.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption — Not Applicable

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution — Not applicable

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year
a) The details of technology imported- Not applicable
b) The year of import- Not applicable
¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed- Not applicable
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof- Not applicable

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development — Not applicable

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Number of Meeting of Board of Directors

During the financial year under review, 13 (Thirteen) meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Company were held, which were duly convened with the requisite quorum. The Meeting
of the Board of Directors were held on (i) April 26, 2021; (ii) May 18, 2021; (iii) June 28,
2021; (iv) July 28, 2021; (v) August 10, 2021; (vi) October 1, 2021; (vii) October 13, 2021;
(viii) November 30, 2021; (ix) December 24, 2021; (x) January 19, 2022; (xi) February 4,
2022; (xii) March 16, 2022 and (xiii) March 31, 2022

Number of Meeting of the Members of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR

Committee™)

As at March 31, 2022, the CSR Committee of the Company consists of three Members, Mr.
Mahesh Iyer, Ms. Pallavi Matkari and Ms. Sujata Rao. During the year under review, 3
(three) meeting of the members of CSR Committee were held on (i) June 28, 2021; (ii)
November 30, 2021 and (iii) March 16, 2022.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the following Directors as on March
31, 2022:

NAME DESIGNATION
Mr. Mahesh Iyer Director
Ms. Pallavi Matkari Director
Ms. Sujata Rao Additional Director
Mr. Ravi Sharma Additional Director

During the year under review, Mr. Ravi Sharma and Ms. Sujata Rao were appointed as
Additional, Non-Executive Directors of the Company effective February 24, 2022. Your
Board of Directors recommend for their appointment as a Regular Director in the upcoming
Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Sanjay Daga vide resignation letter dated February 28, 2022 (which was received by the
Company on March 15, 2022) and Mr. Kishorkumar Jain vide resignation letter dated
October 27, 2021 (which was received by the Company on the same day) resigned as
Directors of the Company.

The Company was not required to appoint Key Managerial Personnel pursuant to Companies

Act, 2013 as per the provisions of Section 203 read with Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under rule (5) sub rule (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the

COMpanics (ViaageIent and AdmIniSUaton) RUles, 2013 eXIact of annuar Teturm i rorm
MGT 9, forms part of this Board Report as Annexure L

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE & ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement
containing salient features of the Financial Statements, highlights of performance of
subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / Associates is attached as Annexure II to the Directors” Report
of the Company in Form AOC-1.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

During the Financial Year 2021-22, there were no significant and material orders passed by
the regulators or Courts or Tribunals which can adversely impact the going concern status of
the Company and its operations in future.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

During the year under review, the relevant provisions relating to the performance evaluation
under the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is of the opinion that there are no major risks affecting business of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its employees during the year
under review within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made there under.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Full particulars of investments, loans, guarantees and securities covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 provided during the financial year under review has been furnished
in the Notes to Accounts which forms part of the financials of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, and rules made thereunder, M/s. S.M.
Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 310015E) were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office from
the conclusion of the 29" AGM held on September 30, 2017 until the conclusion of 34™
AGM of the Company to be held in the financial year 2022. However, they tendered their
resignation vide their resignation letter dated January 31, 2022 resulting into a casual vacancy
in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by section 139(8) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Casual Vacancy caused by the resignation of auditors can only
be filled up by the Company in general meeting.
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The Board of Directors and Members of the Company at their meetings held on February 4,
2022 and February 14, 2022 respectively had appointed M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No.) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual
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Extraordinary General Meeng till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in the financial year 2022 at a remuneration as may be fixed by the
Board of Directors in consultation with the said Auditors.

It is proposed to appoint M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.),
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors for a period of 5 years commencing from the
conclusion of the 34" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 39" Annual General
Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 139 and 141 of the Act and relevant Rules prescribed there under, M/s.
Singhi & Co. have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as Auditors
of the Company and have given a confirmation to the effect that they are eligible to continue
with their appointment as Statutory Auditors.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and

do not call for any further comments. The report of the Statutory Auditor for FY 2021-22
does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

During the financial year 2021-22, as required under Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Statutory Auditors have evaluated and expressed an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on an audit. In their opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Pramod S Shah & Associates, a firm of Company
Secretaries in Practice, have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The
Report in the Form MR 3 of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure III. There has
been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial
Auditors in their Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Annual Report on CSR activities, in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time, is annexed herewith as Annexure IV.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board of Directors of your Company has established a vigil mechanism headed by
Mr. Ravi Sharma, Director of the Company to hear the grievances of the employees/ any
person in the company and take steps to resolve the issues amicably and report the same to
the Board of Directors of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE _UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Y our-COmMpany 1S CONMIITeT TOWarts Creating air T ta g a (TCattTy WOrk CITVITOTIITeIT

free from any type of harassment. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace.
There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal of
complaints related to sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY

The details of transactions/contracts/arrangements referred to in Section 188(1) of Companies
Act, 2013 entered by the Company with related party (ies) as defined under the provisions of
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year under review, are
furnished in Form AOC 2 and is attached as Annexure V and forms part of this Report.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the
name of the Company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of [.oans taken from
Banks and Financial Institutions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that:

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures
in adoption of these standards;

ii. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at March 31, 2022 and profit and loss of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for period ended March 31, 2022 on a
‘going concern’ basis.

v. the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors

Fm) L L e
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employees to the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Secretarial Standards as applicable to the Company were
duly complied.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to thank the Banks, Central and State
Government authorities, Employees etc. and all stakeholders for their continued cooperation
and support to the Company.

allavi Matkari /
Director Director
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 08054518

Place : Mumbai
Date : September 30, 2022



ANNEXURE I

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial yvear ended March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- U70100MH1988PTC046631

ii) Registration Date — March 22, 1988

iii) Name of the Company - RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the | Private Limited Company
Company

V) Address of the Registered Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5™ floor, Opp. Sion
office and contact details Chunabhatti Signal, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Sion

(East), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel. : 9122 -61133000
vi) Whether listed company Unlisted

vii) Name, Address and Contact -
details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

SL Name and Description of NIC Codc of the % to total turnover of
No. main products / services Product/ service the Company
1 Construction of residential complex 410 92.38

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. Name and Holding/ %
No | Address of the CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ of Shares
Company Associate Held

Applicable
Section

Avalor
Developers
Private Limited
Add:  Office
No. 2, 6% Floor, 2(87) of
1 | Runwal & | U70109MH2019PTC324563 Subsidiary 100 Companies
Omkar Act, 2013
Esquare,
Opposite Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal,




Sion East
Mumbai -
400022

Wheelabrator
Allov Castings

Ltd.

Add: Lal
Bahadur Shastri
Marg

Bhandup
(West)

Mumbai =
400078
Maharashtra

U99999MH1959PLC011472

Associate

34.26

Sec 2(6) of
Companies
Act, 2013

R Mall
Developers Pvt.
Ltd.

Add: R City
Mall, 3rd Floor,
Mall
Management
Office, 146,
LBS Marg,
Ghatkopar
West, Mumbai
—400 086.

U45201MH2006PTC163273

Joint Venture

49.75

Sec 2 (6) of
Companies
Act, 2013

R Retail
Ventures
Private Limited
Add: Office
No. 2, 6" Floor,
Runwal &
Omkar
Esquare,
Opposite Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal, Sion
East, Mumbai -
400022

U70200MH2018PTC313615

Joint Venture

50

Sec 2 (6)
of

Companies
Act, 2013

Dhruva
Woollen Mills
Private Limited
Add: Runwal
& Omkar
Esquare, 5™
floor, Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal, Off.
Eastern
Express
Highway, Sion
(East), Mumbai
—400 022

U17110MH1952PTC008960

Subsidiary

51

2(87) of
Companies
Act, 2013




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)
i) Category-wise ShareHolding :

S

%

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end | Change
Shareholders beginning of the year of the year during
the year

% of % of
total total

De | Physica share | De | Physic share
mat || Total |s mat | al Total |s

A.Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ 5,86.82
HUF - | 560,145 |560,145 | 87.96 - 9 5,86,829 | 92.15 -

b) Central - - - “ - - & = -
Govt

c) State Govt s 2 % - 5 - 3 T g
(s) -

d) Bodies - - - wil| = - - -
Corp. -

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

) Any - - - - - - - - -
Other....

Sub-total (A)
(1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - - - - - = - = = =
Individuals

b) Other — - z = % 5 . 5 g
Individuals -

¢) Bodies Corp. -

d) Banks / FI 3 : - 2 I ; 5 * 3

e) Any Other.... - - - . - - - _ =

Sub-total (A) - - - - - - . » -
(2):-

Total

shareholding of
Promoter (A) = 5,86,8
(A)(1)+(A)(?2) - | 560,145 |560,145 | 87.96 -129 5,86,829 | 92.15 -

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - R

b) Banks / FI 5 = : ol = - ; .




c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

1) [nsurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

222

222

0.03

ii) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital in

excess of Rs 1
lakh

11,279

11,279

.77

11,279

11,279

1.77

c) Others
(specify)

1)Others:HUF

26,462

26,462

4.16

11)Others: held by
Partnership firms

38,721

38,721

6.08

38,721

38,721

6.08

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

76684

76684

12.04

50000

50000

7.85

Total Public

Shareholding
(B)=B)(1)+

B)2)

76684

76684

12.04

50000

50000

7.85

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs




Grand Total
(A+B+C)

636829

636829

100

63682

636829

100




(ii) Shareholding of promoters

Sr. Sh Shareholding at the beginning e holdmlgl S
No. archolders Name ro-— the
Fear
%of %of Y
% of Shares % of | Shares | change
total | Pledged/ total | Pledged / in
No of | shares | encumbere No of share | encumber | share
Shares of d Shares s of ed holding
compa to total comp | to total during
ny shares any shares the
year
1. | Mr. Sandeep Runwal | 5,60,145 | 87.96 - 5,86,829 | 92.15 - 4.19
Total 5,60,145 | 87.96 - 5,86,829 | 92.15 - 4.19

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sr.
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Mr. Sandeep Runwal

At the
the year

beginning of

5,60,145

87.96

Date wise Increase Decrease in
Promoters Share holdingduring
the year
specifying reasons
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

the

Transfer of 26,684 Equity
Shares [rom Subhash Runwal
HUF, Sangeeta Lalwani and
Mr. Vikas Lalwani on
September 20, 2021 increasing
his shareholding from 87.96%
t0 92.15%

26,684

4.19

5,86.829

92.15

At the End of the year

5,86,829

92.15




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs):

e
=

No.

Shureholdingatthrebeginning——CumuirtiveSharelotdime————

of the year

during the year

Name

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

S.S. Runwal HUF

At the beginning of
the year

26,462

4.16

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

Transfer of 26,462 Equity
Shares to Mr. Sandeep
Runwal on September 20,
2021 diluting its
shareholding from 4.16% to
0%

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

Mrs. Priyanka Runwal

At  the
the year

beginning  of

11279

177

11279

1.77

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Share holdingduring the
year specifying the reasone
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year (or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

11279

1.77

11279

e

Mrs. Sangeeta Vikas Lalwani

At  the
the year

beginning  of

111

0.02

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons




for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

Transfer of 111 Equity

Shares to Mr. Sandeep
Runwal on September 20,
2021 diluting her
shareholding from 0.02% to
0%

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

Mr. Vikas Lalwani

At the beginning of
the year

111 0.02 111 0.02

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the
year

specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

Transfer of 111 Equity
Shares to Mr. Sandeep
Runwal on September 20,
2021 diluting his
shareholding from 0.02% to
0%

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

Jointly held by Dhruva Wool

len Mills Private Limited on behalf of Runwal Construction

At the beginning of
the year

10,722 1.68 10,722 1.68

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

10,722 1.68 10,722 1.68




Jointly held by Mr. Subhash Suganlal Runwal, Mrs. Chanda
Runwal, Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal and Mrs. San

Associates

Subhash Runwal, Mr. Sandeep Subhash
geeta Vikas Lalwani on behalf of Runwal &

At the

hegfnning of

the year

9069 1.42 9069

1.42

Date wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweal cquity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

9069 1.42 9069

1.42

Jointly held by Mrs. Chanda Subhash Runwal, Mr. Sandeep Subhash Runwa
Subhash Runwal on behalf of Anand Developers

1 and Mr. Subodh

At the
the year

beginning  of

9,465 1.49 9,465

1.49

Date wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share  holdingduring the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

9,465 1.49 9,465

1.49

Jointly held by Mr. Subhash S. Runwal (HUF), Mrs. Chanda Subhash Runwal
Lalwani on behalf of Sandeep Constructions

and Ms. Sangeeta

At the
the year

beginning  of

9,465 1.49 9,465

1.49

Datc  wise Increase /
Decrecase  in  Promoters
Share holding during the
year

specilying the reasons for
increase  /decrease  (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweal equity ete):

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

9,465 1.49 9,465

1.49




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
Yo-oftotat 0 O total
Nt No. of shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
] company company
1 [ Mr. Mahesh Iyer
At the beginning
of the year 0 - 0
Date wise Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specilving the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrcase (Transfer
of shares):
At the End of 0 0
the year




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
% of total % of total
Name No. of shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company

Mr. Sanjay Daga
2 | (upto March 15,

2022)
At the beginning
of the year 0 - 0 -
Date wise Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specifying the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease (Transfer
of shares):
At the Fnd of
V) V]
the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name shares shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company
3 Ms. Pallavi
' Matkari

At the beginning 0 0 0 0
of the year
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specifying  the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease
(e.g.allotment /
transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):




At the End of
the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name sha.res shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company
Mr. Kishorkumar
4 Jain
(upto October 27,
2021)
At the beginning
of the year 0 . 0
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specifying  the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease
(e.g.allotment /
transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the End of 0 0 0

the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name shs;res shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company
Mr. Ravi Sharma
S. (w.ef  February

24, 2022)

At the beginning
of the year




Date wise

Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding

during the year
specifying  the
reasons for
increase /
decrease

(e.g.allotment /
transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of
the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Name shiaities shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
company company

Ms. Sujata Rao

6. (w.e.f  February
24, 2022)
At the beginning
of the year 0 0 0
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specifying  the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease
(e.g.allotment /
transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the End of 0 0 0

the year




V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(INR in Lakhs)
Particular Se;:l;ﬁ:;i;ns Dnsesured Deposits Total
; Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
1) Principal Amount 34,057.01 3,829.95 - 37,886.96
1i) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 177.68 - 177.68
Total (i)+(ii)+(iii) 34,234.69 3,829.95 - 38,064.64
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
Addition 27,259.66 - - 27,259.66
Reduction 29.530.93 2,026.73 - 31,557.66

Net Change -2,271.27 2,026.73 - 58,817.32
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 31,792.85 1,803.22 - 33,596.07
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
ii1) Interest accrued but not due 170.57 - - 170.57
Total (i)+(ii)+(iii) 31,963.42 1,803.22 - 33,766.64

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total

Amount

Gross salary

Income-tax Act, 1961

(a) Salary as per provisions -
contained in section 17(1) of the

1 (b) Value of perquisites u/s

17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

Commission

4 - as % of profit

- others, specify...




Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act




B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sr. Particulars of Na f Direct  Total
No. | Remuneration e QL reeton Amount
Mr Mr. Mr. Ms.
. Kishork | Ravi Sujata
Snjay Mr. Ms. | umar Sharma | Rao
Daga | Mahesh | Pallavi Tain (w.e.f. (w.e.f.
&:;‘:_:; Iyer | Matkari (Upto February | February
15, 2022) gctgggi-) 24,2022) | 24,2022)
1. Independent
Directors
* Fee for -
attending board / ) ) -
commillee )
meetings
* Comumission
* Others. please
specify
Total (1) - - ) . .
2. Other Non-
Execultive
Directors
« Fee for
attending board /
commiliee - - - - - - -
meetings
* Cominission
* Others, please Rs. Rs. Rs.
specily 1,68,06, 19,04,57 1,87,11,
(Remuneration — 833/- 0/- 403/-
Gross)
5 Rs. Rs. Rs.
Fatsl () 168,06, | - . - 19,0457 - | 187,11,
833/- 0/- 403/-
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Total (B3)=(1+2) 1,68,06, - - - 19,04,57 - 18711,
_ 833/- 0/- 403/-
S ; Rs. Rs. Rs.
potal Managerial | ) 6g06, | . i - 0457 - |,
emunecration 833/ 0/- 403/-

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

SL Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
T10. Remuneration
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
1.
Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions - - - -
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
Tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option . - - .

3. | Sweat Equity | - - - -

4. | Commission
- as % of profit - - - -
- others, specify

5. | Others, please specify m % . .

Total - - _ - -




VIIL

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section of
the

Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty/Punishment/Compoun
ding fees imposed

Authorfity

CLT/
COURT)

Appeal

mslijtﬁ(’e,_ if
any (give
Dgtagls)

A. COMPA

NY

Penalty

Punishment

Compoundi

ng
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compoundi

ng
C. OTHER

OFFICERS 1

Penalty

N DEFAULT

Punishmen
t

Compound
ing

For and on behalf of the Board

Runwal Developers Private Li

@mi Mat

Director
DIN: 08054518

4

Date

lace

7. el

ri

: Mumbai
: September 30, 2022

Sujata Ra
Director

DIN: 03478837




Annexure IT
FORM NO. AOC.1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
rule S of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs in lakhs.)

SI. No.

1

2

Name of the subsidiary

Avalor Developers
Private Limited

Dhruva Woollen
Mills Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary

N.A.

N.A.

concerned, if different from the

holding company'sreporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate | N.A. N.A.

as on the last date of the relevant

financial year in the case of foreign

subsidiaries

Share capital 1.00 31.46
Reserves & surplus (10.76) 46,686.26
Total assets 0.37 85,388 98
1'otal Liabilities 10.13 38,671.26
Investments - 15,806.53
Turnover - 32,595.30
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (10.28) 10,440.77
Provision for taxation 0.08 2,634.96
Profit/(Loss) after taxation (10.36) 7,805.81
Proposed Dividend - -

% of shareholding 100% 51%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yetto commence operations — N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which hav;e been liquidated or sold during the year. — N.A.




Part "B"':

Associates and Joint Ventures

S tion 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
AssociateCompanies and Join

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures R Mall Developers | R Retail Venturess Wheelabrator
Private Limited Private Limited | Alloy Castings

Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures - -

heldby the company on the year end

No. 20,37,142 20,31,10,000 8,00,400

Amount of Investment in| 463.00 20,313.00 1,720.86

Associates/JointVenture

Extend of Holding % 49.75% 43.57% 34.26%

3. Description of how there i Joint Venture Joint Venture Associate

significantinfluence

4. Reason why the associate/joint| . - -

venture isnot consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to 10,557.61 (3,268.7) 3,204.8

Shareholding as per latest audited

Balance Sheet

6. Profit/ Loss for the year 2,877.99 (4,378.24) 1,086.23

i. Considered in Consolidation 1,431.80 (1,907.60) 372.14

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 1,446.19 (2,470.64) 714.09

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — N.A.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during

the year. — N.A.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is

to becertified.

For chalf of the Board

Sujat I‘ Pallav1 Matkari
Director Director
DIN:03478837 DIN: 08054518

Place: Mumbai
Date : September 30, 2022
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Practising Company Secretaries
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Tel. :91-22-2271 7700 » Email : saurabhshah@psaprofessionals.com » Website : cspsa.co.in

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5th Floor,

Off Eastern Exp Highway,

Opp Sion Chunabhatti Signal,

Sion (E) Mumbai- 400022

1

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliances of applicable statutory
provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by RUNWAL DEVELOPERS
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute hooks, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the year ended 315t March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper beard - processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 according to
the provisions of;

a. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

b. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
under; - Not Applicable during the period of Audit

c. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under; -
Not Applicable during the period of Audit
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2. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the
financial year under report:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; -

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

1
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Dellqtlng of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998

(i) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of (i) Secretarial Standards
(SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. '

During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘The Act’). Ms. Sujata Rao bearing DIN
03478837 and Mr. Ravi Sharma bearing DIN 09516462 were appointed as an Additional
Director on 24th February, 2022. The appointment of Mr. Mayesh lyer bearing DIN
01337787 who was appointed as an Additional Director on 015t March, 2021, has been
regularized in the Annual General Meeting held on 30t November, 2021. Further, Mr.
Kishorkumar Jain bearing DIN 02068334 resigned from his directorship of the company as
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on 27t October, 2021. Apart from this, there are no other changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors during the period under review.

The Statutory Registers are duly updated as per the relevant provisions.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings. A system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,

During the year, all the decisions in the Board Meetings were taken unanimously

We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its Officers and Reports of the
Statutory Auditor for the systems and mechanism framed by the Company for compliances
under other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, R\ulus,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observations:

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions
having a major bearing on the Company'’s affairs.

Place: Mumbai For Pramod S. Shah & Associales
Date: 30/09/2022 actising Company Secretaries)

Pramod S. Shah & Associates

Membership No.: 334 f7 S
C.0.P. No.: FCS3804

UDIN: FO00334D00094 1824
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CSR ANNEXURE: Part of Directors Report

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company is committed to improving the
quality of life of the underprivileged and
disadvantaged sections of the local community
as well as society at large. This policy has been
developed with an aim to lay down guidelines
for the Company to undertake, implement and
monitor various projects and programs that
ensures sustainable development of the
community within which it exists.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. Name of Designation/Nature Number of Number of Meetings of
No. Director of Directorship Meetings of | CSR committee attended
CSR during the year
Committee
held during the
year
1 | Mr. Mahesh lyer Member 3 3
2 | Ms. Pallavi Member 3 3
Matkari
3 | Ms. Sujata Rao Member 3 *
4 | Mr. Sanjay Daga Member 3 2

*Ms. Sujata Rao was inducted as a Member of CSR Committee by the Board of Directors vide Circular Resolution
dated March 10, 2022. After her appointment, one CSR meeting was held. Hence, she was not entitled to attend the
CSR Committee Meetings held on June 28, 2021 and November 30, 2021.

"Mr. Sanjay Daga resigned firom the Directorship w.e.f. March 13, 2022. Therefore, he ceased to be a member of CSR
Committee. During his tenure, two CSR meetings were held. Hence, he was not entitled to attend the CSR Committee
Meeting held on March 16, 2022,

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of

CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company.

Not Applicable

4. Provide the executive summary along with
web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8, if applicable.

Not Applicable

5. a) | Average net profit of the company as per
sub-section (5) of section 135.

%95,08,95,221.00/-

b) | Two percent of average net profit of the
company as per sub-section (5) of section

135.

%1,90,17,904.42/-

c¢) | Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.




aJ | ANMoUNt required 10 De Ser-OIf for the | -
financial year, if any.
e) | Total CSR obligation for the financial | ¥1,90,17,904.42/-
year [(b)*+(c)-(d)].
6.a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects (both | Z1,91,00,000/-
Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project).
b) | Amount spent in  Administrative | -
Overheads.
¢) | Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if | -
applicable.
d) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year | 1,91,00,000/-
[(@)+(b)*(c)].
e) | CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent  for the CSR Account as per sub-section (6) of under Schedule VII as per second proviso to

Financial Year.

section 135.

sub-section (5) of section 135.

(in Rs.) Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of
transfer
%1,91,00,000/- - - - - -
f) | Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SI. Particular Amount
No. (in Rs.)
(1) (2) (3)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub- | 21,90,17,904.42/-
section (5) of section 135
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year Z1,91,00,000/-
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 82,095.58
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities | -
of the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)- | 82,095.58
(iv)]
7. | Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SL. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Defici
No. Financial transferred to Amount Spent in transferre | remainingto be | e ncy,

Year(s) Unspent CSR in the dtoa spent in if any
Account under Unspent Financial Fund as succeeding
sub- section (6) CSR Year specified Financial Years
of Account (in Rs.) under (in Rs.)
section 135 (in under sub- Schedule
Rs.) section (6) VII as per
of second
section 135 (in proviso to
Rs.) sub-

section (5)




afcortion

135, if any

Amo | Dat

unt | eof

(in | Tra

Rs) | nsf
er

1 2020-21 - - - - - - -
2 [12019-20 - - - - - - -
3 [2018-19 - - - - - - -
8. | Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
O Yes No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired | |
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
SL Short particulars Pincode Date of creation | Amount of CSR Details of entity/
No. of the property or of the amount spent Authority/ beneficiary of
asset(s) property the registered owner
or
lincluding complete | 2sset(s) CSR | Name [ Reg
address and location Registr iste
of the property] ation red
number Ad
,if dre
applica ess
ble
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
N.A.
9. | Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per sub- section (5) of section 135.

ief Executive Officer or Managing (Chairman CS

[Person specified under clause
(d) of sub- section (1) of section
380]

Director or Director) Committee) (Wherever applicable)
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship -
2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -
3. | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -
4. | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or -
transaction including the value, if any
5. | Justification for entering into such contracts or -
arrangements or transactions’
6. | Date of approval by the Board -
7. | Amount paid as advances, if any -
8. | Date on which the special resolution was passed in -

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. Partlculars RPT-1 RP1-2 RP1-3

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Runwal Dhruva Woollen Mills [Horizon Projects
party &  nature  of | Constructions Private Limited Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or |sale, purchase orsale, purchase or

contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any jsupply of any goods orsupply of any goods

nsaction goods or materials; or materials;
materials;
Body corporate whoseBody corporate
Firm in which Board of Directors,whose Board of

partner to act
with

the

directions
instructions
director or manager

director, manager managing director orDirectors, managing
or his relative isa |manager is accustomeddirector or manager
in accordancelis accustomed to act
advicein accordance with

of

onthe advice,
adirections or
instructions of a
director or manager




3. | Duration of the FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Sale of Materials [Sale of Materials Sale of Materials
contracts or arrangements | Rs. 17.80 Lakhs [Rs. 3.55 Lakhs Rs. 65.54 Lakhs
or transaction including the
value, if any

5. | Date of approval by the 18/05/2021 28/06/2021 28/06/2021
Board 28/06/2021 19/01/2022 19/01/2022

28/07/2021 04/02/2022
10/08/2021 16/03/2022
01/10/2021
13/10/2021
30/11/2021
24/12/2021

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-4 RPT-5 RPT-6

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Histyle Retail Ariane Orgachem Horizon Projects
party &  nature of | Private Limited  [Private Limited Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or [sale, purchase orsale, purchase or
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any jsupply of any goods orjsupply of any goods|
nsaction goods or materials; or materials;

materials;

Body corporate whoseBody corporate|
Body corporate [Board of Directors,whose Board ofi
whose Board of managing director orDirectors, managing
Directors, manager is accustomeddirector or manager
managing director {to act in accordancejis accustomed to act]
or manager is with  the  advice|fin accordance with
accustomed to act |directions onthe advice,
in accordance with |instructions ~ of  adirections or]
the advice, |director or manager [instructions of aj
directions or director or manager
instructions of a
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Sale of Materials [Purchase of Materials [Purchase of
contracts or arrangements | Rs. 0.64 Lakhs Rs. 1.25 Lakhs Materials
or transaction including the Rs. 0.29 Lakhs
value, if any

5. | Date of approval by the 28/06/2021 31/03/2022 28/07/2021
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -

if any




Sr. Particulars RPT-7 RPT-8 RPT-9

INU.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Runwal Dhruva Woollen Mills (Chanda Runwal
party & nature of | Constructions Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | sale, purchase or [sale, purchase orsale, purchase or
contracts/arrangements/tra | supply of any [supply of any goods ofisupply of any goods
nsaction goods or materials; or materials:

materials;
Body corporate whoseBody corporate
Firm in which Board of Directorsfiwhose Board ofl
director, manager managing director orDijrectors, managing
or his relative is a manager is accustomed(director or manager
partner to act in accordancelis gecustomed to act
with  the  advice,in accordance with
directions Olithe advice,
instructions  of  adjrections on
director or manager finstructions of a
director or manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Purchase of [Purchase of Materials [Sale of Flats
contracts or arrangements | Materials Rs. 0.46 Lakhs/- Rs. 2,086.67 Lakhs
or transaction including the | Rs. 21.72 Lakhs
value, if any

5. | Date of approval by the 10/08/2021 31/03/2022 18/05/2021
Board 01/10/2021

30/11/2021
24/12/2021
16/03/2022
31/03/2022

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-10 RPT-11 RPT-12

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | R Mall R Mall Developers R Retail Ventures
party &  nature of | Developers Private Limited Private Limited
relationship Private Limited

2. | Nature of | availing or [availing or rendering oflavailing or

contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

rendering of any
services;

Body corporate
whose Board of
Directors,
managing

any services;

Body corporate whose
Board of Directors,
managing director or
manager is accustomed
to act in accordance
with  the  advice,

orin accordance with

rendering of any
services;

Body corporate
whose Board of
IDirectors, managing
director or manager
is accustomed to act

directions




director or
manager is

instructions  of
director or manager

dthe

advice,

directions or

accustomed to act
in accordance with

mstructions ot a
director or manager

the advice,
directions or
instructions of a
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Sale of Electricity [Business FacilityBusiness  Facility
contracts or arrangements | Rs. 342.79 Lakhs [Services Services
or transaction including the Rs. 70.80 Lakhs Rs. 360 Lakhs
value, if any

5. | Date of approval by the 01/10/2021 31/03/2022 28/06/2021
Board 31/03/2022 28/07/2021

13/10/2021
19/01/2022

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-13 RPT-14 RPT-15

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Dhruva Woollen |Rupri Consultancy Rupri Consultancy
party &  nature  of | Mills Private IPrivate Limited Private Limited
relationship Limited

2. | Nature of | availing or [availing or rendering oflavailing or
contracts/arrangements/tra | rendering of any jany services; rendering of anyj
nsaction services; services;

IBody corporate whose
Body corporate Board of Directors,Body corporate]
whose Board of managing director onwhose Board of
Directors, manager is accustomedDirectors, managing
managing director to act in accordancedirector or manager
or manager is with the advice,fis accustomed to act
accustomed to act [directions otjin accordance with
in accordance with [instructions ~ of  athe advice,
the advice, [director or manager  (directions or]
directions or instructions of a
instructions of a director or manager
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Advance against [Professional fees paidBrokerage Charges

contracts or arrangements
or transaction including the
value, if any

flat
Rs.
Lakhs

4.444.12

for availing
professional services
Rs. 59 Lakhs

paid
Rs. 74.91 Lakhs




5. | Date of approval by the 16/03/2022 31/03/2022 18/05/2022
Board 31/03/2022

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

Sr. Particulars RPT-16 RPT-17 RPT-18

No.

1. | Name (s) of the related | Histyle Retail [Horizon Projects R Retail Ventures
party &  nature of | Private Limited  |[Private Limited Private Limited
relationship

2. | Nature of | availing or fvailing or rendering ofavailing or]
contracts/arrangements/tra | rendering of any lany services; rendering of any
nsaction services; services;

Body corporate whose
Body corporate Board of Directors,Body corporate
whose Board of managing director ornwhose Board off
Directors, manager is accustomed|Directors, managing
managing director fto act in accordancedirector or manager
or manager is with the  advicelis accustomed to act
accustomed to act (directions orjin accordance with
in accordance with |instructions  of  athe advice,
the advice, director or manager (directions or]
directions or instructions of a
instructions of a director or manager
director or
manager

3. | Duration of the FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
contracts/arrangements/tra
nsaction

4. | Salient terms of the | Advance received [Security Deposit given|Security = Deposit]
contracts or arrangements | against material [Rs. 19,809.93 Lakhs ([received
or transaction including the | supply Rs. 882.50 Lakhs
value, if any Rs. 400 Lakhs

5. | Date of approval by the 26/04/2022 26/04/2022 26/04/2022
Board

6. | Amount paid as advances, - - -
if any

For and.gn behalf of the Board

Runwa

ers Private Limited

Suj&

Director
DIN: 03478837

Mumbai

September 30, 2022

 JJon

Pallavi Matkari
Director
DIN: 08054518
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Runwal Developers Private
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31 2022, the
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone
Cash Flow Statement and the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its standalone profit including other
comprehensive income, its standalone cash flows and the standalone changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, which is expected to be
made available to us at a later date.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
bther information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
owledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELHI CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALORE
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When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the standalone financial position, standalone financial performance
including other comprehensive income, standalone cash flows and standalone changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELHI CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALORE
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override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

ili. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. The comparative standalone Ind AS financial statement of the Company as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2021, were audited by the predecessor auditor, on which the auditor expressed
an unmodified opinion vide their audit report dated November 30, 2021. Accordingly, we do not
express any opinion on the figures reported in the standalone Ind AS financial statement for the
year ended March 31, 2021.

We draw attention to note 50 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, regarding share of
profit (net) from investment in partnership firm for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in
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the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the accounts of such partnership firm except for
complying with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (revised 2012) are
based on the IGAAP audited financial statement of such entities. These financial statements have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this entity, is based solely on the report of
the other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ii. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone financial statements as on March 31, 2022 and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to
this report;

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — refer note 39 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company in accordance to the provision of the Act, and rules made there under.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies) including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, either directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, either directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, we report that nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations as above contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Board of Directors have not proposed dividend for the year, accordingly, compliance to
section 123 of the Act to the extent, it applies to the declaration of dividend is not required.

iii. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act,
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on ‘Overall maximum managerial remuneration and
managerial remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits’ is not applicable as this being
a private Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No: 120761
UDIN: 22120761AX0ISB7169

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2022
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i.  Inrespect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the operations of the Company and no material discrepancies were noticed
during the verification.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name
of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use Assets) or intangible assets during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. a) The inventory, comprise of construction work-in-progress, finished goods and transferrable
development rights. Finished goods inventory has been physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures
and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No material discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregate from Banks / financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed with such Banks / financial
institutions during the year are in agreement with the books of account.
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ili. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not
given any security, however, it has given guarantee or made investments in or granted unsecured
loans and advances in the nature of loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and
other parties, in respect of which, our comments are as under:

a) the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year as in respect of which the requisite
information is as below.
Rs. In Lakhs
Advance in
nature of loans

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans

Aggregate amount during the year
-Subsidiaries - - 450.50 -
-Joint ventures 10,000.00 - 1,117.00 -
-Associates - - - -
-Others - - 2,925.23 34.24
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
-Subsidiaries - - 0.50 -
-Joint  ventures 27,000.00 - - -
(net of counter
guarantee
received)
-Associates - - - -
-Others - - 642.23 23.24

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant
of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
Interest free loans of Rs. 1400 lakhs (Nil as on 31 March 2022) have been given to related parties.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans and advances given in the nature of loan, the
principal is repayable on demand and payment of interest is payable at the time of repayment of
principal. As informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the loan during the
year. Thus, there has been no default on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent.
Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loan to employees of the company
during the year and these will be adjusted against future salaries of employees.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no overdue amount for more than ninety days in
respect of loans given. Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loan to
employees of the company during the year and these will be adjusted against future salaries of
employees.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.
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f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to the Promoters and related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) except for the following loans or advances:

Rs. in lakhs
All Promoter | Related Other
Parties Parties Parties Parties
Sec 2 (76)
of the Act
Aggregate of loans / advances of loan
- Repayable on demand (A) 1,850.50 - 1,850.50 -
-Agreement.does not specify any terms or 34.24 - - 34.24
period of Repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 1,884.74 - 1,850.50 34.24
Percentage of loans / advances in nature of | 41.63% 40.88% 0.76%
loan to the total loans

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and
186 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect of investments made and loans given
by the Company. The Company has given guarantee but has not given any security in connection
with a loan to others. Further, as the Company is engaged in the business of providing
infrastructural facilities, the provisions of section 186 [except for sub-section (1)] are not
applicable to it.

v. As per the information and explanation given and verification carried out by us, during the year,
the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amount which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) rules 2014 (as amended).

vi. The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however made
a detailed examination of the same.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us:

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing amounts deducted/accrued in the
books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues, including Goods & Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income
tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any
other material statutory dues, as applicable.
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b) No undisputed amount payable in respect of above referred act is outstanding as at 31st
March 2022, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) There are no dues of acts referred above which have not been deposited with the appropriate

authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:

Name of the | Nature of dues Period to | Forum where | Amount in
Statue which  the | dispute is pending dispute (In
amount Lakhs)
relates
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2010-11 Hon'ble High Court of 4,674.58
tax Act, 1961 Bombay
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2015-16 Hon'ble High Court of 780.61
tax Act, 1961 Bombay
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2009-10 Income Tax Appellate 1,922.97
tax Act, 1961 Tribunal
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2010-11 Income Tax Appellate 5,412.04
tax Act, 1961 Tribunal
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2012-13 Income Tax Appellate 2,242.06
tax Act, 1961 Tribunal
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2012-13 Commissioner of 144.44
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2016-17 Commissioner of 162.65
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2017-18 Commissioner of 13.83
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2017-18 Commissioner of 33.34
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 168.02
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 222,51
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
The Income- | Income Tax AY 2020-21 Commissioner of 3,746.44
tax Act, 1961 Income-tax (Appeals)
Chapter V of | Service Tax 2014-15 Joint Commissioner, 12.71
the  Finance CGST & CX
Act, 1994
Chapter V of | Service Tax 2014-15 Joint Commissioner, 96.86
the  Finance CGST & CX
Act, 1994
Chapter V of | Service Tax October Directorate General 192.50
the  Finance 2015 to | of Goods and Service
Act, 1994 September Tax Intelligence,
2016 Zonal Unit
Chapter V of | Service Tax October Directorate General 166.70
the  Finance 2015 to | of Goods and Service
Act, 1994 January 2017
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Tax Intelligence,
Zonal Unit
The Transitional Credit | July 2017 to | Dy. Comm. of State 31.16
Maharashtra —SGST March 2018 | Tax (E-643), Large
Goods and Taxpayer's Unit
Service Tax
Act, 2017
The Transitional Credit | April 2017 to | Joint Commissioner 29.21
Maharashtra - SGST June 2017
Goods and
Service Tax
Act, 2017
The Transitional Credit | April 2017 to | Assistant 106.73
Maharashtra —SGST June 2017 Commissioner of
Goods and State Tax
Service Tax
Act, 2017
The Non-Payment  of | August 2017 | Dy. Commissioner of 193
Maharashtra Interest to November | State Tax
Goods and 2017
Service Tax
Act, 2017
The M-VAT 2015-16 Joint Commissioner 26.86
Maharashtra of State Tax
Value Added
Tax Act, 2002

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

ix. a)According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or other lender.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion term loans availed by the Company were applied
during the year for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds
were raised on short-term basis. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(ix)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, and procedures performed by us, the
Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

x. a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not raised funds through
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partly or optionally) convertible
debentures. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(x) (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xi. a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and to the best of our
knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
and hence requirement to report under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the
Act, where applicable. This being a private Company, section 177 is not applicable to it. Further,
the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures.

xiv. a) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

\ b) We have taken into considération, the internal audit reports for the period under audit issued
] "':,'_ to the Company till date for determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.
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xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not incurred the cash losses in the current
financial year and in immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been a resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. No issues, objections or
concerns were raised by the outgoing auditor.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(also refer note 43 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, undrawn bank facilities
available, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no ongoing project as required for discharging the liability
of the Company towards Corporate Social Responsibility. Accordingly, the requirement to report
under paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xxi. The reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order
has been included in this report.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No: 120761
UDIN: 22120761AX0ISB7169

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2022
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
standalone financial statements of Runwal Developers Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31* March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ur audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELHI CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALORE
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Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial Statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No: 120761
UDIN: 22120761AX0ISB7169

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2022

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELH]I CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALORE
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Balznce Sheet as at 315t March, 2022
€IN NO- U70100MHI988PTCOA6631
(AN amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) |
eul N As at As at

Particulars ote 31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Assets
Non-cutrent assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 748733 7.867.95

Right-of-use asset 4 107.60 -

Invastment property 5 4,473.42 4,547,965

Intangible asset 6 444 9.85

Financial assets

i} Investmants 7 42,735.30 28,112.01

i) Loans 8 - 1,777.25

iii] Other financial assats 9 945.40 422.58
Mon current tax assets (net) - -
Qther non-current assets 10 18.32 296.68

5577241 44,034.28
Currant assets
Inventories 11 90,907.25 94,712.15
Financial assets
i} thvestments 12 9,954.28 -
ii} Trade receivables i3 1,132.81 73897
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,508.73 8,513.55
] Bank balance other than [iii) above 15 511.32 111.40
v} Loans 16 1,454.03 10,128.43
vi} Other financial assets 17 £,886.26 1,805.71
Other current assets 18 5,148.55 3,094 .63
1,18,503.23 1,19,104.84
Total Assets 1,74,275.64 1,63,139.12
Equity and liabifities
Enuity
Equity Share capital 19 63.68 63.68
Other equity 20 74,459.13 72,833.96
Total Equity 74,522.81 72,897.64
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitias *

i) Borrowings 21 28,342.09 26,268.49
Provisions 22 97.8% 133.67
Deferred tax liability {nat) 23 1,507.90 1,096.70

29,947 B8 27,493.85
Current liabilities
Financial lizbilities
i} Borrowings 24 9,379.50 10,587.18
ii] Trade payables 25
{a} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafl 101.74 373.07
anterprises
(b} total putstanding dues of ottrer than micro enterprises and small 4,883.05 4,540.06
enterprises
iii) Other financlal hiabilities 26 6,177.73 17,024.82
Other current Habilities 27 43,517.02 28,%00.39
Provisions 28 31.61 12.49
Current tax liabilities (net) 1,714.30 1,304.01
69,804.95 . 62,742 62
Total equity and liabilities 1,74,275.64 £,63,135.12
_ﬂgniﬁcant accounting palicies 2
The accoempanying notes are 2n integral part of the Standak il ial 1
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. For Runwal Developers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No 302049E
o
——"
Amit Hundia J Paliavi Matkarl
Partner Dirgctor \w; Director
Membership No. 120761 DIN: 034738837 DIN : 08054518
Date - 30-09-2022 Date - 30-09-2022
Place - Mumbai Place - Mumbai




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022
CIN NO- U70100MH1983PTCO46631
{Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
learticutars Nate For the year ended For the year ended
315t Maich, 2022 3ist March, 2021
Hlncome
Revenue from operations 29 43,111.31 63,390.47
Other Income 30 3,556.60 5,022.05
Total Income 456,667.91 68.412.52
HExpenses
Cost of construction and development expenses 31 28,921.56 13,787.10
Changes in inventories of finished goods and 33 3,804.90 44,108.17
censtruction work-in-progress
Employee benefits expenses 33 904.33 488.64
Finance costs 34 2,205.07 1,392.08
Depreciation and amortisation expensas 35 52081 517 .60
Other expenses 36 2,939.53 1,403.74
Reversal of fair value gain on Invastment in Subsidiary 7 3,294.16 -
Total Expenses ’ 42,590.36 61,697.33
cofit before tax 4,077.55 6,715.19
Tax {expenses)fcredit
Current tax {2,054.43) {2,206.001|
MAT credit reversal - {395.38)
Tax related to previous year 0.23 (0.48)
Deferrad tax {407.92) 377.24
JProfit for the year 1,615.43 4,490.59

Other comprehensive income
(i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan 13.02

23.90

Net {loss)/gain on FYTOC! equity Securitias - 703.32
{ii} Income tax relating to items that will not be {3.28) {183.04)
recfassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,625.17 5.034.77

“arnings per equity share 37
Basic (Face value of Re.1 each} 0.72 2.01
Diluted {Face value of Re.% each) 0.72 2.0

Sighificant accouming policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors

For Singhi & Co, For Runwal Developers Privata Limited 1’

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No 302049E

Amit Hundia Sujata Rao Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
Membership No., 120761 DIN: 03478837 DIN : 0BOS4518

Date - 20-09-2022

Date - 30-09-2022
Place - Murmnbai

Place - Mumbai




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO- UF0L00MHI9EBPTCO46631

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022

, For the year ended For the year ended
JParticulars
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
lD e, activities
Profit before tax 4,077.55 5,715.19
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depraciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 520.81 517.60
Finance costs 2,205.07 4,580.58
Defarred Expenses from joint development arrangement 5,505.49 -
Provision for expected credit loss 459,25 -
Reversal of fair value gain on Investment in Subsidiary 3,294.16 -
Pravision for employee benefit {3.65) -
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement [5,505.49) -
Prafit on sale of fixed asset [1.24) {6.64)
Profit on sale of mutual fund {1.64) {4.71)
Finanee incomsa {322.56) (62.77)
Share of Prafit from partnership and ACPs {788.99) (207}
(Operating profit before working capital changes 9,438.56 11,739.12
'Working capital adjustments
{Increase)f/decrease in trade receivables (634.10) 200,19
{Increasel/decrease in inventories 4,665.32 44,108.16
[Incrzase]{decresse in othar current and non current finandial assets {5,162.20] {189.13})
(ncrease)fdecrease in other current and non current assets {1,870.38) 70.72
Increase fldecrease] in trade payables 7166 {943.11)
Increase fdecrease] in other current financial liabilities {10,839.98] (41,129.76}
Increase fidecrease] in other current habilities 18,615.03 16,144.76
{Increase)/decrease In provisions - (26.65])
Changes due to working capital movements 4,846.35 18,244.138
Income Tax Paid {1,643.91) 11,919.60)
Cash Generated from Operations 12,641.00 28,063.75
Investing activities .
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7.06 13.86
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) and intangible assets {59.89) (143.23)
{Increase)/decrease in Right of Use assets {113.57) -
Advances against land (given)/repaid (net) 94,82 -
Hinvestment in partnership firm (8,260.29) -
Withdrawal of investment from partnership firm 3,322.73 1,797.06
Invastment in equity shares of subsidiary {20,079.89) -
Investment in equity shares and debentures of joint venture {1,003.00} -
Investment in units of mutual funds (61.25) -
Redemption/ {increase} in bank deposit (814.26) -
Loans and advances to related parties and others (given)/repaid {net) 10,232.66 2,656.05
Interest received {finance income) 295,73 52.78
Net cash flows from / [used in) investing activities {16,439.15) 4,386.53
Einancing activities
Interest paid (3,091.03) (4,562.25)
Repayment of non currant borrowings {16,225.81) {20,870.38)
Proceeds fram non current borrowings 13,980.08 -
Proceeds/(repayment) from current borrowings {net) 3,007.70 -
Net cash flows from f {used in} financing activities (2,329.06) {25,432.59)
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {6,127.21) 7,017.70
Cash and tash equi &t the beginning of the year B,513.55 1495.85 |
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 2,386.34 8,513.55




.Componants of cash and eash equivatents {refar note 14)

a} Balance with banks in current accounts 1400.47 8,367.7C
b} Balarce with banks in deposit accounts with original maturity less than three months 1,059.67 97.50
cl Cash on hand 48.59 48.35
Totat 2,508.73 §,513.55 |
Less: Book overdraft considered a5 cash and cash equivalent for cash flow [122.39) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2.386.34 8,513.55
Notes:
a) The above Cash Flow Statament has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.
b} Recanciliations of liablities arising from financing activities :
Particulars Asat Asat
a 31t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 36,855.67 57,744.33
Cash flow w197 (20,870.33)
Non cash changes [18.44) {18.33)
Balance at the end of the year 37,595.20 36,855.67
As per our report of even date attached Far and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Lo, For Runwal Bevelopers Peivate Limited
Chartered Accountants
|Firm Regn. No 302049€
L]
3
1 Sla
I ) e ) .
Amit Hondia Suj Rao Palfavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 120761 DIN: 03478837 DIN : 0BO54518
Date - 30-09-2022 Date - 30-03-2022
Place - Mumbai Flace - Mumbai
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standabone financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

1

Genaral information

Funwal Developers Private Limited ("the Company”} Is incorporated under the Companias Act 1956. The Company is angaged primarily in the business of real estate
construction, development and other related activitles along with this the Company is alse into the business of leasing of mall, windmill power generatian and solar
power genaration,

The Company is a private limited company incorporated in the ysar 1988 and domiclled in India having its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, Sth Floor, O,
Eastarn Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Slgnal, Sion [East), Mumbai - 400022,

These standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 315t March 2022, were authorized for issue by the Board of Diractors.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The standalene financlal statements of the Company has baen prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies (iIndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 read with Section 133 of the Cornpanles Act 2013 (a5 amended from time ta time] and presentation requirements of Division I of
Schedule I1l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedula 1), a5 applicable to this financial statements.

Historical cost convention

The financlal statements have bean prepared on a historical cost basis, axcept for the following:
+ Certain Financial instruments are measured at Fair valug

Preparation of finandal statement

As per the format prescribed under Division || of Sehedule Il to the Companies 4ct, 2013, the Company presents the Balance Sheat, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Staterment of Changes in Equity.

Current and pon-current dassification

The Company presents assats and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Shast based on ¢urrent/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i} Expected to be realisad or intended to be sald or cansumed In normal operating cycle.

i} Held primarily for the purpase of trading

iii} Expacted to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a liabifity for at least twelve months aftar the reporting period.

All other assats are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

1] It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i) It is held primarily for the purposa of trading

ifi} it is dua to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no uncanditional right ta defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting peried,

The Company classifies all other liabilities a5 non-current.
Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabillties respactively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thair realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company's
real estate operations varles from project to project depending on the size of the project, type of development, praject complexities and ralated approvals. Accordingly,
project related assets and ilabilities are glassified inte current snd non-current based on the operating ycla of the praject. All other assets and liabilities hava been
classified into current and non-current based on a period of twelye months.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR") which |5 also the functional currency of the Company. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Use of aco ing jud, t tons and

In the apglication of the Company’s accounting policies, management of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptiens about the carrying
amounts of assets and |labilities thay are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical sxperience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing
basls. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affscts only that petiod, or in the peried of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects buth current and future periods. Detailed information about sach of these estimates and judgements is included In
relevant notes together with information about the basls of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and astimates which have significant effect on the amounts recognlzed in the financial ststements:

Estimation of net realisable value {NRV} for inventory
tventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable vajue [NRV],

MRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions, prices and trends existing at the reporting date and is determined by the
company based on comparable transactions observed fidentified for similar properties in the same gecgraphizal market serving the sarme real astate segment.

NR¥ in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and trends existing at the reporting date for similar completed property,
lass the estimated cost to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

E 1

d cost to comp i= reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and overruns basis the prograss of the project,




Impairment of other non-Gnancial assets

The Company assesses at sach reparting date whether there is 2n indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, of wihen annual Impairment testing
for arn asset |s required, the Company estirmates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount |s the higher of an asset’s Fair valus less costs of disposal
and its valug in use. When the carrying amount of 3n asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impalred and is written down to its recoverable
amount, |n 2ssessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pra-tax discount rate that reflects current markst
assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent markat transactlons are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model s used. These caleulations are comrobarated by valuation multiples ar other available
fair value indicaters.

Impalrment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial 2ssets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company usas judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs for impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward Inoking estimates at the
end of sach raporting period.

Usefullife and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different
fram that prescribed in Schedule 11, they are based on technical advice, Assumptions also need to be made when the Company assesses whaethar an asset may be
capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised,

Recognition and ement of defined benefit obligati

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan iz determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, expected return
on plan assets, trends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by rafarznce to market yields at the snd of the raporting period on
government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspend to the prabable matunty of the post employment benefit obligatiaps.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the Ffair values of the financial assets and ltabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on the quoted market prices in actlve markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation tachnigue. The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market wherever possible, but whare this is not feasible, a
review of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect the fair value ralating te financial instruments,

Pravision and contingent lability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingsncies, For contingent losses that are considerad probable, an estimated
loss is racorded as an accrual in financial statements, Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not providad for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the
financial statements, Contingencies the llkelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statemants. Gain cantingancies are not recognized until the
contingency has been Ivad and amounts are received or receivable,

Racognitlon of deferved tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax cradits to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable, The
assessment of the probability with regard to the realisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the entity and budgeted data for the future.

Measurement of fair values

The Cornpany measures financial instruments, such as certain investmants at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwesn market particlpants at the measuremant date. The fair value measuremant is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal markst far the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must ba accassible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in thelr economic best intarest,

A fair value measurement of 3 non-financial asset takes into accaunt a market participant’s ability 1o generate sconomic benafits by using the asset In 1ts highest and |
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assetin Hs highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumnstances and for which sufficient data sre available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimlzing the use of unabservable inputs.

The Company has an established control framewark with respect to the maasurement of fair values. The Management regularly reviews significant unabservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used te measure fair values, then the Manag the evid cbtained from third parties to support
the conclusion that such valuations meet the requiremants of Ind AS, including the level in the Fair valua hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measyring the fair value of a financlal aszet or a financial liability, the Company uses obsarvatle market data ss far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the Inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or lia 5,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are ohservable far the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derivad from
prices),

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

if the inputs usad to measure the fair value of an asset or a lability fall into diffsrent levels of the fair valus hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety in the sama leve! of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair valus hizrarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has accurred.




V¥  Property, plant and equipment & depreciation

3. Hec

ghition and ement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairmant losses, if any. The Cost of 2n item of Property, Plant and
Equlpment comprisas of:

i. its purchase price, including impart duties and non-refundable purchase taxkes after deducting trade discaunts and rebates.
ii. any costs dirsctly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intendsd by Management.

iii. the inltial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the Company incurs sither
when the item |s acquired or a5 a consequance of having used the itam during 3 particular perlod for purposas ather than to produce inventories during that period.

iv. Borrowing costs refating to acquisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and Equipment, which takes substantial period of time to gat ready for 3
Intended use are aiso included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets ara ready 19 be put to use.

v. tncame and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the lacation and condltian necassary for it to be ¢capable of operating in
the manner intended by Management are reccghized in Statement of profit and Loss. If signiflcant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have differsnt
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate ftems (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

b. Subseguent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value anly if it Increases the future banefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Piant and Equipment, including repair and maintenance expenditura
and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisition of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at 2ach Balancs Sheet
dake are disclosed under Capital Wik In Progress,

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intendad use are carrled at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and
attnbutable interast.

Any gain of loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss of the Company in the year of disposal.
¢ Depreciation

Depreciation |s provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use on straight line method as per the useful lifs of the Property, Flant and Equipment including
property held as Investment a3 prescribed under Part C of Scheduls N of the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation is calculated on a prorata hasis from the date of installation / acquisition til the date the assets are sald or disposad.

Depraciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, lass its estimated residual value.

Mature of the asset Useful life
Computars 3 years
Plant & Machinery

Solar 15 yaars
Windmill 22 years
Office Equipment S years
Wehicle 3 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years

The depraciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodicalty.

d.  Derscognition
An iter of property, plant and 2quipment and any significant part Initially recognised is detecognised upon disposal or when no future econamit benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any Gain or loss atlsing on derecognition of the asset fcalculsted as the diffsrence between the net dizposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is reconised in the statemeant of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

V  Investment groperties
Building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not in use by the Company, is classified as lnvestment Proparty.
| it property is ed inltially at its acquisition cost, Including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expendityre is
capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only whean it is probable that future sconomlc benefits associated with the expenditurs will flow to the Company znd the cost
of the itam can be measured refliably, All other repalrs and maintenance costs are expensad when Incurred. When part of an Investment property is replace d, the
cartylng amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The carrying amount of Investment proparty is reviewed periodically for impalrment based on internal and
external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrdng amaunt of assets excesds its recoverable 3mount. The recovarable amount is the graater of the
asset’s net selling price and value in use.
Investiment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method over the estimated useful [ves of the assets, which are in line with
Schedule I to the Companias Act, 2013, In order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.
Initial dirgct costs incurred by the Company In negotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognlsed as
an expense over the lease term on the same bazls as the lease incoma.
Oeprediation is pravided on the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets, nat of their residual valuss, gver their sstimated useful lives,

The estimated useful life of investmant property is 60 years.
Aninvestment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanenty withdrawn fram use and no future scanomic benefits are expacted
from the disposal. Any galn or loss arising an derecognition of property is recognized in the statement of profit and less in the same period.

Vi Intangible assets

a. Recognition and measuremeant
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset camprises of its purchase prics including

any impart duties and other taxas {other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any directly artributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intendad use. '
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Subsequent expendlture

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future econemic benefits assoclated with the expenditure will fi ow to the Cornpany.

Amortisation -

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line hasis, from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use. The amortisation
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with z finite usaful life are reviewed atleast at the end of aach reporting periad.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assats are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amartisation period
Computer software (ERP] 10 years - license period
Computer software {other than ERP) 3 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or dispasal of an intangible asset are determined as the differance between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions / translations

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded st the closing rate prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions or at the contracted rates as applicable.
Muonetary assets and liabilities denominated in forsign currencies at the reporting date are teanshated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. -

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary itams or on translating monetary itams at rates different from those at which they wers translated on initial
recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the pariod in which they arise.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finangial liability or equity instrument of another entity, Financial assets and
financlal habilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party ta the cortractual provisions of the instrumants.

Financial assets and financial liabllitles are initiafly measured at fair valus. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabillties, as appropriate, an initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial llabilities measured at fair valus through prafit or loss are recognized immediately in the statemant
of Profit and Loss.

Financ<ial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are racogmsed and derecognised on a trads date basls. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or salas of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the tims frame established by regulation or convantion in the market place, All recognised financial assets are
subsequently measured in their entirety at sither amortised cost or faic value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

i- Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad if these financial assets are held within a business whase objective
is to hold these assets in arder to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assat give rise on spacified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive incame if 1t is held within a business model whese oblective is achisved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solaly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable stection on an instrument-by-Instrument basis to present the subseguent charges in fair value in other
comprehensive income pertaining to investrnents in equlty Instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in falr value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments
through ather comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or lass is not reclassified to profit or loss an disposal of the investments.

iii. Financtal assets at fair vafue through profit or loss {FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified 25 at FYTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recogmtion to present subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income for Investments in equity instriments which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or
|o35 unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income oa inltial recognition,

. Investment in associates
Investment in associates are measured at cost less impairment as par Ind A5 27 - Separate Financial Statemants,

v. Impalement of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there s indication for impairment, If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted in the staterent of profit and loss.

vi. Derecognition

A financial asset [or, whers applicable, 2 part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarlly derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company's
balance sheet} when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have sxpired, or

- the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows fram the asset or has assumed an abligation to pay the received cash flows In full without ma teral delay to
2 third party under 2 ‘pass-through’ armngemant® and either {a) the Company has transferred substantizlly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or [b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset ar has entsred into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluatas if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has naither transferred nor retained substantlally all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contral
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the sxtent of the Company's continuing invelvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transfarred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
ratained,

vil. mpairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each dats of balance theet whether a financlal asset or 3 group of financial assets |s impaired, Ind AS 109 requires expectad credit losses to be
maasured through 3 loss allowance. The Company recognizes fifstime expected losses far all contract assets and { aor all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all ather financial assats, expected cradit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount
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vili. Step acquizsitions [subsidiary is acquired in stoges):

When the initial investment made by the Company In any other sntity was not falling under the category of an associate, jolnt venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of
such entity gets accounted for in accordance with Ind A5 10% “Financial Instruments” at fair value,

When such an entity becomes a subsidlary, the Company accounts for the cost of the Investment in the subsidiary as the sum of the consideration paid for the initial
interest, plus any consideration paid for the additional interest {accurnulated cost 2ppraach).

When the accumulated cost approach is applied, the Company recognises the difference betwesn the fair value of the mitial interast at the date of obtaining control of
the subsidiary and its original consideration in profit or toss, repardless of whather, before obtaining ¢ontrof, the Initial investrent had been measured at fair value
through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehansive income {OC1).

Financial liabllittes and equity instruments

i. (assification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company ara classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of o financial liability and an aquity Instrument,

il. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that avidences a rasidual intarest in the assets of an entity after deducting alt of its lizbilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the procesds received, net of direct issue costs,

ifl. Financial Nabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of financial fiabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs. All financial
liabilities are subsequentiy measured av amaortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of prafit and loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amartisation is incliuded as finance costs in the statemant of profit and loss,

v. Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an axisting liability are substantlally medified, such an exchange or medification is treaked as the

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 2 new liability. The differance tn the respective C2IMAing amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and lishilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities an initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassifi catlon is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, 3 reclassification is made only if there |5 a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the
business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to Itz operations, If the Company reclassifies financial assets, It
applies the reclassification prospectively from the rectassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting pariod followlng the change in business
madel. The Company does not restate any previously recagnised gains, losses [including impairment gains or losses) ar interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nat amount |s reported in the balance sheet if thara is 2 currently enforesable legal right to offset the
recoghised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 2 net basis, to realise the assets and sattle the liabllities simultaneously.

Inventories

Direet sxpenditure relating to Real Estate Davelopment activity is inventorized. Other expenditure {including borrowing costs) during canstruction period Is inventorized
ta the extent the expenditure is diractly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure lincluding borrowing
¢osts) incurrad during the construction period which Is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intendad use is charged to the
statemnant of profit and foss. Direct and other sxpenditure |5 determined based on specific identification to the construction and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ [tems
purchasad specifically for projacts are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ raceived.

a. Inventories comprise of: i) Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in completed projects (i) Realty Work in Progress represanting properties under
construction /development including land held for development on which construction activitias are yet to commence {iii) Transferable development rights {TORs)

b. Inventories are valued 2t tower of cost and net realizable value.

¢. Cost of Realty construction f development 15 charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in propertion to the revenus recognised during the period and the balance
cost is carried ower under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress or Finishad Realty Stock. Cost of Realty construction / development includes all costs
directly related to the Project {including finance cost attributable to the project) and other axpenditure as identifiad by the Management which are incurred for the
purpase of executing and securing the completion of the Project [net off incidental recovaries / raceipts) upto the date of receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project
from the relevant authorities.

Realty Work In Progress includes cast of land, premium for development rights, transferable development rights [TDR), construction costs, allocated interast and
expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company.

Net rezlizable value is the estimated selling price kn the ordinary course of business, less esti d costs of letion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Revenute recognition

The Company has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue In this Financiai $tatemeants:

Step 1. ldentify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreemant betwgen two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and abligations and
sats out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Stap 1. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise 1n 3 contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the
customer.

Stap 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects 10 be entitled In exchange for transferring
promised poods or services to a customer, excluding amounts cellected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For 2 contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will
aflocate the transaction prica to each performance obligation in an amount that degicts the amount of ¢onsideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfias a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, If ane of the following criterta s met:
- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company parforms; or

- The Company’'s parformance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is creatad or enhanced; or

- The Company's pesformanca does pot creats an assat with an alternative use to the Company and the ertity has an enforceable right to pay t for perf: e
completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above canditions are not mel, revenue Is recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.
Revenue is recagnised either at point of time and over a period of time based on the conditions in the contracts with customers,

The specifle revenue recoghition criteria are deseribed balow:

{i) Income from Property Cavelopment

The Company has detarmined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the criteria to recognise revenue over a period of time. Revenue is

recognized at point in time with respect to cantracts for sate of residantial and cial units as and when the control is passed on to the customers which is linked
o the receipt of occupancy certificate and an issuing the possession letter of the property.

{il} Sale of Materials, Land 2nd Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at paint in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Davelopment Rights as and when the control is passed on to the
customers.

[iii) Income frem Inveastment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AOPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to iva iy blishad as per agr t / agreed terms between all the partners / members.

{ivl Interest income

tnterest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate (EIRt method).

{v} Rental Incoma

Rernial income arising from operating leasas is accounted over the laase terms.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is rac d when the right to receive the payment is established,

Contract balancas

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, H the Company perfarms by transferring goods orservices to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before pay tis due, a contract asset is recognised for the sarned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that Is unconditional {i.e., only the passage of ime is required before pay it of the

consideration is due).

Contract liabllity is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a custormer for which the Company has recaived consideration {or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods ¢r services to the ¢ustomer, a contyact liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due {whichever Is earlier}. Contract babilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract,

Cost to obtaln a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental custs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expects to recover those costs. The Company incurs
costs such as sales commissian when It enters into 3 new contract, which are divectly related to winning the contract,
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Joint d t arrang:
The Company executes projects through Joint Development Arrangements (IDA), wherein the land ownec provides land and the Company undertakes to develop
properties on such land {i.2. deveiopment right} and in lieu of land owner providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage of constructed area or
certain percentage of the revenue praceeds or certain percentage of surplus to the land owner. Transfer of such constructed area or revenue or surplus in exchangs of
such development rights/ land is being estimated at fair value a5 par the terms of the sgreement and accounted for on launch of the projact as the cost of development
rlght (Inventory} with its correspending liability. When the fair value of the land cannot be measured raiiably, the revenue and cost is measurad at the Fair value of the
estimatad construction service rendered to the landewner adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferrad. Subsequent to initial recognition, such
tiability is remeasured an each reparting period depending on the type of the arrangament, to refiect the changes in the estimate, if any.

In case of JD arrangemants, where performance obllgation is satisfied over tlme, the Company recognizes revenue onby whan it can reasonably measure its progress in
satisfying the performance obligstion. Until such time, the Company recognizes revenue to the extent of cost incurrad, provided the Company expects to recover the
costs incurred towards satisfying the perfermance obligation.

Intame tax
Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured 3t the amount expacted to be recoversd from or paid to the taxation autharities based on the
tarable profit for the pariod. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thase that are enactad by the raporting date and applicable for the pariod

Deferred tax:

Deferced tan is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liakilities and thelr carrying amount in financiat statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 3 business combination and affects neithar accounting nor taxable profits or [oss at the time of transaction,

Daferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expacted to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, bazed on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively snacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tan asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are recognized to the extant that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unusad tax credits and urwsed tax losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assats is reviewead at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficiznt taxsble profit will be
avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an éxpense in the Statemant of Profit and Loss, except when they refate to items that are recognized in OCl, in
which case, the current and deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in OCI, The Company offsets currant tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has 3 legally
enforceable right to set off the recognlzed amounts and where it intends sither to settle on 3 net basis, or to realize the assat and settle the liability simultaneously. In
case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are affset if the Company has 3 lsgally enforceable right to set off corrasponding cutrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes |svied by the same tax authority on the Company,

Employes benefits

Short term employes benefits

Short term employee benefits are expansed as the related service is provided. A hability Is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present
legal or constructive abligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligatian can be estimatad reliably.

Post empioyment beasfits

(i} Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions ta defined cantribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided,

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or 2 reduction In future payments is available

(i} Defined Benefit Plans

Payment of Gratulty to employaes is in the nature of a defined benefit plap. Pravision for Gratuity is recorded on the basis of actuarial valustion cartificate provided by
the actuary using Prajectad Unit Credit Method, .

The Company’s net obligation In respect of defined benefit plans is caiculated separately for each pian by estimating the amount of future benzfit that employses have
earned in the current and prior perlods, discounting that amount and deducting the Fair valus of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations 15 performed annually by 3 qualified actuary using the projectad unit credit method, Whan the calculation results b a
potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is glven to any applicable minirmum funding
requiremants,

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses and the retur on plan assets (excluding Interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income [OCT). Met intarest expense/ {income} on the net defined Nability /
(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net dafined llability / {asset). Net intarast expense and other expenses related ta defined benefit
plans are recognisad in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

When the benefits of 2 plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the rasulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit 2nd Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of 3 dafined benefit plat when the settlement
QcLurs.

Qther long term employee benefits

The Company’s liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services ore recognised ona
straight line basis over the average pariod until the benefits hecome vested, Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immedlately in the Statement of profit and Loss as
income or expense or recoghlzed under Other Comprehensive Incomes te the sxtent such actuarial gains or [osses arise due to experience adjustments. Obligation is
reasured at the present value of the estimated futura cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market vields st the Balance Sheet date
on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Boncs are consistent with the currancy and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.




Xn
a.

X

Xy

AV

Xvi

leases

Where Company is the tessee

The Company applies 2 single recognition and measwrament approach for all lzases, excapt for short-term leases and leases of low-valus assets. The Company
recognises lease liabilities to make [ease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {ie., the date the underlying assat is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measered at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment lossas, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease lisbilities. The cast of right-of-use assats
includes the amount of lease llabilities recognised, initial direct casts incurred, and leass payments made at or befors the commencement date less any lease incantives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stralght-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

il. Lease Kabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease lisbilities measured at the present value of lease payments ta be made over the lease term. The
lease paymants include flxed payments (including in substance fined payments) less any lease incentives receivable, varlable leass payments that depend on an index or
a ratg, and amaunts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing eate 2t the lease commencemant date because the intarest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinabie. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased ta reflact the accretion of intersst and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrylng amount of lease Habilities is rermeasured if there is a modification, a change in the leasa term, a change in the lease
payments {e.g., changas to future payments resulting from a change In an index or rate used to determine such jease payments) or a change in the assessmant of an
option to purchase tha undarlying asset. ’

iit Short term leases and beases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition saxemption to those Jeases that have 3 leass term of 12 months or jess from the commencement date and do not
cantain a purchase oprion, Lease payments an short-tarm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognisad as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease tarm.

Where Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company doas not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidentat to ownership of an assat is classifi 2d a3 operating leases. Rental income
arising is accounted far on a straight-fine basis over the lease tarms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotisting and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which
they are carned.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the berrowing of funds and Is measured with reference to the effective interast
rate applicable to the raspective borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated to qualifying assets pertains to the period from commencement of activities relating 1o construction / development of the qualifying asset
upto the time all the activitias necassary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing rost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisation when development work on the project/assets is interrupted for extended period and there is na
imminent certainty of recommencement of work,

All other borrowing costs are recognised 25 an expense in the period in which they are ncurred.

Cash and cash equivalent

ash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short tarm deposlts with an original maturity of threx ronths or less
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valus, Howaver, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and short
term deposits as defined In ind A5 7,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax by the weighted avarage number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The welghted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the svents for bonus issue, bonus element in 3 rights issue to existing shareholders, share
spiit and reverse share split (consalidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (lass) after tax az adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expanse or income [net off any
attribytable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weightad average number of equity shares considerad for deriving basic aarnings per share and
tha weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on corversion of ali difutive potenttal equity shares.,

Provisions, contingent liabllities and ¢ontingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has 2 prasant obligation (legal ar constructive] as 3 result of 3 past event, it is probable that the Company will be required
ta settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the cansideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
zccount the risks and uncertaintles surrounding the obligation. Whan a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the affect of the time value of money is matarial).

Contingant liabilities are disclosed for:

{i] possible obligations which will be confirmad anly by future events not whaolly within the cantrol of the Company or

(i) prasent obligations arising from past events where it is not probabla that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obhigation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic benefits has becoms probable, contingent assets are disclosed.

Contingent Assets ara | continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the Financial Staternents. If it has become virtually certain that an
Inflow of 2conomte benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are racognised in the Financial Statements of the period in whith the changes occurs.

Prawvislons, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewad at each Balance Sheet dats,




Kvin Segment reporting

L4

An operating segment is 2 component of the Compary that engages in business activities from which It may 2arn revenues and meur expenses, including ravenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which discrete financial Infarmation is available.

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess
their performance.

Accordingly, the Company has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpase of Ind AS 108

2] Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

¢l Power generation

Real Estate segmant (RE) comprises development of land, sale of and, sale of Transferable Development Rights [TDRs) and operation of ail or any part of townships,
housing projects. Lease rental comprises the rental of proparties as Shopping Malls. Powar generation is through Solar and Wind.,

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the firancial statements. Alsa, the Company's financing
{inclyding finance costs and finance income) and Income taxes are managed on an overall basls and are nat allocated to operating segments. Transfer prices betwesn
operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in 2 manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Business combinations
The Company applies the acqu

on method in 2ccounting for busi cembinations for the busi which are nat under common control. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideratian transferred measured 3t acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interasts in the acquires,
For each businzss combinatian, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, Acquisition related costs are axpensed as incurrad,

Af the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date falr values. For this purpese, the llabilities
assumed include contingent labilities reprasenting prasent obligation 2nd they are measured at their acquisiion fair values irvaspactive of the fact that autflow of
resources embodying economic benefits iz not probable, However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in & business combination are measured at the basis
indicatad below:

2) Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to smployee benefit arrangements are recognised and measurad in accordance with Ind AS 12
‘Income Tax' and Ind A% 19 ‘Employea Benefits’ respectivaly,

b) Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date ar arlse as a result of the acquisition are

accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12, ’

<) Reacquired rights are measured at a value dstermined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the ralatad contract. Such valuation does not consider
potentizl renewal of the reacguired right.

Any contingent consideration ta be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at Fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an assat or
lizbility that is 3 financial instrument and within the scope of Ind A5 109 *Financial Instruments’, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 103, it is measured in 3ccordance with the appropriate Ind A5,

Cantingent consideration that is classifled as equity is nat re-measured at subsaquent reporting dates and its subsequent settlament is accounted for within equity,

When the Company acquires 2 business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for apprapriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual kerms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combinatiaon is achieved in stages, any previously held aquity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fait value and any resulting gatn or loss is
recognised in profit or lass or OC1, as appropriate.

— Byl

2 under ¢ control
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:
* The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts,
* No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or fiabilities. Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies,
* The financlal information in the financial statements in respect of prior perieds is restated as if the busingss combination had occurrad from the beginning of tha
precading perlod in the financial statemants, Irrespectiva of the actual date of the combination. However, where the business combination had occurred after that date,
the prior peried Infarmation is restated only from that dave,
* The balance of the ratained earnings appearing in the Financial statements of the transferor is ageregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial
skatements of the transferse or is adjusted against general reserve.
* The identity of the resarves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the raserves of the transferee.
* The difference, If any, betwaen the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of
share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented sepacataly from other capital reserves.
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalona financial s for the year ended 3ist March, 2022
{All omounts in Rs, Lokhs, unfess otherwise stated)
Note 7 Asat As at
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Non current investments

A. Investments measured at cost

1. In equity shares of subsidiary companies
Unquoted, fully paid up

Avalor Developers Private Limited

[C.¥. 10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.¥. 10,000 shares of Rs 10 each) 1.00 109
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited*

(C.¥. 1,60,424 shares of Rs, 10 each) 20,080.15

20,081.15 1.00

2, tnvestment in partnership firms - fixed capital account**
Subsidiary
Runwal Constructions 95.00
95.00 -

3. In equity shares of joint venture companies
Unquoted, fully paid up

R mall Developers Private Limited -Class A
{C.¥.19,90,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; p.¥. 19,890,000 shares of Rs. 10 each) 1949.00 199.00
R mall Devalopers Private Limited -Class B

C.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs, 10 each; P.V. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 each) 264 .00 264.00
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

C.Y. 10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. Nii)

{Alsa refer nate 51) 3.00

166.00 463.00

4. In equity shares of assodate companies

Unquoted, fully paid up

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

(C.Y. 8,00,400 shares of Rs. 100 each; P.Y. 8,00,400 shares of Rs. 100 each) 1,720.86 1,720.86

1,720.86 1,720.86

5.In preference shares of joint venture companjas

Unquated, fully paid up

R Retail Ventures Private Limited

CCPS serlas 2 0.01% preference shares

{C.¥. 20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.¥. 20,21,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

(Also refer note 51) 20,310.00 20.310.00
20,310.00 20,310.00

Total af investments measured at cost 42,673.01 22,494.85

B. Others:

Investments measured at fair vafye through other comprehensive income {FYTOC)

1. In equity shares of other companias

Unquoted, fully paid up

Dhruva Woollen Milis Private Limited

{P.¥. 25,867 shares of Rs 10 each) - 3,284.42

B 323442

Total of investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income - 3,291.42
*During the year further investment of 1,24,557 equity shares was made in Dhruva Woollen Mills Pvi. Ltd, {DWNMPL} at 2 consideration of Rs. 20,079.89 lakhs. Pursuant to
such further investment, it has become a subsidiary of the Company. Apd accordingly, the investments in DWMPL have been reclassified at cost, as investment in
subsidiaries are being measured at cost. In the earliar years, it was maasured 3t Fair Valve through Other Comprehensive Income, as it was classified as Investment in
Others. As this, Investment has now been measured at cost, the accumulated fair value gain which was recognised till 315t March, 2021 through GCI, which aggragates to
Rs. 3294.16 lakhs have been reversed and routed through profit and loss accaunt in the financial year 2021-22 by following the concept of accumulated cost approach,

Investments measured at fair value through profit and bpss {FVTPL)
1. tn partnership firm
Walue Constructions SRA
(Also refer note 52| - 332273

2. In mutual fund
Aditya bicla sun life saving fund - growth - direct plan
(€Y - 14,121.602 units, P.Y. - Nil) 62.89 -

Totak of investments measured at fair value through profit and loss 62.89 3,322.73

42,735.50 29,1120
——or—




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 315t March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

* Details about investment in partnership firm

Runwal Constructions Value Construction SRA
Asat Asat
—3lstMaech, 2022 315t March, 2021
Total capital of the firm {fixed and current capltal) 17,855.91 3,328.87
17,855.91 3,328.87
Name of the partners and their profit sharing ratios Asat As at
315t March, 3022 315t March, 2021
L.Runwai Developers Private Limited 95% 51%
2.Mr. Subbash Rurwal o% 9%
3.Mrs. Sangeeta Lalwani %% 20%
4.Mr. Vikas Lalwani 0% 20%
5. Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 5% 0%
100% 100%
Aggregate amount of quoted investmants and market value thereof §2.89 -
Agpregate ofunq ] invest 42,673.01 26,112.01
Note B As at As at
. 31stMorch, 2022  __ 3ictMarch, 2021
Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
To parties other than related parties
Loan - 1,777.15
- 1,777.25
Note 9 As at Asat
— 31stMarch, 2022  _ _ 3istMarch, 2021
Other non-current financlal assets
[Unsecured considered good unlass otherwise statad)
To parties ather than related parties
Security depositsi 240.16 13168
Bank deposits with more than 12 menths maturity 705,24 290.90
945.40 422.53
# Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits.,
Note 10 Az at As at
—3stMarch 2022 _ MistMarch, 2021
Other nen-current assets
[Unsecured considered goad unless otherwise stated)
To related parties
Security deposit # 18.32 130.00
To parties other than refated partias
Advance towards property* - 166.68
18.32 296.68

# Securities deposits will be adjusted against the land for wilch the amount is given,
* Advance towards property are non - interest bearing In nature and shall be settled against future purchase of such assets.

Naote 11 As at As at
— 31stMarch 2022 31t March, 2021
Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Construction work in progress 66,308.55 36,166.29
Finished goods 23,880.32 5782748
Entitlement of transferable development tights 718.38 718.38
90,907,25 94,712.15

The cartying amount of inventories charged as securities against borrowings 50,608.30 46,951.82




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
Note 12

Current investments

Investments maasured at cost

Investment in partnership firm - current account
Subsidtary

{Afl amounts in Rs. Lakhs, upless otherwise stoted)

As gt

—_3lstMoarch,2022

As at

e 3lstMarch, 2021

Runwal Constructions # 8,554.28 -
# Partrer In Runwal Construction with eHact from 015t October, 2021
i t tin del #3 of joirk venture - unquoted, fully paid up
R Mall Developers Private Umited® 1,000.00 -
{1,000 Mon-convertible debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000)
9,954.28 -
* Debentures are redeemable in ona year and one day from the date of allotment i.e. 02-07-2021
Agegragate of unquoted i t 5,954.28 -
Mote 13 As at As at
31st March, 2022 31stMarch, 2028
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good 358.23 173.40
Unsecured, consldared good 540,10 565.57
Unsecured, significant increase in credit risk/creditimpairad 474,74 -
Less : allowance for significant increase in credit risk/credit impalred {240.26) -
1,132.81 738.97
Ageing of trade receivables ;
A} Apming for the 315t March 2022-
Particular Le::c:t:: 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Tatal
Undisputed trade receivables
Considered good 494.71 110.98 90.46 90,73 111.45 898.33
Which have significant
in¢rease in cradit risk 146.80 93.89 137.65 48.22 48.18 474.74
Credit impaired - - - - - .
Disputed trade receivables
Considered good - - - . N -
Which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
Credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 641.51 204.57 28.11 138.95 159.63 1,373.07
8} Ageing for the 31. arch 2021-
h
Particular I.e':sutn;: 6 &months - 1 year 1-2years 2 -3years Maore than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivablas
Considered good 284.23 104.43 159.98 16.87 173.46 738.97
Which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
Credit impaired - - - - R -
Dlsputed trade receivahles
Considered good - - - - - -
Which have significant
incredse in credit risk - - - - . .
Credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 284.23 104.43 159.98 16.87 173.456 738.97
There are no unbifled trade receivables.
Note 14 As at As at
—AlstMarch 2022 = 3istedarch. 2021
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

In current accounts

In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

L400.47 8,3672.70

1,059.67 87.50

48.59 43.35

2,508.73 B,513.55
T ——




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone fi ial st ts for the year ended 315t March, 2022
{All omounts in Rs. Lakhs, undess otherwise stated)
Note 15 As at As at
315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Bank batances other than above
Bank deposits with original maturity of mare than 3 manths but less than 12 months# - 51132 11140

511.32 111.40

= — 1

# Bank depasits held as margin money and llen markad for issulng bank guarantees amounting to INR 9.20 lakhs {PY INR: 10450 lakhs)

Note 16 Asat As ae
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Loans
[Unsecured considered good unless stherwise stated)
To refated parties
Inter corporate deposit* 0.50 9,455.93

To partias ather than related parties

Security depasit 811.30 453.50
Inter corporate deposit** 642.23 219.00
1,454.03 10,128.43

* Inter corporate deposits given to related parties are repayable on demand.
** Inter corparate deposits given to parties ather than related parties have rate of interest of 18% p.a. and repayable within 1 year from date of disbursement.

As at As at
Typa of Borrawer 315t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Amount outstanding *% of Total Amount outstanding % of Total

Promoters - 0.00% . 0.00%
Directors - 0.00% - 0.00%
KMP's - Q.00% - 0.00%
Related Parties 09.50 0.03% 9,455.93 93.35%
Total D.50 0.03% 9,455.93 93.36%

e ——— ——
Note 17 As at As at

315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Other currant Hinancdal assats
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated}

To related parties

Other advances#

Balance receivable as retired partner 661.45 B661.45
Security deposit 592393 -
To parties other than related parties
Other advances# 189.52 1,070.17
Interest accrued but nat due 88.12 6129
Loans and advances to employees 2324 12.80

6.885.26 LA05. 7%

# Other advances arerepayable on demand

Note 18 As at As at
315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Other current assets
{Unsecurad considered good unless otherwise stated)

To parties other than related parties

Advance to suppliers and contractor 1,459.40 2i0.29
Advance against transfer of developrment right - 500.00
Advance against flats 506.51 -

Balances with statutory authoritias 701 7.01
Prapaid expenses 53.02 59.98
Advance for land/others# 1,175.43 1,270.25
Deferrad brokerage 1,347.18 347.10

5,148.55 3,094.63
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20

Other equity

Capital Reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 (32,695.59)
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 {33,695.59)
Movement during the year .

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Securities premium

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 24,201.78
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 24,201.78
Movemant during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 24,201.78
General reserve

Balance as at O1st April, 2020 225.00
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 225.00
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 225.00
Retained earnings

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 75,272.93
Profit far the year ended 31st March, 2021 4,490,59
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {net of

tax) 17.88
Fair value gain on instrument subsequently

measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income -
Balance as at 315t March, 2021 79,781.40
Profit for the year ended 315t March, 2022 1615.43
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {net of

tax) 2.74
Cair value gain transferred to retained earnings

on reclassification of investrent 2321.37
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 83,727.94
Equity instruments through other

tomprehensive income

Balance as at O1st April, 2020 1,795.07
Fair value gain transfarred to retained earnings

on reclassification of investment 526.30
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2,321.37
Fair value gain transferred to retained earnings

on reclassification of investment {2,321.37)
Balance as at 315t March, 2022 -
Total Other Equity

At 01 April 2020 67,799.19
At 31st March 2021 72,833.96
At 31st March 2022 74,459.13




Nature and purpose of reserves

1) Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 fakhs an account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited {"RRP L}, Runwal Projects
Private Limited ("RPPLY) and Runwal Township Privata Limited {"RTPL"Jhave merged inte Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting into a negative
capital reserve of Rs. 10,175 lakhs, negative capital reserve of 28,640 Jakhs and a positive capital reserve of Rs, 3,097 lakhs,

2) General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained €arnings for apprapriation purposes. As the general reserve is created
by a transfer from one compenent of equity to anather and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in general reserve will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

3) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profit that the Company (including all merged entities) has earned till date, less any dividends or other distributions paid
to shareholders.

4} Securities premium
On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest method, the securities premium of the respective
companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves.

5) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income includes the fair value gain or loss of investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as per ind A5 109 - "Financial Instruments”.

6) The opening balance of *Retained Earnings” as on 1st April, 2020 in the audited accounts was of Rs. 75,445.76 lakhs, which comprised the figure
of fair valuation on equity instruments of Rs. 296.54 which should have been routed through “Equity Instruments through OCI”. Further, it didn’t
comprise the figure of “Remeastrement of defined benefit plans (net of tax)” of Rs. 6.93 Jakhs. These errors have been rectified now and the
opening balance has been restated accordingly, :

7} During the financial year 2020-21 also the “Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {net of tax)” of Rs. 17.88 lakhs was not considered as a part
of retained earnings. This error also has been rectified naw in the movement of presented figures of FY 2020-21.




RUNWAL GEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Mates to standalone financiat statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Note 21

Man-cureent financial liabilities- borcowings [(at amartised cost)

Sucured:

Term loans
From banks
From others

Unsecured
7% Redeemable preference sharas®

* The Company has ssued 6,4%,000 7% fed

bie Mon - eur

prefarence shares of Rs. 10 sach on 30th November, 2019 In id

fAfl amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

As at As at
315t March, 2097 315t March, 2021

9,220.52 13,517.67

19,056.67 12,685.92

64.50 64.90

18,342.09 26,268.49

28,342.09 26,268.49
= -3

of Ig; ion of RTPL, RPPLand

RRPL with RDPL on 30th November, 2019. The RP3 shall be redeernable at par st the option of transferee campany anytime after five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of
allotment, On 26th September, 2022 with the approval of sharehgiders of the Company, these preference shares have baan radesmed.

A.. Secured Joans from banks:

2. 603050002711
3. 503020002712
4. 603058009623
RTLIN

1. 6030900118392
2. 603090015401
3. 603090009527
4. 603090003848
5. 603090009944
6. 602090010283
7. 602090010282

onwards 10.85%

mortgage on development rights of All the
piece & parcel of land located at Survey Mo.
3/2468, Cadastral Survay No. 662 of Parel -
Sewri Division, situated at G.D. Ambedkar
Road ‘{formerly known as Parel Tank Road)
within the Registration District of Mumbai City
and Mumbai Suburban ad iring
approximately 8,627.99 square meters ["sq.
mtrs."”), including all tha structures thereon
both present & future but excluding rehab
building A having area of approximately
132,698 square faet ("sq. "),

:: Loan taken from Outstanding Rate of interast Secured agalnstf guarantes given Terms of repayment
1|Bank of Baroda - loan Afc no. C.¥. 992,55 B.65% Term loan under future rent receivable Monthly EMI of Rs.47,65,000 6l January 2024, last EM| on
(04160600020468 [P.¥. - 1,455.24) ssheme of Bank of Bareda , Secured by 29th February, 2024 of Rs. 25,37 662
Agreemeant of it of rant receivabl
and equitable martgage of same commercial
shops situzted in R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar
East, admeasuring a lsasable area of 53,505
2q.ft.
2|2ank of Baroda - loan Afc no. CY.-1,1668,14 2.65% Securad by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of R2.54, 76,200 ti January 2024, last EMI on
0416060002069 (P.Y, - 1,625.71) 29th February, 2024 of B3.59,60,248
3|Bank of Baroda car loan account | C.¥.-5.04 7.60% Car - maruti suzuki new wagen R X (D) CNG | 36 Months EM|
(03810600002072 IP.Y. - Wil)
4|Bank of Baroda loan Afc no. CY.-144268 |8.65% Tetm loan under future rent receivable Monthly EMI of Rs.12,91,500 till luna 2022,
04 160600020606 [P.Y.-1462.72) scheme of Bank of Baroda, Sacured by “Tuly 2022 to Decembar 2023- Rs. 13,11,000/-
Agr of 1t of rent ivabl January 2024 to May 2026- Rs, 44,68, 375/.
and equitable mortgage of same commeccial  |last EMI on 30th June, 2026 of Rs.1,10,75,063/-
shops situatad at R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar
East, admeasuring a lzasable area of $3,505
S|Bank of Barada loan Afc no. LY. -3,795637 8,65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mutund. Manthly EMI of R5.35,47,812 till Dacambear 2021,
04160600020507 (P.Y.-3913.88) January 2022 to June 2023- Rs. 44,99,770/-
July 2023 to Movemnber 2025- Rs, 1,18,31,240/-
6[1ICICY Bank Ltd car loan - C¥.-5731 7.50% Car - Mercades-banz 60 Manths EM|
| 1EAMUMOOD 25 76930 (P ¥. - 7006}
7 [Unlen Bank of India loan a/c CY.-2,12355 13.75% 1. 'Land & buliding Repayable in 109 monthly instalments of Rs. 30,47, 500/-
319306330000013, {P.¥.- 2,485.21) 2. Hypothetation of plant and machineryand |each commencing (rom 28th Fabruary 2018,
other asset created out of bank finance
B[iCICI Bank Ltd Inan CY.-3,15254 1.11.25% 1. 'Exclusive charge by way of registared 1. Repayment of RTL | & Il In 10 manthly installments
RTLE {P.Y.-3,923.1 2.11.25% {June  pmortgage on the Property {Nirvana Project] commencing fraom 15th November, 2021,
1. 603080002692 15 to 26} & 257,453 5q, ft. excluding saleable area of 2. Repayment of ATL I In 24 monthly instalments
2. 603030002702 10.25% {June 27 {appromimately 107,242 sq. ft. t ba commencing from 15th December, 2021.
RTLII to 14 July) surrandered to the Property Owner,
1. EO3090002710 3.15 July 2. 'Exclusive charge by way of reglstered




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to standal financial for the year ended 31st tarch, 2022

fAl amowmts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess atherwise stated)

A.. Secured loans from banks:

8. 503090010444 3. 'Exclusive charge by way of registerad
9. 603030016739 mortgage on the Scheduind Recelvables and all
10, 603023005741 insurance proceads, both prasent and future.

4. "Exclusive chargs by way of registerad
mortgage on securlty of alf rights, title,
interest, claims, banefits, demands under all
the documents pertaining to the Project
Docurments both present and future

5. 'Exclusive chargs by way of registerad
mortgage on the Escrow Account and the DSR
Account alang with all monias
cradited/deposited thersin in whatever form
the same may be), and all investments in
respect thereof (in whatever form the same

may be),
9|standard Chartered RBank Y. -l 10.75% The facility , all intarest thareon, costs, Repayable in 14 quarterly Instalments of R5.21.43 cr from
{P.¥. 2,338,75) chargas, expenses and all other monjas in Feb'20

respect thereof shall be secured by: 1)
Exclusive charge by way of reglstered
mortgage on the Project Eleganta along with
the underlying Land. 2} Exclusive charge by
way of hypothacation on the scheduled
recieveables & Escrow account of the Project,
all monies credited / deposited tharain and all
investments in respect theraof,

10[1CICI Bank car loan - Y Nl 9.09% Car - BEMW-7G47A-MH14-730L0 OPE Signature | Equal monthly installments of Rs 2,56,064 for 50 months
LAMUMOO035024 247 {P.¥. 1676} upto October 2021 -
¥.-12,736.1
Total C¥.-12 8

{P.X. - 17,367.52)

B. Sacured Inans from others:

|i' Loan taken from Outstanding Rate of interest b d agalnst/ g given Term: of repayment

ng amount

1 jAditya Birla Finanes Limited - C¥.-11,285.8910.50% 1.Unzold inventery of "The Residence” & "The | Repayabla In 24 hly install commencing from
12008400258 afc & IPY. - 5,999.49} Resarva" Projects. D1st October, 2023,
ABFLMUMCFOR0136782 2, Personal Guarantee of Mr, Sandeep Runwal

for the propased facilitles.

2 |Tata Capltal Housing Finance CY.-{53.21) 11.00% 1. Exclusive chargs by way of registered 60 Months including moratonium peried of 30 months from

Limited 10533130 & 10681237  ({P.¥.-7,207.22) martgage on the unsold units in Property 1 the date of first disbursement

90,786 sqft {'Security 1) located at Survey
Mo /CTS No. 8B4A

2. Exclusiva charge by way of registerad
mortgage on the unsold units in Proparty 24
56,545 5qft {'Security 2') located at Survey
No.fCTS WHo. §84A,

3. Exclusive charge by wey of registered
martgage on the unsald units in Property 2B
1,34,794 sqft ['Security 3') locatad at Survey
No. / CT5 No. - 3044

4. Personal & of Mr. Sandesp R I
te the tuna of Rs 75 ¢rores under the proposed
facilities

5. DSRA equivalent to 3 months' interast on

outstanding amount to be maintainad in the

form of FD with lien marked to TCHFL during

the currency of laan

6. Security Interest on unsold Units aleng with
idual i on sold units in the Property

1, 24828




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to dal fi ial stat; ts for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Al amounts in Ry, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8. Secured loans from others:

w

Tata Capital Houslng Finance CY.-7.813.99 12% & 11.80% |1, 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered ¥2 Months Including moratoriune perlod of 42 months from
Limlted - 10704493 & 10705475 IPY. - Nil) mortgage on the ROPL's share of the date of first disbursement
right/title/interest in the praject "Runwal
Timeless™ being devaloped on land parcel
located at C5. Nos. 4 (part), 5 (part), 6 {part),
and 7 [part] of Salt Pan Division, Sion-situated
at Pratlksha Magar, Shastri Nagar, "C" Division
in FfMorth Ward, Mumbai, Maharashtra,
including all future constructions, F5, TOR, and
benefits tharaon to the extent of RDPL's share.
2. DSRA equivalent to 3 months' interest an
outstanding ameunt of the facillty.

1l. Additional Seeurity:

1. Extension of first charge by way of
registered mortgage on the cnsold proportion
of land and building of the projects "R
Anthurium" and "R Square” located at LBS
Marg, Mulund, Mumbal, along with any
prasant and future construction.

Receivables

Hll. Primary Receivables:

1. Excluslve charge by way of hypothecatlon on
all receivables, to the extent of developer's
share, including sokd, unsold, insurance
receipts as well as devalopmant and other
charges from units and any cash fAow from the
profect “Runwal Timeless” located at C5. Nos.
4 (part), 5 (part), 6 {part), and 7 {part) of Salt
Pan Division, Sion-situated at Pratlksha Magar,
Shastri Wagar, “C" Division in FfNorth Ward,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, including all future
jeonstructions, F5I, TDR, and benefits thereon
to the extent of ROPL's share,

I¥.Addltional Recaivables:

1. Extensian of first charge by way of
hypothecation on all the recaivables including
sold, unsold, insurance recelpts as well as
{development and other charges from units and
any cash flow from the praject *R Anthurium”
and "R Square” located at LBS Marg, Mulund,
Mumbai,

¥, Persanal Guarantee : S5cr sendesp Runwal

8. Secured loans from others:

4 |Aditya Birla Finance Lid LOC Afc | CY. - Nil 10.50%5 Life Insurance policy of Mr_ Sandaep Runwal & | Interest is pald monthly.
29177 (PY.- 2,550) #r. Subodh Runwal, prem|um thereof investsd
in units of ynencumbered securities.

5 |Aditya Birla Finance Limitad Loan | CY. - Nit 10.50% Aditya Birla Financial Ltd sanctionag [Ine of Validity af facillty : One year from the data of first
Afcno. 18511 (PY. 342.7) credit against insurance policles of Rs.27 disbursement from March 2018 and such option to renew
Croras against unencumbered and tradable at the sole discretion of ABFL based on written request
SECuritias, received from barrower.
Yotal C.¥.-19,056.67

{P.Y. - 16,689.49)

This changes in liabilitles schedule includas mavernants far current as well as non - current portion of term loans,

Note 22 As at Asat
315t March, 2022 — HstMarch, 2071
Nan current provisions
Provision for gratulty 54.59 82.79
Provision for compermzated absances 43,30 50.88
97.89 133.67
——T

Refer note no. 38 employee benefit expenses




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to dalone fi ial stats

A

B

[=

for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Note 23
Deferred tax [fabllities

Deferred tax (abilities)

Property, plant & equipment

Right of use asset

FYTPL financhal assets

FVOC! financial assets

Lease squalisation rasesve assets

Revaluation of Inventory on account of businass combination

Defarred tax assets

Carry forward losses of housa property income
Carry forward losses of capital transactlon
Provisions for retirament benefits
Disallowance under section 438

Discounting on tecurity deposits
Expengesincurred on business combination

Deferred tax bliabflities (net]
Reconcifiation of tax expenses :

Amount of current taxr d in the dab

g of prafit and boss
Deferred tax icharge) f credit

Freperty, plant & squipment

Right of use asset

FYTPL financial assets

FWOCI financial assats

Lease squalisation rezerve assets

Revaluation of inventory on account of business combination

Carry forward losses house property Income

Carry forward losses capital transaction

Provislons for retirement benafits

Dlisallowance under section 43E

Dizcounting on security deponts

Expenses incurred on business combinatian

Total of &

Totalof A+ B

Reconciliation of sffective tan rate

Profit before tax

Tax @25.168% (PY @25.168%)

Tax effect of :

Non-deductible expenses

Tax on exempted Income

C5R expenses

Tax on deamed rent

(Expenses] / income offared in tax books {net)
Tax enpenses recognisad

Nots 24

Currant borvowings

Secured

Bank overdraft (refsr table below)

Currant maturities of kong-term borrowings (also refier note 21)
From banks
From cthars

Unsecured
0.01% Redesmable preference sharest
Book overdraft

Al gmounts in Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stoted)

As at As at
31st March, 2023 1t March, 2021
{1,468.23) (1,495.05)
{27.08) .
.19} -
- (329.01)
15.38) -
{110.20) {214.64)
{1,611.14) 12,538.70)
35.23 2214
- 1,379,564
17.16 2241
2016 14.37
2811 -
258 344
103,24 1,442.00

{1,507.50} 51509630!

As at3lst March, 2022

As at31st Maych, 2021

INR INR
{2,054.43) (2,205.00}
2676 61,64
(27.08) -
[@.19) 8.02
82901 {177.03)
15.38) -
104,44 205.79
13.09 -
1,379.84) -
{5.25) (4.22)
579 .
28.11 -
10.86) -
[411.20) 194,20
12.465.53) {2,011.80)
4,077.55 §,715.12
1026.24 1,650.08
169,81 16.17
198,57 0.97
48.69 43.58
1.022.21 261.00
246562 2,011.80
Asat As at
315t March, 2022 3tse March, 2021
4,003.13 995.44
3,515.66 3,349.85
- 4,003.57
1,738.32 1,738 32
122.29

9,379.50 10,587.18




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates ta lalone financial stat for the year ended 31st March, 2022
fAfl amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unfess othervise stated)
Bank overdraft
::; Bank overdraft taken from o:‘::::;"g Rate of interest Secured agatnst/ guarantes given Terms of repayment
1 |HDFC Bank Afc - SO200058023408f CY. 3,B32.01 7.00% BSLI ULIP Policies of Mr, Sandeep Runwal & Renewal avery year
{P.Y. Mil} Mr. Subadh Runwal, D of Rs.2 20 ¢r for
24manths on aute renawal dll the tenurs of
the facility.
2 [ICIC] Bank Ltd A/C 074005001213 | CY. - 4.2 11.258% 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered The Borrower shall ba entitled to repay the OD facility at
{P.Y. Wik martgage on the Property 1. any time from the date of disbursement of such OO facility,
2. Excluslve charge by way of ragistered till the fast OD reduction 15th Novernber, 2023,
mertgage on davalopment rights of the
Property.

3. Exclusive charge by way of reglstered
martgage on the Schedulad Receivables and all
insurance proceeds, both present and future,
4. Exclusive charga by way of reglstered
morigage on security of all rights, titls,
Interast, claims, benefits, demands under all

3 [icici Bank Led A/C 623905028781 | C.v. - 16692  [11.25% the dacuments pertaining to the Project

(P-¥. 910.62} Documents both prasent and future.
5.Exclusive charge by way of registerad
mortgage on the Escrow Account and the DSR
Account along with all montes
credited/deposited therein (in whatsvar form
the sarne may bej, and all investmants [n
raspect thereof (in whatever form the same
may be).

4 |5tandard Chartered Bank Afc No. | .Y, - Nil 10.75% Warking capital Ioan is zecured against unsold
22105076172 (P.Y. - 3482} inventary and sales recievable from unsold
inventary of project "Elegante”,
Total C.¥.-4,003.13

{P.Y. - 995.44)

# The Company has issued 1,73,83, 200 0.01% Rad ble non - lative preference sharas of Rs, 10 #ach on 4th N ber 2020 in consideration of I ion of Runwal

Buitders Private Limited {'RBPL’), Runwal Properties Private Limited {'RPPL’} , Veear Property Developers |Bombay) Private Limited {"YPDBPL'} and Odecn Exhibitors Private Limitad
['OEPL") with RDPL on 4th November 2020. The RPS shall be redeemable at par at the option of Transfares Company anytime after five (5] years but befare 20 years from the date of
allotment.

After the prafetence shares wera issusd on dth Movember, 2024, in the month of March 2021 the Company initisted the discUssion with the praference shareholdars to radeem
these preferenice shares on immedlate basis, Henca, these prefererce shares wars shawn as a part of Current Liability In both the present years and their carrying value was
considered as fair value. With the approval of shareholders, the Company has redsemed these prefererice shares subsequent to the batsnce date i.c. on Z6th September, 2022,

Note 25 As at As at
3lstMarch, 2022 _ 3%stMarch.2021

Trade payables

i} Tetal outstanding dues ef micro snterprises and smali snterprises 45,05 316,95

ii} Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micrs enterprises and small enterprises 355529 3,173.10

Retention mongy

i) Dues of micro enterprises and small znterprises 53.69 58.12
it} Dues of craditors other than micro entarprisas and small snterprises 1,327.76 1,366.9¢
4,984.73 4,913.13

For transactions with relared parties, rafer to note 42

Far explanations on the Company's credit risk managament processes, refer to note 47

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas under the Micro, $mall and Medium Entarprises Development Act, 2006 * {Refer note no. 55)
There are na unbliled trade payablas.

Ageing of trade payablas :

Al Ageing of trade payables as on 31st March, 2022
Particular

Undisputed trads payah)
Micro enterprises and small antarprizas 14.75 19.97 506 B.27 4805
Others 221861 93.41 104.97 438.30 3,555.29
| Disputed trade payables
Wicra enterprises and small entarprisas - - - - -

Qthers . - - N N
Totat 2,933.36 113.38 110.03 446.57 3,603.34

Qut ding for following peciods fram the due date
Less than 1 year |1-2year 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total




RUNWAL BEVELQPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to Jalone financial stat

B) Agelng of trade payables as on 315t March, 2021

s for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Afl amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unfess otharwise stoted)

particutar Qutstanding for following pardods from the due date

Less than 1year |1-2 year 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
Undlsputed trade payahl
Micro enterprisas and small prises 9.26 9.49 298 - 316.95
Others 245542 222.10 40.70 454.88 3,173.10
Disputed trade payables T
Micro epterprisas and small enterprises - - - . -
Others - - - - -
Votal 2,464.68 23159 338.90 454.88 3,490.05

Retention maney s collected and retained based on varlous terms and conditiens agreed upon with the contractors. In various instances, ratention money is payable when the
milestone of the entire set of services 1s completed and that too with a covenant that it will be paid after a period which ranges between 3 to 5 years, f no deficiancy is found during
this specified periad towards tha services which were rendered by them. Hence, practically it is difficult to extrast the ageing of retention money.

Note 26

Qther current financlal llabilides
To related partles

Inter carporate depasits
Amount payable on tof
Advances - athers

jon of partnership firm

To parties othar than related parties
Salary and bonus payable
Security depasits

Defarred Income

Expenses payable

Interest accrued but not due
A ble towards ¢

lled flats

Note 27
Other curvent; lahilitkes

Security deposit

To parttes other than related parties

Advance from customers

Statutory dues payable

Deferred liability agasinst purchass of development rights

Note 23

Curvent provislons
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absenees

Refer note no. 38 employee bepafit expenses

Asat
31st March, 2022

———

As at

315t March, 2021

508.00 -
- 896.44
- 2,026.73
196.37 23148
1,306.21 1,523.43
632 0.71
205.10 10,713.64
170.57 177.68
3,763.56 1,454.71
§,177.73 17,024.82

As at Asat
315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021

1,8%90.00 906.00
35,380,186 27,515.87
703,20 479.12
9,543.66 -
47,517.02 28,900.99

As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

13.59 6.27
18.02 5,22
31.61 12.49
———"] S




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for tha year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 29

Revenue from operations

Sale of flats

Income fram lease rental

Sale of solar power

Sale of wind power

Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement

Other operating revenue*

{AH# amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
35,528.27 61,507.18
538.27 558.76
342.56 298.98
67.05 46,82
5,505.49 -
41,981,654 52,411.79
1,129.67 978.73

43,111.31
—_—t

63,390.47
—_————in

* Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on defayed payment from customers, cheque bounce charges,

club usage charges ete.

Note 30

Other lncome

Business support service
Interestincome
on fixed deposits
on income tax refund
on debentures
oniCh
an other deposits
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets
Share of profit from firm {also refer note SOy
Miscellanecus income
Falr vilug 2ain on mutval fund investmant®
Sundry balances written back

* Total net gain on fair value changes includes Rs.0.01 lakbs {PY Rs. 4.71 lakhs) a5 net gain on sale of investments,

Note 31

Cost of construction and development expenses
Cost of construction and development axpensas

Note 32

Changes in inventories of finished goods and construction wark-in-progress

Opening stock
Finished goods
Construction WIP
Ciosing stock
Finished goods
Construction WIP

Note 33

Employee benafits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
{Refer note no. 38 emplovee benefit expenses)
Gratuity expense

[Refer note no. 38 emplovee benefit expenses)
Expenses related to compensated absences
Staff welfare expense

Less: Transferred to construction workin progress

31st March, 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
360,00 360.00
42.72 31.21
63.31 545
54.47 -
132722 493
2434 21.18
144 6.64
78399 Q.07
17.73 113.7%
1.54 4.71
2,064.24 4,474.07
3,556.60 S.022.05
B S — /L0 S
For the year ended For the year ended

315t March, 2021

31st March, 2022

28,921.56 13.787.10
28,921,565 13,787.10
S i e —" R L. T
For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2021

58,545.86 115874.78
36,166.29 22,945.58
{24,598.70) {58,545.86)
[66,308.55) {36,166.29)
3,804.90 445108.1?
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

2,152.99 442.88
37.62 11.18
22.97 7.14
13.12 15.91
42.94 11,53

2,268.84 488.64

{1,364.51) -

904.33_ 438,64




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motas to .EY! financial stat 5 (or the yoar ended 315t hlaech, 2022

Nate 34

Firance casts

Inkerast

- On fixed penod lean

- Cninter cgrporate depasits

- Other intarest cost

Oividend an redeemabie preferance shares
Firance charges

Total interest axpense
Less: Tranefe red 1o constructian work m HOgress
Tota! finance cost

Maoce 35

Depraciation and amortizaticn expense
Depreciation on property, ptant and eguipment
Amedtisaton on right 10 use

Denreciation on investment proparty
Amotisation of nmEnalole assets

Note 36

Cther exprases
Electricity chargas
Repaers ard maintenance
Building
ey
Imsuranca
Ratas ang taxag
Legal and professional fees
Faymen to auditor [retor note below)
Advertising and sales promoticn
Lorporate 50018l responAsIiTy expensay
Doration
Brakerage commission
Adlowanges for expected cradit iosses
Miseilaneous expenses
Sundry bakances wiall

Payment te avditor*
Audit fee
Certification
Dther services

* Exglusive of GST

{4 gmeunts in 85, Lo, unless athesyise stoied)

Far the year ended
31st March, 2022

For the year ended
31et March, 2021

2,686.00 4,550.52
117.27 54.70
27170 195
472 4.8
3520 2544
306549 1,652,326
8E0. (3.260.281
2,205.07 1,392.08
Far the year epded For the year ended
31st March, 3022 315t March, 2021

43596 42145
537 B
Fa.54 9254
B34 361
52081 512,60
for tha year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
109.7% 19443
$.29 1272
5015 59.36
46,37 3227
11218 15277
02.1% 6155
5158 1340
781,18 1584
13100 173.14
145 .
36636 108.69
559,25 .
411 24 549.7%
6248 2018
2,939.53 £,403.74
2700 1718
Q.28 -
26.50 190
53.68 19.00

“*Payment of FY 3021 -22 is inclusive of payment of INR 5,18 lakns paid ra the previos audiar.




RUNWAL DEVELDPERS PRIVATE UMITED

Fates 1o standalane firanciat st for the year ended 315t March, 2022

A4 eTILnES it 8, LokAs, (iiess S herang stated
Hote 37
Fammings per thare {EPS)

Susic 2artings per share & caiculatnd by divding the nes profit / {lz=s) 552 the year aruibutable 1o ety shasuhohiss {afler deduciing preference divdend 2nd
sEkrbutanie tanes) by the wakghted £E rumtier of enuity thares outstandng dunng te year.

Clted Yarmngs per shares s caliulated oy duidlag the et arold ; Hous) stiwibetable for the yaar 1 equity sharchnlder: {ufter adjusting for dwidend on the prafarence
shates] by the weighted avarage aumber of equity shares outstenging cering thy wear ghus the weighted average sumbsr of eguily shai2s that wanlet he issued o
carwersion af ait (e ditutive poential eagity shares inlg saudy tharss,

The flfowing refiects the incomu und share daia User v the basic and dhated BPS COMPutilingg:

5S¢ re, Periicoulars Eor the. yaas coded For the yer ended
31Lar Mareh, 2022 Bl M:ard'l‘ 200,

A Profit attrbuerabde to the equlty sharstuolders for Sasic Fagiluted wareigs iht5.43 490,89
8 Ouistanding numbar of equily sharas
i Toulrumber of equity thares outstanding at the baginning 57 the yoar 5,365,828 £,36,829
b Touwl eumber of equily sheres cutstandieg 5t the sed of Se wnar 6,976,829 B.265.229
Wi Sultienuent evenrt Change in nomber of thares due ta Ipht in face walue Of sharzs frorn Ry, 300

Rs. 1{a) 63,468,290 G1.68,290
W Subsequent evant CHEIRES & nbmaer of shaies due ts approval of isbance of baows shares in the

ratio ol 2.5 forevary 1 eguity shate Befd, 34 new 2quity tharss To be issued [B)

2% 65,¢1, 860 114921 860

v Tty wiighiad average nonhes ol equrty shares cangidared s sutstanding at the ond of the Ve

(35 par ind A5 33 "Lariingt Per Share”} (A} £2,22.80,150 22.38.80.150
v Bmsic and Ditsted earnings pae shars fin Az} 0.2 2.01

Subriequant events after $he balance sheet date
Suhsequznt o 315t Mharch, 2122 the follgwikg events has heen zarred out oy tha company:

3} Tha Board of Dueciors In their macl.is:g ik pn 2157 September, 02 aparoved the redemensn of 5,439,000 PR cdeemabike ot efrrence shares and
L7 BA200 0.9 % s deninaie profoience shares e happen on MGes September, 2022 Furthen, on 26th Sepernlier, 2027 redemption has taken place.

b The Beard of Directars snd Mormbers of the © ¥ ar their s hekd on 2 igt 5 Der, 2922 ynd 26th Septarnbar, 2022 respertively suproved
sectyssification of 7% and 0.0 1% euthorised pioference share capital 1o aitnorised enuity sfare captd] and suh Cuisian of 55,006 ety shares of R, 1ot/
eaz1ta 5,50,000 epvity shares of Rs. 107 eack,

¢l The Board of Disectors and Membors of the Campany 3t theic megtings hetd or X0 September, 2022 approved spit ol L equity Share having face value pf
A0/~ o 18 2quity shares having face valug of €1/ sack.

a The Board of Dirsctess and Hers of thy Campany 3t their meetings held o 28th Saptambar, 2022 approved the insue of 21,65.21,560 bunus equiy
sharks intha ratio oF 36:1 1.2, foe every onp efuity share held 95 npw eguay sharey Ta be issued

gl fite Bosrd of Dirgetors vide eircutar rasotution datzd 75t Segrember, 1012 approved #llolnent of 31,65,2 1 850 honys eduity sligioy.

F} The Compaey fras recaived approval of its members oo ail the abmvementioned matters and is i the precess of carcrmg oub 3 the srocedirot reguirements
with the Ragistrar of Companies.

&1 45 & 35t March, 2022 the fsce value of the Bty shares i3 of By, 30 mach, Cansitleving the fact that the prewented basic £ diliad £75 should be
connpitraile with fate vadue, face valie of equity theves is show as Ru. § each a3 an 335t March, 2023 or the face of Statemens of Probt and Loss,

it Considering ihese subsequent events, basie 7 difuted S5 hag naw been restated i aciordance wath e reguireneat of |ag AS 33 “Farniags Per Sharg”
which is as fifars:

Sr.no. Parliculars Baai¢ f Diuted £PS before Restated Basic / Diluted

restatemant {in R} EPS {lm Rs.)
1 R 20202002 10515 o
T EY. 2021200 5367 0z

© For Fr 21-22, there & na restatement of basic / deiuted £PS. 1 has baen compured and thaws here for cemparative purgases aniy.




RLNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial stat ts far the year ended 31st March, 2022

AN amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)
Note 38

Employee benefits

{A) Defined contribution plans

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognised as an expense for the year are as under:

Particulars For the year anded For the year ended
315t March, 2023 31st March, 2021
Emplayer's contribution to provident fund 36.01 40.38
Employer's contribution ta ESIC 152 2.67
Labour welfare fund contribution for warkmen 0.07 0.05
{B} Defined benefit plans
(i} Gratuity {unfunded)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the provision of the
Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, Benefits would be paid at the time of the separation.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

Far tha year ended Fot the year endad
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
| Change in prasent value of defined benefit obligation during the year
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year §9.06 98.06
2, Interast cost 4.29 671
3. Current service cost 19.05 33.63
4. Past service cost - -
5. Lisbility transferred infacquisitions 8.53 349
6. Liabiiity transferred out / divestmant (32.31) (15.46)
7. Benefits paid directty by employer {7.43) {23.41)
8. Benefits paid - -
9, Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions (14.06) {7.39)
10. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financiat assumptions 761 (11.99)
11. Actuarial changes arising from changes In experience adjustmants {6.57) [4.52}
12, Present value of defined benefit obligatian at the end of the year 68.17 83.06
I Net asset / (ability} recognised in the bat sheet
1, Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (68.17) {89.06)
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
3, Amount recognised in the balance sheet {68.17) (89.06)
4. Net {liability)f asset- current {13.58) {6.27)
Net {liability)/ asset- non-curcent ___(54.59) {82.79)
IN Exp recognised in the stat of profit and foss for the year
1. Current service cost 19.05 32.63
2. Interest cost on benefit obligation [net) 4.29 6.71
3. Total expensesinciuded in employee benefits expense 23.34 40.34
¥ Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from thanges in demographic assumptions (1a.06} 17.39)
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 7.51 (11,99}
3. Actvarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments [6.57) (4.52)
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income - -
5. Recognised In other cornprehensive income (13.02} {23.90)
V Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
1. Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 13.59 6.27
2. 2nd following year 11.21 6.6
3. 3rd following year 10.18 1.57
4. 4th foliowlng year 10.52 8.35
5. 5th following year 9.44 9.54
6. 5um of years Gth to 10 years 2119 44.59
7. 5um of 11 years and abave 4.79 73.08
VT Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
1. Increasef{decrease) on present value of defined beneflts obligation at the end of the year
(i} One percentage point increase in discount rate {1.99} (5.92}
{ii) One percentage point decrease in discount rate 213 6,70
{i} One percentage point increase in rate of salary increase 185 6.67
(it) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary increase {1.79} (6.00)
{t) One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate (9.98)

{il) One percentage point decrease in employee tumover rate Lol




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PREVATE LIMITED
Notes to standal financial stat s for the year ended 315t March, 2022

{4 amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unfess otherwise stated)
2. Sensitivity analysis method

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based an reasonably possibla changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while halding all ather assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the prajected benefit obligation as it is unifkaly that the change in
assumnptions would occur In isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has bean calculated using the projected unit

cradit method at the end of the reporting peried, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the
balance sheet.

VIl The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of tatal
Insurer managed funds NIL RIL

VIl Actuarial assumptions
1, Discount rate 5.15% 8.57%
2. Salary escalation ©.00% 6%
Indian Assured Lives
Martafity {2006-08)
Ultimate

Indian Assured Lives

. Mortality rat i
3. Mortality rate during emplayment Meortaiity 2012-14 {Urban)

4. Mortallity post retirement rate
5. Rate of employee turnover 30% 10%

Notes :

(i) The actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2022. The present value of the defined benefit
obligaticn and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method .

{ii) Discount rate is based on the prevaifing market yields of indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligations.

{ifi} The salary escalatfon rate is arrived after taking Inta consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factars, such as, demand and supply
in employment market.

Risks assotiated with defined benefit plan
Interast rate risk: .
A fallin the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present valye of the liability requiring higher provisian.

Salary risk:

The present value of the defined henafit plan liability s calculated by reference to the future salaries of members, As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

Asset liability matching risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own funds.

Mortality risk:
Since the beneflts under the plan is nat payabie for life time and payable till retiremeant age onfy, plan does not have any longevity risk.

{if). Compensated absences
The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences as per the policy of the company.

As at As at
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2027,

Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 61.32 57.10




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
{AN amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwice stared)

Note 39

& i and contingencies

a. Leases

Oy ing lease i ts — Company as lessee

The Company does not have any |sase commitmants where it acts as a lessee.

b. Commitments
Esti d of contracts ining to be executed on capital account and nat provided for:
The Company does not have any contracts remalning to be executed on capital account which it has not provided for.

Other commitments:
a) The Company enters into construction contracts with its vendors. The final amounts payable under such contracts will be based on actual measurements and nagotiated
rates, which are determinablz a3 and when the wark under the said contracts is completed.

b) The Company has #ntered into joint development agreaments with awners of land for Its construction and development. Under the agreements the Company is required to
give share in built up area from such developments in exchange of undivided share in land as stipulated under the agraements to the owners af the land and to MHADA

«. Contingent liabitities
1) Bisclosura as required by Indian Accounting

Standard (Ind AS) 37 Provisions, Contingent Income Tax Excise and Servire Tax Sales Tax demand Goods and Total
Liabilities and Contingent Assets: demand demand Services Tax

Carrying amaunt a5 at 91st April, 2020 10,325.86 154.60 28.07 - 10,508.53
Arising during the year 39053 - - 60,37 450.99
Settled/raversad {294.55) {45.02} - - {439.57)
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2021 10,321.84 109.58 28.07 §0.37 10,519.86
Carrying amount as at 315t March, 2021 10,321.84 102.58 2807 £0.37 10,519.86
Arising during the year 3,746.44 352,20 - 106.73 4,212.37
Settled/reversed - - {1.21} - (121}
Carvying amount a5 at 31st March, 2022 14,068.28 AGS. 78 26.86 167.10 14,731.02

Nature

(i] Service tax notice is also issued by Commissioner of Service tax and demand is raised for short paymant of service tax on renting of immovable property at Rmall Mulund
and also for FY 2011-12 and 2012-13 shawing the payment wrongly under as input tax credit availed instead of showing it as Service tax pald and for few of therm an appeal s
also filed in CESTAT,

{ii) The Company is 3 party to variaus legal proceedings in normal course of business tincluding cases pending before RERA authorities) and does not expect the outcome of
these proceedings to have any adverss sffect on its financial conditions, results of the operations or cash flow, Amounts of such disputes are unascertainabla.

llii) The Company is contesting the demands and the managament is of the view that it has a good case with likelihood of liability £ any loss arising out of these tax mattars
being remote. Accordingly, panding settlement of the tax dispute, no adjustment has been made in the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 The
management befieves that the uitimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a materlal adverse effact on the Company's financial position and results of its operations
or cash flows. :

{iv} As per the conractual arrangements with brokers, brokerage is payable to them on the units sold through then only when 10% of sale consideration of the respective unitis
received. Hence, such brokerage is contingent in nature which amaunts to Rs. 310.55 lakhs as at 31st March 2022,

{v) The Company has lssued an irrecoverable and unconditional corporate guarantee in respect of loan taken by R Mall Developers Private Limited jointly by the Company and
RECOSIA Ghatkopar PTE Ltd and the outstanding amount along with accrued interest as on 313t March 2022 Rs. 11,064.98 lakhs (PY Rs: 13,927.28 |akhs).

Note 40

Sepment reporting

The Company has identified following 35 its reportable segmant for the purpase of Ind AS 108-

a) Real estate segment;

b} Lease rental activity;

c] Powsr gereration

As par para 4 of the Ind A5 108 - Operating Segments, segment has baen disclosed in consolidated financial statements, Hence, no separate disclosure has been given In
tandalone financial stat t of the Company.




AUNWAL DEVELGPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial stataments for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)
Note 41

IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
{a} The amount of INR 35,528.27 lakhs |Previous Year: INR 61,507.18 |akhs } recognised in contract liabilities has baen recognised as revenue.

(b} Significant changes in contract asset and cantract liabifities balances are as follows:

Particulars As at Asat

315t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Contract llability
At the heginning of the reporting perlod - advances from customers 28,970.58 738099
Amounts received during the year 45,701.41 63,086.77
Amount recognized as revenue during the year 35,528.27 61,507.18
At tha end of the reporting pertod 39,143.72 28,970.58

Contract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers based an contractual milestones pursuant to agreements executed with such customers for construction and
sala of residential units. The terms of agreements executed with customers require the customers to make payment of consideration as fixed in the agreement on
achievement of contractual milestones though such milestones may not necessarily coincide with the point in time at which the Company tranifars control of such unlts 1o the

customer. The Company is liable for any structural or other defects In the residential units as per the terms of the agresments executed with customers and the applicable
taws and regulations.

The Company expects to satisfy the said performance obligations when {or as} the underlying real estate projects t0 which such performance cbiigations relates are
completed. Such real estate projects are in various stages of development a3 at 31 March 2022,

{c] Disaggregated revenue information
Set aut below is the disaggregation of the Company revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services,

Particulars Asat Asat
315t March, 2422 315t March, 2021
Timing of transfer of goods or services
Rewvenue from goods or services transferred to customers at a peint in
tima 37,605.82 63,390.47
Revenue from goods or setvices transferred over time 5,505.49 -
{d} Assets recognised from the casts to obtain or fuilfil a contract with a customer
Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Inventory
For goads or services transferred to customers at a point in time 33,947.16 57,895.27
For goods or sarvices transferred aver time 5,505.45 .
Brokerage ¢osts pertaining to sale of residential units 360.36 108,69

{e} The transaction price of the remaining performance obligations as at 31st March 2022 INR 1,04,137.32 lakhs, 31st March 2021 1s INR 55,581.46 lakhs. The same is expected
to ba recognised within 1 to 5 years

(f) Revenue from major customer {more than 10% of turnaver)

For the year ended For the year ended
lcul
Particulars 315t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Mr Sanjeev Taparia £,400.00 -
Mr, Ashish Dhurvendra Goel 6,200.31 -
Mr. Apurva Mahesh Shah & Mrs. Shital Apurva Shah - 10,800.00
{ii) Amount received towards sale of units from a single cust {Subsidiary Company) pertaining to real astate segment comprises an amount of Rs. 4,444.12 lakhs [ 10.31 %)

and Rs. Nit for the year endad 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 respectively. Out of such recaipts Rs. 1,400.00 lakhs have been repaid back towards cancelation of the
unit and the balance amount of Rs, 3044.12 kakhs is payable at the year 315t Mareh, 2022,




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to talone fi ial stat for the year ended 315t March, 2022

AN amaunts in RS, Lakhs, anless otherwize stated)
Note 42
Related party disclosure
A) List of related parties

[}  Person having Control
Mir. Sandeep Runwal

(id} Close family members of person having coatrol
Mr. Subhash 5. Runwal {Father)
Mrs, Chanda 5 Runwal {Mothar)
Mrs, Privanka Runwal {Spouse)
Mr. Subodh Sybhash Runwal (Brother)

i) Subsidiaries companies
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Dhruva Woellen Mills Private Limited

(ivi  Subsittary partnarship firm
Runwal Constructions

[v)  Associate
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

{wl}  Jaint venture
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retall Ventures Private Limited

(vil]  Subsidiary of joint venture
Gallena Ratail Private Limited
Histyle Retail Privata Limitad

{vili) Others {entities ¢ lled by person ioned i) & {ii} baving control or joint control]
Anand Developers
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Herizen Projects Privete Limited
M{s.Subhash Runwal HUF
Runwal & Associates
Runwa! Farms Private Limited
Runwal Foundation
Rupri Consultancy LLP
Ruprl Consultancy Private Limited
Sandesp Construction
WValue constructions SRA*
Runwal and Kunal Venture**
Runwal Wonder Yenture**
Runwal Financed

{ix)  ¥eymanagement personnel [KMP):
Fallavi Matlari, Director
Ravi Sharma, Director {Appointed an Wef 24-02-2022)
5ulata Rag, Director {Appointed on Wef 24.02-2022)
Sanjay Daga, Direckor {Resigned on 15-03-2022)
Kishorkymar ain, Directar [Reslgned on 27-10-2021)
Mahesh lyer, Director (Resigned on 16-05-2022)

[x)  Relative of KMP
Mrs, Babita Daga (Spouse of Mr. Sanjay Daga)

# Runwal Finance has been dissolved on 31st March, 2021
* Retired from partnership firm from 30th September, 2021
"* Retired from partnership firm from 31st March, 2021

B} The following transactions were carried aut with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

5r. Nature of transaction / relationship For the year ended For the year ended

No. 31 2032 35t M, 2021

1 Salefpucchase of material

Sale
Runwal Constructions 17.80 359
Dhruva Waollan Mills Private Limited 3.55 0.93
Horlzon Projects Private Limited 65.54 25.28
R retall Ventures Private Limited - 15.43
Histyle Retall Private Limitad, 064 3.57
Purchase

Arfane Orgacham Private Limited . 125 -
Dhruva Woalen Mills Private Limited 0.46 -
Runwal Constructions 2172 3.24

Harlzon Projects Private Limited 0.29 1.e2




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to dal 1 stat for the year ended 315t March, 2022
Al amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unfess othenvise stated)
2 Sake of flats
Mrs. Chanda 5. Runwal 2.086.67

3 Income fram sub-letting

R Ratail Venturss Private Limited - 3290
4 imik of exp

R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 08%

Chruva Woolen Mills Private Limited 2343 .

5 Advance received against material supply

Histyle Retail Private Limited 400,00 200.00
Repayment of advance

Histyle Retail Private Limited 400.00 300.00

R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 882,50

& Sale of electricity
R tall Developers Privata Limited 342.79 478,98

7 Business facility services
R Mall Developars Privata Limited 70.80 69,90
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 360,00 200,00

8  Maintenance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limived 19.55 19.88

9 Maintenance service & property tax received

Mrs. Chanda %, Runwal 2.59 254
10 Dividend accrued
Anand Devetopers o1 0.01
Mrs. Chanda 5 Runwal - Q.01
M5 Subhash Runwal HUF - .01
Wrs. Privanka Runwal €11 011
Runwal Associates .01 Lol
Runwal Constructions Q.01 Q.01
Mr. Sandesp Aunwal 3.21 1.23
Mr. Subhash 5. Runwal - 178
Mr. subodh Subhash Runwal 1.34 133

11 vestment in partnership firm/AQP

Runwal Kunal Venture - 17.596

Runwal Wonder Venture - (1,063.71)
Runwal Flnance - {972.01)
Vahue Constructions 5RA - 3431

Runwal Constructiens (fined and current capital) 9,04922 -

12 Share of pofit f(loss) from AQPHirm

Runwal Finance - 0.08
Value Constructions SR - 0.01
Runwal Constructions 788.99 -

13 Security deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited 19,809.53 -

Rapaid
Horizon Projects Private Umited 15,542.00 1,165.00

Security deposit taken
Raceived

Runwal Constructions - 20.23
R Retail Yantures Private Limited BB2.50

R Retall Yentures Private Limited 8§82.50 -

14 Intercorporate deposits received

Taken
Ariana Orgachem Frivate Limited 200.00 8,403.00
Runwal Farms Private Limited 50800
Repaig
Ariane Orgachem Privats Limlted . 200.00 13,765.14
15 Intercorporate deposits given
Given
Harizon Projects Private Limited - 8,140.00
R Ratall Vantures Private Limited 200.00 100.00
Avalor Developers Private Limited 450.50 1,600.00
Histyle Retail Private Limited 917.00 -

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 283.00 -




RURWAL DEVELDOPERS PRIVATE UMITED

Motes ta d3lane financial stat ts Tor the year endod 315t March, 2022

17

i3

19

w0

21

2

25

5

r o

]

[#]

1

Repald

Horlzon Projects Private Umited

R Retall Yentures Private Umited
fvalor Developers Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limitad
Arlane Orgechem Private Umited

Loan repatd
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mrs. Chanda 5 Runwal

Purchase of equity shage of R Retal] Ventures Private Umlted

Mes. Privanka Runwal
Mr. Sandesp Runwal

Inwestmient n equlty shares
Avalor Developers Private Limited

Chruva Woolen Mills Private Lirlted {CWMPL]
Aavarsal of falr value galn on Invastment in (DWHPL)

A Retalf venturas Private Umited

tvestment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Umited

Interast on debenturgs
R Mall Devetapers Private Limited

Amount repald to relative of direchor
Mrs. Dablta Caga

SR expendlture
Runwal Foundation

Salary paid
Mz. Sanfy Daga
M. Mahesh yer
Mr. Ravl Sharma

Brokerage charges pakl
Ruprl Consultanty Private Umited

Professional fees pald
Ruprl Conzultancy Private Limlted

Refund af capital invested In substdiary
Valuie Constructions SRA

Pald to parinership firm as retired partners balance

Runwal Finance

Advance against flat
Advance recelved

Dhruva Weallen Mills Private Limited

B -3 all

Dhruva Wasallen Mills Privats Limited

Guarantee taken
Mr. Sandoep Runwal*
{refer nate 21)

Sharing of Infrastructure
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Umited
Runwal Constructlons

Dhruva Woollen Mills Prhvate Limited

Horizon Projects Private Limlited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limltad
Aupri Consultaney Private Lmited
Huprl Consulancy LLP

Runwal Foundation

[Teanzaction of hon monetiry nature)

Amount dus to f from related parilas

Iater eorporate depasit
Ghen
Horiton Projects Private Umited
Avaler Davelopers Private Umited

Taken
Rumwal Farms Private Limited

AN amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unless atherwlse stated}

§,655.a3 7,605.08

200.00 558,50

1,250.00 B00.00
917.00 -
283.00 .

1,892.21 360,00

134.52 6E4.35
1.20 -
1.80 .

- 1.00
20,679,89 .
2,294.15 -
.00 -
1,000.00 -
5447 -

- 150.00
176.00 17314
168.07 §1.96

- LE7

19.05 .

7491 -

59.00 -

9,37243 -
996.74 -
4,444.12 -
1,400.00 -

As at Asat

— SnstMarch, 2020 _ mgMawchn

- 8,655.93
0.50 £00.00




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to standalonn financial statements far the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Ait omounts In Rs, Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

2 later cotporate guarantes
Glyen
R Mall Developers Private Limited 12,000.00 22,000.00
3 Loans & advances
Payable
Mr. Sandaep Runwal - 1,892.21
Mrs, Chanda 5 Runwal - 134.52
4 Securlty deposit
Glvan
Horizon Prajects Private Umited 5,923.93 -
5 Recelvable/{payable) as rettred partaer
Runwal Finance - (696.44)
Runwal Wonder Yenture 661.45 66145
& lavestment of capltsl in partnership firen (fined and cureant capital)
Valus Construetions SRA - 3,322,732
Runwal Constructions 9.049.28 -
7 Investment n 2quity shares
Awalor Bevalopers Private Limitad 1.00 1.00
Wheefabrator Alloy Castings Umlted 1,720.85 1,720.85
R Mall Davelopers Privats Umited 463.00 463.00
Dhruva Woalien Mills Private Limited 3,294.59 3,294.42
R Retall ventures Private Limited 3.00 -
8 investment In preference shares
R Reralt ventures Private Limited 20,210.00 20,2:0.00
% Invastment In debantures
A Mall Develapers Private Limited 49,02 -
10 Trade receivables
Runwal Constructions ¢.27 350
Horizon Projects Privata Limited 137.39 76.15
R Mall Devalopers Private timited 58.29 (104.10)
Arlana Orgachem Private Limited - 9.97
11 Trade payable
Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 04§ -
Runwal Constructions 158 .35
Horizon Projects Privata Limited 2.88 2ge
12 Relmbarsement receivables
Chruva Woollen Mills Private Limited 22.ad -
13  Payable agafust cancellation of flak
Dhruva Wouolen Mills Private Limited 3,044,12 -
14 Brokersge charges payable
Ruprl Cansultancy Private Umited 74,91 -
15 Professions] faes payatila
RupH Consultancy Private Umited 59.00 -
16 Guaramtze taken
Mr, Sandeep Aunwal® - -
{refer note 21
17  Dividesd payable
Anand Developers a.01 0.0
Mrs. Chanda 5 Aunwal - .01
M/s.Subhash Runwal HUF - Q.01
Mrs, Priyanka Aunwa 011 011
Runwal Assoclates 0.01 001
Runwal Constructions 001 001
Mr. Sandeep Runwal arn 1.33
Mr. Subbash 5, Runwal - 1.78
Mr. Subadh Subhash Rurwal 134 133
For the year ended For the year ended
312t March, 2022 31st March, 2033
Campensatian of key it ; | of the Compauy
Nature of transactian / relationshlp 2
Shert-term emplyyes benefits 18712 69.13
Post-employ penslon and medical benefits* - -
Other long term berafits” - -
Terminaticn benefits - -
Share based payments - ) -
* Provislon for gratulty and feave entashment banefits are o Ined on fal valuation basls. Hence the same Is not seperately reported
here far KMPs,

Total compensation padd to key management personnel

The transacticns with related parties are made on teyms equivatent to those that preval In wm’s length iany, This Is
undertaken =ach financlal year threugh exarnining the financlal positon of the relsted party and the market in which the related party operates.
Dutstanding balences at the year-end sre unsecured and settlement aceurs In cash,
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notesto lalone financigd

Note 44

Information on associates, joint venture & subsidiaries

Name of the entity

Subsidiaries

Avalor Deyelapers Private Limited
Dhruva Wollen Mills Private Limited
Runwal Constructions

Joint venture
R mall Develogers Private Limited
R Ratail Yentures Private Limtted {RRVPL)

Subsidiary of joint venture

Percantage holding of joint ventura [RRVPL}
Galleria Retail Private Limited

Histyle Retail Private Limited

Asthon Developers Private Limited

Associates

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

Mote 45
Fair values disclasure

for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Principle place of business

India
India
India

Indig
Indlz

India
India
India

India

{4l omounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Percentage of voting power

As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

100% 100%
51.00% 14.37%
95.00% -
49.75% 49,75%
43.57% 43.57%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%%
100.00% 100.00%%
34.26% 34.26%

The fair values of the tinancial assets and ilabilities are included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between market participarnts at the
measurement date, other than In  farced or liquidation sals,
Fair value of cash and short-term duposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current llabilities, short tetm loans from banks and other financial institutions
approximate their carrying amounts |argely due to the short-term maturities of these Instrumants.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the falr value of financlal Instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitles
Level Z:inputs are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are obsarvable for the assats or liability, either directly {ie. prices) o indirectly [i.e. derlved from prices).

Level 3: Inputs that are not based on cbservable market data ungbservable inputs. Fair value are determined In whole or in part using a valuation rmodel based on assumptions that are

nelther supported by prices from abservable eurrent market transactions in the same instrumant not are they based on available markat data.

Careying t Fair value
Fair value through
As at 31st March, 2022 Fair value through | other ] Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
profit or loss comprehensive
income

A, Finandal assets
Non-current

Investments G1.89 - 42,673.01 62,89 - 42,673.01

Loans - - - - -

Other financial assats - - 945.40 - - -
Cureant

Investments - - 9,954.28 - - 9,954.28

Trade receivables - - 1,132.81 - - -

Cash and cash squivalents - - 2,508.73 . . .

Bank balance other than (i} above - - 511.32 - - -

Loans - - 1,454.03 - - 1.434.03

Other financial agsats - - 6,886.26 - - -
Total 62.89 - 66,065.84 62.89 - 54,081.32
B. FInancial liabilities
Nowm-current

Borrowings - - 28,342,089 - 28,277.19 64.90
Current

Borrowings - - 9,379.50 - 7.641.18 1,738.32

Trade payables 4,384.79 - - -

Other financlai liabilithas - - €,172.73 - - -
Total - - 48,884.11 - 35,918.37 1,803,22




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
HNotes to falone finandal

ts for the year ended 315t March, 2022

{Ait amounts lin Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Carrying amount Fair value
Asat31st March, 2021 |Fair value through F::lr!:: fua hroveN
. Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 tevel 2
profit or loss comprehensive
ingpme
A, Finandgial assets
Mon-current
Investrnents 3,322.73 319442 22,494.86 - 2911201
Loans - - 1,772.25 - 1,777.25
COther financial assets - 42258 - -
Current
Investments - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 738.97 . .
Cash and cash equivalents - - 8,513.55 - -
Bank balance other than (iii} 2bove - - 11140 - -
Loans - - 10,128.43 - 10.128.43
COther financial assets - - 1,805.72 - -
Total 3,322.73 3,294.42 45,992.75 - 41,017.69
8. Financial liabilities
Mon-current
Borrowings - - 16,268.43 26,203.59 &4.90
Current
Borrawings - - 10,587.18 8,648.86 1,738.32
Trade payables 4,913.13 - -
Other financlal liabilities - - 17,024,832 - -
Total - - 58, 793.62 35,052.45 1,8038.22

During the reporting period ending 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 , there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
Inter corporate dapesits, trade payables and other current

The management 3ssessed that cash and cash equivalents, loans, short term depositsfloans/overdrafts, trade receivables,
llabilities /assets approximate thelr carrying amounts largely dus to the short-tarmn maturities of these instruments.

The fair values for security deposits approximates Its earrying armount as the same are repayable on demand.

Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost

Current loans measured 3t amortised cost Includes inter corporate loans, the Fair value of which is 35 stated below:

Particulars

Loans

As loans are current in nature, fair value of inter corporate loans given are considered ta be at carrying amount,

Note 46
Capital Management

As at

31st March, 2022

1,454.03

Asat

31st March, 2021

1012843

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
parant. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the sharsholder value.

The groups policy is to maintsin a strong capital base 5o as to maintain investor, creditor,

rroniters the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company managas its capital structure and makes adfustments in light of chan
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharshalders,
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capltal plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowi

Particulars

Borrowings{Mote 21 and 24}
Less: cash ahd cash equivalents (Note 14)
Net debt

Equity

Cther equity

Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business, Management

ges In economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain of adjust
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company menitors capitai using a gearing

nEs, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding

Asat As at
315t March, 2022 315k March, 2071
37,711.59 36,855.67
250873 8,513.55
35,212.36 2834212
€368 63.68
74,452.13 7283396

1.09.735.67 1,01,239.76

32.09%

25.00%

In order ta achieve this oversll objective, the Company’s capita) management, amangst cther things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the Interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in mesting the financlal covenants would permit the bank to immed|ately call laans and borrowings. There

have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any Interest-bearing laans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or pracesses for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
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RUNYYAL DE'-I"ELOFERS FRI\H\TE LIBUTED:

Notes tg standal ts far the year ended 315t March, 2022

{AN amouets in fs. Lokhs, uaiess ctherwite stoted)
Note 18
Significant Accounting fud, (312 and

The preparation of the Compan vs Standalong hrlunc:sl Sratements n conformity wath ingd AS regquires managemant to mzke judpemeants,
estimates and assumptions that stfect the reported amecynls of cavenues, expenses, assets and Babilites, and the accompanying disciosuras, and
the disciosure of contingent lishilitias, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcames that require 2 matenial
adjustrent o the carrpng ameunt of assets or fabiities affected o future periods. The estimates and asscoated assurmptions are based on
histoeical eaperience and various other facters that are bofisved to be reasonable wader the droumstanges existing when the financial
statements wore proepared. The estimates and underiying assumptiens are reviewed on an ongoing base Rewsion b9 accounting estimates is
eecopgnizad in e year in which the ostirmatas are revisad and In any future year affecied.

Note 4%

Comszgquent to COVID-19, the Goverement of india declared lockdown on harch 23, 2020 resultng in the Company suspending its sperations in
urgeing projects during tive Iockdown pertod, Frnrn lenie, 2020 omwards, the Company has resymed construction activty on all its eopslng
prajects. The Campany has performed compret of the pocsibie impact of the crpting COVID-19 pandemis on 1halr operations,
ligusidity position and consequantial impact on the reahrability of is asser bakance induding carrying value of wentonles a3 31 315t March 2023
‘I\c Campany does nat expect any matetial impact of LOVID-1Y on 1it's operaticns, houidity position or on realisabdity ot it’s assets.

Nate 50

Sivare of profit fromy investment in paitnership firm {"the frin™ and mvestnent in the firm is based on Ananciat statements of the such firo at
audited try ihe respective auditor. The audited JGAAR financial statements of the parership fies Buneal Constructions bw.e | 15t Ogober, 2021
I whick tha Compary 15 a parmner axcept for complying with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Raad Estate Transacoons {revised 2012) are
preparad in actordance with the accounting standards notilied under Compames {Accounting Standard) Rules, JIGE (25 amendad] under the Act
reag with fiule 7 of the Compantes laccounts] lules, 3014 (as smendad), and other gererally sceepled acogunting principles in Inda feollectively
refersed te as “ledian GAAPT]

Notc 51

The Lompany has imvestiments in a jointly contrallad ety amounting to Rs, 20,213 lags (Provicus year B5. 22,210 |acs) & at March 31, 200,
While this entity has incuired losses and far have negativa net warth as a0 the yaar end, the viderbying projects in thes ertity are in the early
stages o davelopment jreal estate and riall rentals) and are expecied to achievo adequate profitability pn substantizl completion and / ar have
current market values of cerigin prapertics which pre in excess of the carrving values, The Company cansiders its inwestorents in this entlty as
Ing term and strategre in natire. Accordingly, o grovision s corsidered necsssary towards diminution in the vaigz of the Company's
invistments in such entiny.

Mote 52

Quring the year the Company had inuesiments 1n cagital account of 3 gactnesshap fIivm “Valug Constructian SRAY, Profit sharing ratio of the
Companyin it 35 a *arteer was of 51%. Though it has s signibcant predit shating ratio, by wrtud of contractual arrangements between the
partners of this parmarship firm, the Company does not exarcise contral or any significant inllvence on this partrership Brm. Hende, this
invastnant in partnership Aren is categonsed as otters and not as a Subsidlary / Jolnt YVeoture / Associate, As on 31sT March, 2022 tha Company
is 1ol & partner o this Brin.

Note 53
Congtruction Woek In Progress incudes.
As at Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Approvad Fees B415.55 1,82240
Employee Senefits 336492 1.969.91
Flaance Dot 411103 3,250.61
tand 25,135.36 1%.816.39
Materisls & Labaur i9.vias: 4,125, 7}
Othess 5562 58 4,152.78
64,308.55 ik 166.29
Note 54
Cetals ¢f corporate social respansbility {C3R) expenditures
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
3ist March, 2022 31t March, 2033
Gruss ampuntrequired to be spent for CSR activity 90,18 173.14
Amouat spent during the year * 19000 171.14

* The amount spent durmg the year has been incurred for the purpoeses other than construction/ acquisiuen of any assets. (Aso refer nove
42(22))




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial stat ts for the year ended 315t March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Mote 55

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

Particulars Asat As at

' 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Amount unpaid as at year end - principal 101.74 373.07
Amount unpaid as at year end - interest ] Mil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro
Smalt and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 [the "Act')along with the
amaunts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year. it Mil
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making
payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year} but without adding the interest specified under Act. Nil Nil
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the ead of each
accounting year. Nil Nil

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
suceeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpase of disallowance as a deductibie
expenditure under section 23 of the Act. il il

Disclosure of outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise under trade payables is based on the information available with the
Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
Further, outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises are on account of deficiency in servica/ psoducts/ documents. Hence, interest
has not been provided on these averdue amounts. This fact has also been disclosed in the MSME form | {retun) filed on half yearly basis
by the Campany with RQC. This has been relied upon by the auditor,

Note 56
The Company carries out its business ventures through various entities. The funds required for projects in those entitles in certain instances are
secured through financial guarantess and securities of the Company. Further, the loans taken by these enfities have also been secured by
primary charge on the underlying assets of the s2id entities. As per management, in view of value of primary / underlying assets provided as
security to the lenders being greater than the outstanding loans cbligation, no additional lizbility will develve on the Company in spite of the
guarantee provided by the Company. In the above amounts, interest and other charges are not included as the same cannot be quantified as per
managament.

Congidering the restrictive covenants, value of underlying securities being greater than the outstanding loans, hence the fair value of the
guarantee is Nil,

Note 57
Other Information
1 The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property.
2 The Company has availed various borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly

returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of
account,

3 The Campany registered all the charges and satisfaction of charges with registrar of companies within statutory period.
4 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
S The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year,
& The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) ar entityfies), including foreign entities {intermediaries)
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the
Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

7 The Company has hot received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {funding party) with the understanding
{whether recarded in writing or ctherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

by provitle any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
8 The Company daes not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Inceme Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1962).

9 The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or
ather lender, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulter issued by the Reserve Bank of India. ’j—“\\




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Alf amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess atherwise stated)

Note 58
{i} There are no new standards that are notified upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

{ii) Other than disciosed, there are no other significant events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as at the
Balance Sheet date

{lii} Previous period figures have been re-grouped { re-classified to conform to the requirements of the amended Schedulz il ta the Lompanies
Act, 2013 effective 1st April 2021.

As per gur report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. For Runwal Developers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. Mo 302049¢

b st ff3

e

Amit Hundia Sufata Rao Pallavi Matkari
Partner Director Director
kMembership No. 120761 DIN; 03478837 DIN ; 08054518
Date - 30-09-2022 Date - 30-09-2022

Flace - Mumnbai Place - Mumbai



Singht & Co.
Chartered Accountants

B2 402 B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor, Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013, India
Tel : +91 (0) 22-6662 5537 / 38  E-mail : mumbai@ginghico.com website : www.singhico.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Runwal Developers Private
Limited (“the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as the “Group”), its joint ventures, associate and their step down entities, which comprise
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on standalone audited financial
statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Com panies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Group, its joint ventures and associate as at 31 March 2022, and their
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group, its joint venture and
associate in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI"”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidences obtained by us and by other auditors in respect of their report referred to in the
other matter paragraph section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

KOLKATA (H.O) NEW DELHI CHENNAI MUMBAI BANGALORE



Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

B2 402 B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor, Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013. India
Tel : +61 (0) 22-6662 5537 / 38 E-mail : mumbai@singhico.com website : www.singhico.com

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made
available to us at a later date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures and
associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prese ntation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management of the com panies
included in the Group and of its joint ventures and its associate is responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group and of its joint venture and its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures
and its associate are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and
of its joint ventures and its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. ‘

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and of its joint ventures
and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our o pinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial state ments,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the consalidated financial statements that,
indjvidually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. The comparative consolidated Ind AS financial statement as at and for the year ended March 31,
2021, were audited by the predecessor auditor, on which the auditor expressed an unmodified
opinion vide their audit report dated November 30, 2021. Accordingly, we do not express any
opihion on the figures reportzd in the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021.

2. As mentioned in note no. 60 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the comparative
financial statements have been restated in accordance with the requirement of Appendix C of Ind
AS 103 - “Business Combination”. Hence, the comparative consolidated figures to that extent are
not audited.

3. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of twa
subsidiaries whose financial statements include total assets of INR 1,15,229.52 lakhs as at March
31, 2022, and total income of INR 1,614.56 lakhs, total net loss after tax of INR (17,315.23 lakhs)
net cash inflows of INR 1013.97 lakhs and total comprehensive income of INR (17,313.20 lakhs)
for the year ended March 31, 2022, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose audit report have been furnished
to us by the management.

4. The Consolidated Financial Statements also includes the Group's share of the net profit after tax
INR (1,086.24 lakhs) and total comprehensive income of INR (1,079.10 lakhs) for the year ended
March 31, 2022, in respect of two joint ventures and three subsidiaries of one of these two joint
ventures, whose financial statements and other financial information have not been audited by
us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose audit report have been
furnished to us by the management.

5. The Consolidated Financial Statements also includes the Group's share of the net profit after tax
INR 374 lakhs and total comprehensive income of INR INR 372.04 lakhs for the year ended March
31, 2022, in respect of an associate and one joint venture of this associate. Financial statements
of associate have been audited by other auditors whose audit report have been furnished to us by
the management. Further, the joint venture of this associate is also not audited by us or any other

A f»fﬁ\?ﬁ\ auditor. Such financial statements of the joint venture of this associate are management certified.
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6. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates or their step-down entities is based solely on the audit
report of such other auditors / management accounts, and the procedure performed by us as
stated under ‘Basis for Opinion’ paragraph.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

ii. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We/ the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of consolidated financial statements;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its
subsidiaries (Companies) , joint ventures and associate (Companies) and their step down
entities (Companies) of such nature, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group with reference to consolidated financial statements as on March 31, 2022 and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report;

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on standalone financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate:
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i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, its joint ventures and associate — refer note
44(c) to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group, joint ventures and associate did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Group in accordance to the provision of the Act, and rules made there under.

iv. (a) The Management of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act and their step down entities
have represented to us or to their respective auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies)
including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, either directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective management of the Group, its joint ventures and associate whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act and their step down entities have
represented to us or their respective auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint
venture or associate from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate shall, either directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, we report that nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations as above contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Board of Directors of the Group, its joint ventures and associate have not proposed
dividend for the year, accordingly, compliance to section 123 of the Act to the extent, it
applies to the declaration of dividend is not required.
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iii. In our opinion, under Section 197(16) of the Act, Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on
‘Overall maximum managerial remuneration and managerial remuneration in case of absence or
inadequacy of profits’ is not applicable to the Group and its joint ventures and step-down entities
of these joint venture, as these being a private Company. However, based on the consideration of
reports of statutory auditor of the associate, the managerial remuneration for the year ended
March 31, 2022 has been paid/provided by the associate is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No: 120761
UDIN: 22120761BATBRV6173

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2022
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

According to information and explanations given to us, following companies are also included in
consolidated financial statements, have certain remarks included in their reports under Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”) which have been reproduced as per the requirement of the
Guidance Note on CARO:

Sr. | Name CIN Holding Company/ | Clause number of
No. Subsidiary/ Joint | the CARO report
Venture/ which is qualified
Associate or is adverse
1 Runwal Developers | U70100MH1988PTC046631 Holding Company 3(iii)(b)
Private Limited
2 R Mall Developers | U45201MH2006PTC163273 | Joint Venture 3(i)(c)
Private Limited
3 | Histyle Retail | U70109MH2019PTC319330 | Subsidiary of a | 3(vii)(a) & 3 (ix)
Private Limited Joint Venture (d)

Further, according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of the following companies
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the CARO report relating to
them has not been issued by their auditors:

Sr. | Name CIN Holding Company/

No. Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/
Associate

1 Runwal Constructions Not Applicable Subsidiary

2 Avalor Developers Private Limited | U70109MH2019PTC324563 Subsidiary

3 Galleria Retail Private Limited U70200MH2019PTC319329 | Subsidiary of a Joint
Venture

4 Aethon Developers Private Limited | U70109MH2021PTC364477 Subsidiary of a Joint
Venture

5 SR Constructions Not Applicable Joint Venture of an
Associate

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No: 120761
UDIN: 22120761BATBRV6173
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 30, 2022
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
consolidated financial statements of Runwal Developers Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
(Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), its joint ventures and
associate as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Group and its subsidiaries, its joint ventures and associate,
which are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
rocedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
isstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations’ of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, its joint ventures, associate have maintained (wherever applicable), in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31,2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far
as it relates to two joint ventures and one associate which is audited by other auditor, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such joint ventures and associate. Further as subsidiary, a
partnership firm is consolidated and report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls is not applicable to it.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Amit Hundia

Partner

Membership No: 120761
UDIN: 22120761BATBRV6173

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2022
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HAUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolldated Ralance sheet as at 31st March, 2022
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTCOM5631

{All in Rs. Lakhs, unlass otherwize stated)
Asat Asat
Parthutars Note 315t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Asgats
Non-turrent assats
Froperty, plant and equipment 3A 782153 B,012.32
Capital work in progress 38 1.600.21 -
Right-of-use assat 4 107,60 -
Investment proparty 5 51,990.09 4,547.95
Goodwill an consolidation 7 0.22 Q.22
Intangible asset 3 4.44 9.85
Equity accounted investaes 8 30,501.55 34,830.17
Financial assots
1} Other non current Investments 9 62.89 -
1) Loans 10 - 1,777.25
i) Other financial assets 11 1,219.10 430.58
Nen current tax assets (net) 6,473.36 167.92
Other non-turrent assets 12 163.21 780.05
Total non current asset 1,00,2465.60 50,556.32
Curcent assets
Inventaries 13 1,70,760.27 1,34,628.14
Ananclal assets .
i} Investments 12 8,000.00 7,000.00
ii} Trade recelvables 15 197153 73807
ill) Cash and cazh equlvalents 16 1527518 11,931.80
iv] Bank balance other than (ill} above 17 137194 212,52
v} Loans 18 8,030.40 10,651.23
vi) Other financial assets 19 B8.179.78 4417.36
Other current assets 0w 25,728.78 13,728.99
Total current assets 2,40,337.88 1,83,309.01
Total Assets 3,40,584.48 2,33,965.33
Equity and llabllitles
Enuity
Equity Share capital 21 62,61 63.68
Other equity n 1,15,925.85 82,089.25
Equilty attelbutable to owner’s of the Company 1,15,988.45 £2,152.93
Non-contralling (nterest 24,023.23 16,132.01
Total equity 1,40,011.69 98,284.94
Nen-current llabilites:
Flnancial Liabilides
f] Barrowings 23 51,516.12 v 2TETLTS
Provigdons 24 17117 156.22
Deferred tax liabHities {net) 15 18,611.31 {1,050.27)
Total non current llabilitigs ) 70,300.60 26,777.69
Current Rabilitfes: -
Flnancial llabllitles
K Bormawings 26 22,381.9% 11,145.95
H) Trade payahles 27
{3) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf 493.64 549,15
ehtatprises :
{b) total outstanding dusas of ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises 9,050.94 6,334.04
il Other financial llabllities 28 3,365.23 17,165.51
Other current liabllitles P 92,816.17 71,796.49
Provisions 30 6005 14.40
Cutrent tax Habilities (net) 2,104.17 1,807.15
Yotal current abllitles 1,30,272.19 1,08,802.70
Total equity and lkabllities 3,40,584.48 2,33,865.33
Summary of significant accounting pollclas 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the ¢ lidatad financlal

As per our vepart of even date attached

Far $inghl & Co. for
Chartersd Accountants
Fiam Regn. No 302049E &3\

Amit Hunddla Sulata Reo
Partner Director
Membership No. 120761 DIN: 03478837
Date - 30th Septemier, 2022

Place - Mumbal Place - Mumbal

For and on behall of the board of directors

Date - 30th September, 2022

Pallavl Matkarl
Director
PIN : 08054518




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIWMITED
Consolidated Staterment of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022
CIN NO- UF0100MH 1988PTCO46631
(Al amounts in Rs. Lokbs, unfess otherwise stoted)
Particutars Note For the year anded Far the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 31 ¥6,849.06 80,846.57
QOther income 32 572128 5,114.2%
Tatal income 82,570.34 85,960.84
Expenses
Cost of construction and devalopment expenses 33 68,978.37 22,043.48
Changes in inventories of finished goods and construction work-tn-progress 34 {12,202.03) 48,747.51
Employee benefits expenses 35 1.161.70 487.15
Finance costs 36 2,344.55 1,395.09
Depreciation and amariisation expenses 37 979.37 551.74
Other expenses 38 421651 1,513.85
Total Expenses £65,478.47 74,738.82
Profit before tax before share of profitf{loss) of joint venture/associates 17,091.87 11,222 02
Share of Profit / (}nss) of foint venture/ Associate {F12.24} 1,542.99
Profit before tax 16,379.63 12,765.01
Tax expenses
Income tax {3,680.64) {3,863.57)
WAT Credit reversal - (395.38)
Deferred tax (creditlfcharge (19,660.82) 1,039.45
Short f [Excess} tax of previous years 0.23 10.46)
Total tax expenses [23.351.23) (3,219.96}
Profit for tha year [6,971.60) 5,545.05
Other Comprehensive (ncome
[i} Items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses 10.55 22.41
Share of other comprehensive income in associate and joint venture 5.18 2.84
(i) Income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss 12.96) {5.64}
Total ather comprehensive income for the year 12.77 19.61
Total comprehensive income for the year (5,958.83) 9,564.66
Profit for the year attributable to:
[T) Owners of parent (12,517.85) 6,538.02
{ill Mon-controlling interast 5,546.25 3,007.03
Other Comprehensive income Far the year attributable to:
{i) Owners of parent 15.35 20.57
(it) Non-controlling interest {2.58) [0.96)
Total Comprehensive lncome for the year attributable to:
(1) Owners of parent {12,502.50) 6,558.59
(i} Mon-controling interest 5,543,67 3.,006.07
Earnings per equity share 39
Basic [Face value of Re.1 each) {3.18) 4.28
Diluted {Face vaive of Re.1 zach)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financiai statements.
As per our report of even date attachad For and an behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. Far Ru
Chartered Accountants ) :
Firm Regn. No 30204%€ 7
S |
Amit Hundis Sujatafao Pallavi Matkari
Partnar Director
1Memhership MNo. 120761 DIN: 03478837 DIN ; 0BD54518
Date - 30th September, 2022 Date - 30th September, 2022
Place - Mumbai Pizce - Mumbai




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO- U70100MH1983PTCD46631

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{alf amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net ¢ash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Deferred Expenses from joint development arrangement
Provision for expected credit loss
Fixed assets written off
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset
Loss on sale of fixed asset
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund
finance income
Dividend income
Share of Profit from Partnership and ACPs
Share of {Profit)/loss of joint venture/ associate

Operating profit before working capital changes

Waorking capital adjustments

{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

{Increase)/decrease in inventories

{Increase)/decrease in other current and non current financtal assets
{Increase)/decrease in other current and non current assets

Increase f{decrease) in trade payables

Increase fidecrease] in other current financial liabilities

Increase /{decrease] in other current liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Changes due to working capital movements
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from / (used in) operating aclivities

Investing activities
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets
{Increase)/decrease in right to use assets
{Increase)/decrease in capital work in progress
Advances against land (given)/repaid [net}
Withdrawal of investment from partnership firm
Investment in equity shares and debentures of joint venture
Invesiment in units of mutual funds
Redemption/ (increase) in bank deposit
Loans and advances to related parties and others (given)/repaid {net)
Addition to cash and cash equivalent on account of acquisition of subsidiary
Dividend received
Interest received {finance incame)

Net cash flows from f {used in) investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid
Equity share issuance cost {net of tax)
Armount paid to retiring partners
Repayment of non current borrowings
Proceeds from non current borrowings
Repayment of current borrowings (nat}
Proceeds/{repayment) from current borrowings [net)

Net cash flows from / {used in) financing activities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
16,379.63 12,765.01
979.37 551.74
2,344.56 4,583.59
5,505.49 -
479.43 -
2.97 -
20.12 0.09
23.32 7.08
{5,505.49) -
(1.44) {6.64)
- 1.78
{1.64) (4.71)
(687.22) {105.85)
{0.02) -
- {0.13)
712.24 {1,542.99}
20,251.32 16,248,98
{952.40) 209.19
5,085.76 49,562.13
2,823.48 [2,667.25)
(12,477.77) {602.71}
2,661.36 {1,146.85)
{10,769.58) {41,124.03)
{2,854.09) 17,638.76
- {26.65)
{16,473.24) 21,842.59
{9,670.19) {3,506.1.7)
{5,892.11) 34,585.40
7.06 51.58
{180.59} {143.69)
{113.57) -
12.75 -
94.82 -
332273 5471.97
{1,003.00) .
{61.25) -
{1,565.88) 55.55
4,194.80 2,657.43
340.44 0.91
0.02 -
444.12 110.12
5,492.45 8,203.87
(3,843.07) {5,536.11)
{3.14)
{2,807.61}
(18,170.25) (24,250.17)
26,865.23
{1,594.46)
3,007.70 {2,866.87)
3,454.40 {32,653.15)
3,054.74 10,136.12
11,931.78 1,795.66
14,986.52 11,931.78




]

RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022
CIN NG- U70100MH1988PTC046631

{Alf amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

{Particutars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Componants of cash and cash equivalents {refer note 16)

a) Batance with banks in current accounts 2,674.02 11,782.96
b) Balance with banks in deposit accounts with original maturity Jess than three maonths 11,143.17 97.50
¢} Chegue-in-hand 1,400.00 -
d) Cash on hand 57.9% 51.34
Total 15,275.18 11,931.80
Less: Book overdraft considered as cash and cash equivalent for cash flow {283.66) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,986.52 11,931.80
Notes:

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
b} Reconciliations of liablities arising from financing activities ;

Particulars As at As at

315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 38,817.69 66,109.30
Cash flow 10,108.22 [27,117.04)
On account of business acguisition 24,996 .50
Mon cash changes (22.30) {174.57)
Balance at the end of the year 73,900.11 38,817.69
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For Runwal Developers Private Limited

|Firm Regn. No 302049E S\NGHy
* 5
‘ o E,, ;s
E—— b’
Amit Hundia Paltavi Matkari ?
Partner Director Director
Mernbership No. 120761 DIN: 03478837 DIN : 08054518
Date - 30th September, 2022 - Date - 30th September, 2022

Mace - Mumbai Place - Mumbat
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

[« lidated Stat of ch In equity for year ended 31st March 2022
1 Group's Batkground
The Consolidated financlal stat: its camprise financial st of R | Develapers Private Limited (the Company], its subsidiaries {collectively, the Group),
assoclates and Jalntly controlled antity for the year ended 31-March-2022.
The Company is a privata limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiclled {n India having its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, Sth Flaor, OF.
Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatt| Signal, Sion [East), Mumbai - 400022,
Thesa lidated fi fal of the Group for the year ended 31t March 2022, were autharised forissue by the Board of Directors.
2 Summary of significant accounting policies
¥ Basis of preparation
2. Compliance with ind AS
The fidated fi Jal of the Group has been pregared in accordance with Indlan Accaunting Standards {Ind A5} notified under the Companles |indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Sectlon 133 of the Companies Act 2013 [as amended from time to time] and presentation requirements of Divigion Il of
Schedule 11l ta the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compllant Schedule 1), as applicable to this Rnancial statements,
b. Historical cost convention
The financial statements have bean prepared on a historlcal cost basis, except for the follawing:
» Cartain Financial instruments are measured at fair value
¢ Preparation of financlal statement
As per the format prescribed under Division Il of Schedute Il to the Companies Act, 2013, the Group presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Statement of Changes I Equity. The accounting policles have heen applied consistently over all the year presented In these financial statemenits.
Principdes of Consobldation and Equity Accounting
{i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities aver which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity, when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, veriable returns from its
Invalvement with the entity and has the ability to sffect the returns through its power to direct the relevant activitles of the entity.
Subsidlaries are fully consclidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Contral is d wh faets and ci ances [ndicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements of ontrol, They are deconscfidated from the date that control eeases
The rasults and financlal pasition of forelgn operations that have 3 functicnal currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the p tatlon
currency as follows:
- assets and liabllities are translated at the cfosing rate at the date of the balance sheet;
-1 @ And axy are translated at ge exchangs rates (unless this Is not a reascnable approximaticn of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are trantlated at the dates of the transactlons), and
- All resulting exchange differencas are recognised in other eomprehansive incoma.
The Group combines the f) lal nents of the Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assats, llabllitles, equity, lncome and
expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on fons b y Group p are el |
Nor-controlting interests in the results and equity of subslidiaries are shown separately in the Consolldated Statement of Profit and toss, Consolidatad Staternent of
Changes in Equlty and ¢ lidated Bal Shest respectively.
(i} Associates/ Jolnt Venture
Associates or Joint Ventures are all entities over which the Graup has significant influence or Joint contral but not cantrof, This is generally the case where tha group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or where decislons over the relevant activities are unanimeus in case of joint venturs. lnvestments In 2ssociates and
Joint ventures arg accauntad for using the equity method of aceounting after initially belng recoghized at cost.
Under the equity method of accounting, the excess of cest of investment over the proportionate share In equity of the assodate/ Joint venture as at the date of
acqulsition of stake is Identlfled as goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be and inctuded in the earrying valug of the investment In the assoclate/ Joint venture,
The carrying amaunt of the investment Is adjusted theraafter 13 recognize the Graup’s share of the post-acquisition profits or fesses of the Investes In Consofidated
Statemnent of Profit and Loss, and the Group's share of other comprebensive incomea of the | In lidated Other Comprehensive Income. H -, the share
of losses Is aceounted far only to the extent of the cost of Investment. Subsequent profics of sueh assaciates/ oIt venbures are not accounted for unless the
accurnulated lasses not d for by the Group) are recouped. Additional losses are provided for to the sxtent that the Group has ineurred ohligations or made
payments on bahalf of the associate and Joint venture to satisfy obligations of the associate and Joint venture that the Group has guaranteed or to which the Groupis
otherwise committed. Unreallsed galns or ksses on transactions between the Group and its assoclates and Jolnt ventures are eliminated to the extant of the Group's
interest In thesa entities,
d.  Current and non-turrent classification

The Group presents assets and llabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on currentf non-current elassifleation,
An asset [s treated as eurrent when |t s

i} Exp { t0 be realised or intended to be sold or ¢ d In horimal operating cyele,

1y Held primarily for the purpose of trading

1} Expected to be realised within twebw manths after the reporting period, or

Iv) Cash areash equlvalent unless restrdcted from being exchanged or used to setth: a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.




f.

All gther assets are classifled as non-current,

A llabMity Is current when:

1] It is expected to be settled In normal aperating cycle

1] It i3 held primarily for the purpose of trading

i) it iz due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv] There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liablility for at least twelve months after the reparting period.

The Group classifies all other liabllities as non-currant.
Deferred tax assets and liablllties are classifled as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Group's real
estate operations varies from project to project depending on the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and refated approvals. Accordinghy,
project related assets and llabliitles are classified Into currant and non-current based on the operating eycle of the project, All other assets ang llabiiities have been
classified inba current and non-currant based or a period of twalve months.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“"INR"]) which is also the functional currency of the Group. All values are rounded off ta the nearest lakhs,

Use of ac Ing Judg ptions and esti

In the application of the Group's aceounting polizies, msnagement of the Group Is required to make Jud i and ptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabllitles that are not readilly apparent from other sources. The #stimates and assoclated assumptlans 2re based on historical experience and other factors
that are considersd to be ralevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underly ptions are revl 1 on an angoing basis.

Revislons to accounting estimates are recognized in the perlod it which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects only that peried, orin the perled of the revision and
future periods tf the revision affects both zurrent and future periods, Detailed information about each of these estimates and Judgements is Included In relevant notes
together with information about the basls of calculstion for each affected line ltem In the Ananclal staterments.

Fallowing are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and estimates which have significant effect on the amounts recognized In the financial statemants:

Estimation of net realizable vabue (NS} Tor Inventory
Inventary Is stated at the lower of cost and net reafizable value [NRY).

NRY of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to markat conditions, prices and trends existing at the raporting date and Is detarmined by the Group
based on comparable transactions observed fldentified for similar properties in the same geographical market serving the same real astate segment,

NRY in respect of Inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and trends axisting at the reporting date for similar completed property, less
the estimated cost to complete construction and an estimate of the time valte of money te the date of completion.

Exti d cost 1o complete Is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and overruns basls the progress of the project,

Impairment of other non-financlal assets -

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 15 an Indicstion that an asset may be Impaired. If any Indication exists, of when snnual impalrment testing for
an asset 15 required, the Group estl the asset’s bh An assat’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less casts of disposal and
Its value in use. When the tarrying amount of an asset sxcesds iks recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impaired and Is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value Jn use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that rellects current masket assessment af
the time value of monay and the risk specific to the asset. In detenmining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inte at¢count. If ho stch
transactions can be Identified, an appropriate valuation madel ks used, These calzulations are cormoborated by valuation multiples or other avaliable fair value indi 5.

P

Impalrment of finantial sssets

The Impalrment provisions for financial assets are based on assurnptioms about the risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the Inputs for Impairment caleviation, based an Group's past history, exlsting market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

Wseful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Usefil lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life praseribed In Schedule 3 of the Companies Act, 2013. in cases, where the useful lives are differant
from that prescribed in Schedule 1, they are based on tect | advice, A ptiens also need to be made when the Group assesses whether an asset may be capitalised
and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised,

Recagnltion and of defined benefit obligations

The oblizgation arising from defined beneflt plan Is determined on the basts of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarfal assumptions include discount rate, expeacted return
on plan assets, trends In salary escalatlon and atirition rate. The discount rate is determined by raference to market ylelds st the end of the reporting period on
government bonds. The pertod to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post amployment benefit obligations.

Falr vatue measurement of Fnanclal Instruments

Wher: the fair values of the financlal assets and liabllities recorded In the Balance Shaet cannot ba measured based on the quoted market prices In active markets, their
Fair value is d uzing val hnigue. The Inputs to these models are taken from the obsenvable market wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a
revlew of judgement is requtred In establishing falrvalues. &ry changes in assumptions eould affect the fair value reiating to financial instroments.

Provision and contingent ILalyHicy

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingeneies. For contingent Josses that are considered probable, an esti d loss
Is recorded as an accrual in financial Loss Contingencles that are Idered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabifities in the
financiat staternents. Contingencies the likelihuad of which is remote are not disclosed In the financlal st Galn contingencles are not recognized untll the
caonth ¥ has been resojved and are recelved or recetvable.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
Dieferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tau credits to the extent that reafisation of the related tax beneflt s probable. The
assessment of the probabllity with regard to the reallsation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the entity and budgeted data for the future,
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Measurement of falr values

The Graup maasures financial instruments, such as certain investments at falr value at each balance sheet date, Fair value 15 the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liabiHity in an orderly transactlon between market participants at the measurement date, The falr value measuremsant Is based on the
presumption that the transaetion o seft the asset or transfer the llabifity takes place either in the principal market for the asset or Habllity, or In the absence of a
principal marker, in the mast advaniagecus market for the asset or llabllity. The principal or the mast advantageous market must be accassible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liabllity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or Hablilty, assuming that market
participants act In their sconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-inancial asset takes Into aceount a market participant’s ability to generate econemic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use orby selling it to another market participant that wauld use the asset in Its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate fn the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to fair value, imizing the use of
refevant observable Inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Groupn has an d cantral fi ork with respect to the measurament of fair values. The Management regularly reviews significant unabservable inputs and
valvation adjustments. If third party information ks vsed to measure falr values, then the M the evid btained from third partles to support the
eoncluslan that such valuations meat the regul of Ind AS, [ncluding the level in the fair value herarchy in which such valuations shauld be classified.

Whean meaturing the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Group uses cbservable market data as far as postible, Fair values are categarised Into
differant levels in a falr value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation tachniques as follows,

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for kientical assets or liabilitles,

Lewef 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or [lability, elther directly |i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices}.

Lavel 3:1nputs for the asset or llability that are not based on abservable market data.

If the tnputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall Into different levels of the falr value hlsrarchy, then the fair value measuremant |s categorised in
its entirety In the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest lavel Input that Is significant to the entire measuramant.

The Group recognlses transfers batween lavels of the falr value hierarchy at the end of the reparting petiod during which the change has cocuired.

Praperty, plant and equipment & depreciation

Recognlition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and impairment losses, H any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment camprises of:

L. its purehase price, inctuding import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates.
H. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary forit to be capable of operating In the manner intended by Maragement.

Hil. the Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the {tern and restoring the site on which it Is losated, the obligation far which the Group incurs either
when the item is aequired or as a q of having used the item during a particular pericd for purposes other than to produce Inventories during that period.

fv. Barrowing costs relating to acqulsition / construction / development of Property, Plant and Equipment, which takes substantlal period of time to get ready for its
Intended use are afzo inctuded to the extent thay relate to the perlod till such assets are ready 1o be put to use.

v. Income and expenses related to the ineldental operations, not necessary to bring the itemn to the location and condltion necessary for It to be capable of operating In

the ] led by Manag are gnised In 5t t of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of proparty, plant and equipment have differant
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major componants) of property, plant and equlpment.

Subsequent expendlture

Subsequent expenditure related to an ltem of Propesty, Mant and Equipment is added to Its baok value only if It increases the future benefits froen the existing asset
beyond its previously | fard of perf: All other exp an g Proparty, Plant and Equipment, Including repalr and maintenance axpenditure
and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Stat of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are Incusred.

E [ d for acqulsition of capital assets exeluding ad pald is the acquisition of Praperty, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet

date are diselosed under Capiial Work In Progress.

Capita) Work In Prograss in respect of assets which are not ready for their Intended use are earried at cost, eompnising of direet costs, related incldental expenses and
attributable intarest.

Any gain or loss on dispesal of an itemn of property, plant and equipment is recognlzed in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Group in the year of disposal.
Dapreciation

Depreclation |s provided from the date the assets ate ready to be put to use on stralght line method 25 per the usaful lifa of the Property, Plant and Equipment Including
propesty held as Investment as proseribad under Part © of Schedwe It of the Comp Act, 2013.

Depraclation s calculated on a prorata basis from the date of installation / acqulsition till the date the assets 3o sold or disposed.

Depretiable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value,

Nature of the asset Useful Me
Compters 3 years
Plant & Machinery '
Sofar 25 years
Windmil! 22 years
Cffike Equipment 5 yaars
Vehicle Byears
Fumnitura and Fittings 10 years

The depred . ods, useful lives and rasidual vaiues are reviewed perlodicall
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Derecognition
Anitem of proparty, plant and equipment and any significant part Inltially recognised is derecognized upon dispasal or when no future econoimic benefits are expacted

fram its ute of disposal, Any Gain or less arlsing on derecognition of the assat {calculated as the diference between the nat disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) Is reconised in the statemant of profit and loss, when the asset is derecagnised,

Investment properties

Building, that Is held for long-term rental yizMs or for capital appreciation or both, and that |5 not in use by the Group, is classifled as Investment Property. Investment
property s measured |ndtially at its acguisition eost, Including refated transactlon costs and where applicable L Ing casts. Subseq tpenditure |s capitalized to
the asset's cammying amount only when it Is probable that future ic banefits iated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the Item can
be measured reliably. All cther repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurced. When part of an Investment proparty is replaced, the carrying amount of the
replaced part Is derecognised. The ¢carrying amount of investment property Is reviewed pariodically for Impalrment based on intemal and extemnal factors. An

impal loss is recognised wherever the earrying ar of assets s its bl t. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling
price and valug in use, -

Investment propertles (Bullding) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method over the estimatad useful livas of the assets, which are in [ine with
Schedule || to the Companles Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usaga of the assets.

Initlal direct eosts incurred by the Group in negotiating and arrenging an operating lsase shall be added ta the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
axpznse ovar the leasa term on the same basis as the lease income,

Depreciation Is provided on the stralght line method ta allocate the cost of assats, net of their residual values, aver thelr estimated useful livas.

The estimated useful life of Investment property is €0 years,

Anl 1 t property Is derecog! upon dispesat or when the investment property is permanenthy withdrawn fram use and na future economic benafits are
expected from the disposal. Any galn or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period.

intangible assats

Recognition and

Intangikle assets ara carrled at cost less accumulated amertisation and impalrment josses, if any, The cast of an intanglbie asset comprises of its purchasa price inciuding
any import dutles and other taxes [other than thase subsequently recoverable from the taying authorities} and any directly attributable expenditura on making the asset
ready for Its intended use,

Subsequent expenditure

Subssquent expenditure is capitalized only if it Is probable thar the future it benafits iated with the expenditurs whl flow to the Group.

Amaortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated usefu] lives on a stralght line basls, from the date the asset |s available te the Group for its use, The amortisation
period and the amortization method for an Intanglble asset with a finite usefut life are reviewsd atheast at the end of each reporting period.

The estimated useful lives of Intanglble assets are as follows;

Nature of the asset Amortisation perlod

Computar software [ERP] 10 years - license pericd

Carnputer software [other than ERP) 3 years

Galns or lossas arising from the ratirement or disposal of an Intanglble 2ssat are determined as the difference ¢ the net dispasat p ds and the earrying

amount of the asset and recopnised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Forsign currenty transactlons f translations

Foreign exchange transactions are secorded at the closing rate prevailing on the dates of the respective t lons ar at the  rates as applicabl

Monetary assats and liakilities d i 1 I foreign ias at the reporting date are transfated tnto the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary Itams at rates diffarent from those a3t which they were translated on (nitial
recognition during the period or in pravious financial statements are recognised In the statement of Profit and Loss n the pariod in which they arise.

Fnancial Instruments

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise ta a financlal assat of one entity and a financlal liabllity or equity instrument of another entlty. Financial asseis and

finaneial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provislons of the Instr A

Finznelal assets and financial liabVities are Injtially measured at falr valus. Yransaction costs that are dl Iy attributable to the acqulsition or lssue of financial assets and
financlal Nabiiltles are added to or deducted from the fair valua of the financial assets or financial llabifties, as appropriate, on [nitial recognitlon. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acq of financial assets or financial llabllitles measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized | diately in the

of Profit and Loss.

Financlal assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financlal assets are recognised and derecognlsed on a trade date basiz. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or c lon kv the market placa. All recognized financial assets are

subsequently measured in thelr entirety at either amortised cost or falr value, depending on the classification of the financla! assets

I, financlal assets at amertised cost
Anandal assets are subsequently measured at amortlsed cost using the effective interest rate method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective

Is to hold these assets In order to collect eontractual cash flows and the sontractual terms of the fingncial as3¢t give rise on spacifled dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal dl

Il. Ananckal assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive Income [FYTQCH)

Afi ial asset 19 subsequently § at falr value through other comprehensive | if It 1s held within & business model whose abjective s achieved by both
eallecting contractual cash fliows and selling financlal assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specifled dates to cash Hows that are solely
pay ts of principal and Interest on the princlpal amount outstanding.

On Inltlal recognition, the Group makes an irt ble eleetion on an ) by basis 1o p the subsequent changes in fatr value in other
comprehensive Income pertaining to | In equity | other than equity investment which are hedd for trading. Subseq Iy, they are  at
falr value with galns and losses arsing from changes in fa% value ised in other pretenslve Income and accumukated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments

.;

gh other comprehensive | ', The lative gain or lass Is not reclassified to profit or kss an disposal of the investments,




b.

[

HI. Financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Imnvestments in equity instruments are elassified as at FYTPL, unless the Group |mevocably alects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in Rir value in

other comprehensive income for i 3 in equity i s which are not hel for trading. Other financial assets are measured at fair vatue through profit or loss
unless it ks measurad at amartised cost ar at fair value through ather comprehensive incomea on Inltial recognition.

bv. Iwestrrsent in assaciates

Investmant In associates are measured at cost less Impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Flnanclal 5 1ts.

w. Impairment of investments

The Group reviews its carrying value of Investments camried at cost liy, or more frequently when there |s indication far Impalrment. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairmant loss |s accountad In the statement of profit and loss.

vi. Dergcognition

A financlal agset Jor, where applicable, a part of a finanzial asset or part of a group of simllar financial assets) Is primarlly derecognised (L=, remaved from the Group's
balance sheet] when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

~the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumad an obkgation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without matertal detaytoa
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arcangemeant? and either {a} the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, ar {b} the Group has nelther

t d nor tetalned sul fally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

‘When the Group has transferred its right 1o recelve cash flows from an asset or has anterad into a passthrough ar t, 1t evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has nelther transferred nor retalned substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transterrad contral
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associsted Nabitity. The transfarred asset and the d llakility are d on a basls that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

vil. Impalrment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financlal asset or a group of financial aszets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expacted eradit losses to be
d thraugh a loss The Group s ifetime expested losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do nof constitute a finaneing

transaction. For all other flnanclal assets, axpected cradit losses are measured at an amount aqual to the 12 month expectad credit losses or at an amount equal ta the

life time expected cradit fosses iF the cradit risk on the financlal asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

vill. Step acquisitlons [subsidiary is aceuired i stages):

When the initial investment made by the Group in 2ny cther entity was not falling under the category of an associate, Joint venture or subsidlary of the entity, cost of
such antity gats accounted for in acvordance with Ind AS 109 “Financial Instroments® at falr value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidlary, the Group accounts for the cost of the investment in the subsidisry 3y the sum of the consideration paid for the intial
t, plus any ideration pald far the additional interest {accumulated cost approach).

When the accomulated cost approach Is applied, the Group recognises the difference batween the fair value of the initial Interest at the date of abtalning control of the
subsidlary and its original conslderation in profit or loss, regardless of whether, before obtaining eontrol, the Initial Investment had been measured at fair value through
prefit and 1053 ar fair value through other comprehensive income (OC)).

Financial Jlabilities and eguity instruments
1. ClassHication as debt or equity

Dabt and aquity Instruments issued by a Group are dassifiad as either financlal llabliities or as equity In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of 2 financial liability and an equity instrument.

. Equity instruments

An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual | In the assets of an ety after deducting all of its flablfitles. Equity Instruments tssued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs.

lil. Financlal llabDities

All financial liabilities ara recognised Initially at fair value and In case «f financial habilitles at amortised cost, nat of directly attributable trnsaction costs. Al financlal
liabiltles are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interast method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and (oss when the
liabifities are deracognised as well as through the Effective interest Rate {EiR} amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount o
premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an Intagral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is indluded as finanee zasts In the statement of profit and loss.

tv. Derecognition
A financial liabllity }s derecognised when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Rablfity is replaced by another
from the same fender on substantially diffarant terms, or the terms of an exlsting llabillty are substantiatly modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as the

derecognition of the original llability and the recognition of a new kability, The difference In the respective camrying is recognised in the st it of profit and
loss.

Rectassification of financial assets and Kablkitles

The Group determines classification of financlal assets and llabilities on initial recognition. After knltlal recognitlon, no raclassification Is made for financial assets which
are equity instruments and financla! Kabilltles. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification Is made only If there Is a change In the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the busi model are expeeted to be infreg) The Group’s senlor management determines ehange in the business model as
aresult of | or i } changes which are significant 1o the Group's of Such changes are avident to external parties, A change in the business model
oceurs when the Group elther begins or ceases to perfarm an actlvity that Is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassiies financial assets, it apgplles the
reclassiflcation prospactively from the reclassification date which Is the first day of the Immedlately next reporting period following the change In business model. The
Group does not restate any previously recognlsed gains, losses (induding Impairment gains or kises) arintersst,

Offsetting of financial Instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabllities are offset and the net amount 15 reparted in the balance sheet if there Is a3 cumrently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amaunts and there is an intentlon to settie on a net basis, to realise the assets and setti= the llabllitles simultaneoushy.
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Inventories

Direct expenditure relating te Real Estate Davelopment activity 1s inventorized, Other espenditure |including borrowing costs) during construction perlod is lnventorized
o the extent the expend|ture is directly attributable cost of bringlng the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure [including borowing
costs} incurred during the construction period which is not diractly attributable for bringing the asset to its working conditlon for its intended uze is charged to the
statement of profit and ioss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific ldentification to the ¢anstruction and real estate activity. Cost incutred/ items
purchased specliizally for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received.

a. lnventories comprise of: {{} Flnished Realty Stock representing unsald premises in completed prajects (i) Realty Work In Progress representing properties under
construction Mevelopment including land held for devaiopment on which construction activitles are yat to e [iit) Transferable daveloy rights [TDFRs)

b. tnwentories are valued at lower of cost and net reallsable value.

¢, Gost of Bealty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Less tn proportion to the revenue recognised duting the periad and the balanee
cost is carrled over under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock, Cost of Realty construction / development includes all costs
directly related to the Project (including finance cost atiributable to the project) and other sxpanditure as identified by the Management which are incurred for the
purpose of axecuting and securing the completion of the Project [net off incidental recoveries f receipts) upto the date of receipt of Cezupation Certificate of Project
from the relevant autharities,

Realty Work in Progress Includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable development rights (TOR), construction costs, allocated interest and
expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Group.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenua recognition
The Group has appiled five step model as sat out in ind AS 115 to recognlse in this Fl lal
Step 1. Identlfy the {5} with a A contract is dafined as sn agreement between two or more partles that creates enforceable rights and cbligations and

sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations In the contract: A per: okl is a prommise 1n & contract with a cystomer to transfer a good of service to the
customer,

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The lon price is the t of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in ekchange for transferring
promised goads or services to a eustomer, excluding amounits coll 1 on behaif of third parties.

Stap 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations In the tontract: For a contragt that has mere than ane performance obfigation, the Group will
allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation In an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects te be entitled In
exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recopnlse revenus when [oras) the entity satisfies a performance obligation,

Tha Group satisfies a perf: ohl and

gnises revenus over time, If one of the following criteriais met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs; or

- The Growip's perf tes ar enk an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or anhanced; or

- The Group’s performance doas not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity has an enforcaable right to payment for parformance completed
to date.

For performance abligations where one of the above eonditlons are not met, revenue Is recognised at the paint in time at which the performance chilgation is satisfied.

Revanue is recognised either at point of time and over a pericd of time based on tha conditlons In the contracts with customers.

The specific revenue recognition crlteria are described below:

{)l Income from Property Develapment

The Group has determined that the axisting terms of tha contract with customers doas not maet the criteria to recognise revenue over a period of time. Revepue Is
recognized at polnt In time with respect to contracts for sale of residential and commerclal units as and when the control Is passed on to the customers which Is linked
to the recelpt of oecupaney certificate and on Issuing the possession letter of the property.

{lI) 5ale of Materials, Land and Davelopment Rights

Revenue 5 recophized at peint in time with respect to contracts for sale of Matarfals, Land and Development Rights as and when the control 15 passed on ta the
customars.

{Iii} Income from investment In Partnership Firms & LLP, AQPs

Share of profit f legs in Partnership firms Is recognized when the right to recaive Is established as per agreement / agreed terms between all the partners / members,

(] Interest income

Interast i Is 1 on an accrual basis at effective interest rate {EIR method).

{v] Rantal Income

Rentall arlsing from operating leases is ac ted aver the lease terms.

(i} Dividend income

Dividend | Is ized when the right to recelva the payment is established,
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Contract bakances
Cantract asset is the right to considerstion in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transterring goods or services to a
customer bafore the customer pays consideration or before pay t is due, a contract asset is recognised for Lhe earned conslderation that Is conditionat.

Trade reeeivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of sonsideration that is unconditional {l.e., only the passage of time is requirad before payment of the
consideration ts due|.

Contract liability is the obligation to ransfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is dug) from

the cust ifac Fays ¢ bafare the Group transfers goods or services to the custamer, a contract llability is racogntsed when the payment |s made
ar the payment is dus {whichever Is earliar). Contract lfabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Cost to obtaln 2 contract
The Graup recoghises as an asset the iner | costs of obtalning a contract with a eustomer if the Sroup expects to recover thase costs, The Group incurs costs such
as s2las commission when it enters Into a new contract, which are directly related to winning the contract,

Jolnt development arrangement

The Group exscutes projects through Jolnt Development Arrangements (JDA), wherein the land owner provides land and the Group undertakes to develop properties on

such land (i.e. devalopment right} and In lieu of land owner providing land, the Group has agreed to transfer certain pereentage of conittucted area or certain

p of the praceeds or certain p age of surplus to the land ownar. Transfer of such tonstructed area or revenue or surplus in exchange of such

de\relopmnt rights/ land (s belng estimated at fait value as per the terms of the agreement and accounted far on launch of the project as the cost of development right
) with its corresy ing liability. When the fatr value of the land cannot be measured rellably, the ravenue and cost is measured at the fair value of the

estimated constructlon service renderad to the landowner adjustad by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. Subsequent to Initial recognition, such

liability is rermeasured on each reporting period depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect the changes In the estimate, if any,

in case of JO arrangements, where performanca cbligation is satisfled over time, the Group recognizes revenue only when {t ¢an reasonably measure its progress in

satisfying the performance obligation. Until such time, the Group reeognizes revenue to the extent of cost Ineurred, provided the Group expects to the costs
inctirred tawards satisfying the performance obligation.

ncome tax

Current Income tax;

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are } at the F i to be recovered from or pald ta the taxation authorities based on the taxable

prefit far the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thesa that are enacted by the reporting dave and applicable for the pericd

Deferred tan:

Deferred tsx Is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Daferred tax 2ssets and liabllitles are racognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and Nabllitles and their carrylng amount In financlal statements, except when the defetred tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or llability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects nejther aceounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction.

Deferred tax assets and llabllities are measured at the tax rates that are axpacted to apply in the perlod when the asset Is realized or the llability is settled, based on tax
ratas that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting dats.

Defarred tax asset In respect of carry forward of unused tax eredits and unused tax losses are recognlzed to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax sredits and unused tax (osses can be utllized.

The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it s no longer probable that suffickent taxable profit will be
available to allow 2 or part of the deferred tax asset to be utllized.

Presentation of current and deferved tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as Income or an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to itarns that are recognized in OCl, In
which case, the current and deferred tax income/ expense are recoghlzed In 001 The Group offsets eurrent tax assets and current tax liabilitles, where It has a legaily
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where It intends either 1o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. in
case of deferred tax assets and deferrad tax liabilitias, the same are offset If the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off comasponding current tax assets against
current tax liabHities and the deferred tax assets and daferred tax liabilities ralate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Group.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short tarm employes banefits are expensad as the related service Is provided. A liability Is recognised for the amount expected to be paid If the Group has a present
legal or constructive abligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employes and the abligation can be estimated reliably.

Post emplayment henefits

[#] Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations far o s to defined cantribution plans ars exp d as the related service Is provided.

Prepaid contributions are recagnised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a red in future pay % I35 avallabl

() Definad Benafit Plans

Pay of v to employeas Is In the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provislon for Gratulty Is recorded on the basls of actuarial valuatlon certificate provided by

the actuary using Profected Unit Credit Method.
The Group's net obligation In respect of defined banefit plans ¥ calculated separately for sach plan by estimating the amount af future benefit that employees have
earned In the current and prior perlods, discounting that amount and dedueting the fair value of any plan assets,

The cakulation of defined benefit cbligations Is perfarmed annually by a qualifiad actuary using the projected unit credit hod. When the caleulatlon results in 2
potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is imited to the present value of sconomic benafits avaltable In the form of any future refunds fronn the plan or

reductions In future eontibutions to the plan. To ealculate the p value of I hanefits, Ideration Is given ta any applicable minirmum funding
faquirements.

Remeasurernent of the net defined banefit flabltity, which eamprise of actuarial gains and losses znd the return on plan assets {excluding Interest) and the affect of the
asset celllng {if any, altdud.ins Interest) are gnised | Ilately In Other Comprehensive | {CCI}. Nat Intarast expense/ {Income] on the net defimed Usbllity /

(asseta}is puted by applying the di rate, used to measure the net defined llabiiity f {asset). Met interest expanse and other expensas related to defined benefic
plans are recognised in the Statement of Proflt and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change In benefit that celates to past service or the galn or loss on curtaiment s
gnised | diately In the of Profit ard Loss. The Group recognlses galns and losses on the settlement of a definad benefit plan when the settlement
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Other tong term employee bensfity

The Group's llablilty towards comp d ab Is d ined by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a
straight line basls over the average period unitil the bensfits hecome vested, Actuartal galns and losses are recognised | diately in tha Stats Wt of profit and Loss as
Incorne. or expense oF recognited under Other Comprehensive Income to the extent such actyarlal gains or losses arise due to experience ad[ustments. Obligation 15
measured at the p it value of the estimated future cash flows uting a discounted rate that 15 determined by reference to the market yields at the Balance Sheet date
on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Go Bonds are ¢ with the currancy and esti d terms of the defined benefit oblig

Ledses

Where Group Is the legsee

The Group applles a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognlzes lease
liabifitles to make lease payments and right-of-4use assets reprasenting the right to use the underlying assets.

{, Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie., the date the underlying asset is avallsble for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, kss any accumulated depreciation and impal losses, and adj 1 for any t of lease liabilities. The cost of dght-of-use assets
includas the amount of lease labllities recognlzed, Initial direct costs | d, and leasa pay ts made at or before the commencernent date bess any lease Incentives
recaived . Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stralght-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

#. Lease liabilities
At the commencemant date of the lease, the Group recognises lease Rabilities measured st the present value of lease payments ta be made over the lease temn. The

lease payments include fixed payments {Including In substance flxed payments) l2ss any lease Incentives reselvable, varlable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the prasent value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrwing rate at the lease commencement date because the Interest rate impliclt in
the lease Is not readily determinable. After the e it date, the of leass liabilities |5 increased 1o reflect the accration of Interest and reduced for the
leaze p made. In additlon, the carrving amount of lease labifities Is remeasured if there Is a modification, a change In the lease term, a change in the lease
paymants (e.g., b 1o future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to d ine such fease pay t5) or a change in the assessment of an
optlon to purchase the underlying assat,

1l Short term leases and leases of bow value of assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition examption to those lsases that have 3 lease term of 12 months or lass from the commencement date and do not
zontan a purthasa option. Lease payments on shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognlsed as sxpense on 3 straight-line basis over the lease term.

Whare Group is the lessor
Leases in whith the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and 15 incld: | to hip of an assat is classifl ed as operating [eases. Rental income
arsing ls accounted for on a stralght-line basls over the lease tenms. Inftial diract costs Incurred In negotiating and arranglng an operating lease are added to the carrying

amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease tesm on the same basis a5 rental income. Contingent rents are recognised a5 revenue in the period thwhich
they are earned.

Bosrowing cost

Borrowlng costs are interast and othar costs that the Group Incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective Interest
rate applicable to the respective borrowlng,

Borrowlng costs allocated to qualifylng assets pertains to the periad from cor of activith lating to construction / development of the qualifylng asset
upte the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its Intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from | {sation/caplitalisation when develop work on the preject/assets Is Interrupted for extended period and thers Is no
Imminent, certainty of recommencement of work,

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expensa in the period in which they are Incumed.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and <ash eguivalent as reported in the Balance Shaet comprise cash at banks and an hand and short term deposits with an orlginal maturity of three months or lsss
which are sublect to an Insignificant risk of changes In value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, eash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and short
term depasits a5 defined in Ind AS 7. ’

a) Earnlngs per share

Basic Ings per share s caleulated by dividing the profit attributzble to ownars of the group by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
fnancial year, adjusted for banus el < in equity shares lssued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

by Treasury shares

1f the entlties in the group have tha equity shares of the Parant Company , those equity shares {Treasury Shares} are deducted from the equity share capltal of the Parent
presented for the group. The amounts of treasury shares held Is disclosed separately in the notes to accounts of the lidated fi ial
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Provisions, coantingent Babifities and contingant assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has 3 present cbligation (legal or constructive] as a resuli of a past event, |t is probable that the Sroup witl be required o
settle the obfi liabl e can be made of the amount of the obfigation.

igation and a

The amount recognized as a provision s the best esti of the consideration required to sette the present obligation at the end of the reporting perod, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When 3 pravision is d using the cash flows estimated to sattls the prasent obligation, Its carrying
amaunt is the present value of those cash flows (when the effact of the time value of money is materal).

Contingent liabilities are disclased for:
{1} pussible abligations which wili be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the contro! of the Group or

{li) present obligations arising from past events whers it Is nat probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the chligation or a reliable astimate of the
amount of the obligation cannat ba mada.

Contingent Assets are not gnised in Fi Tal it an inflow of economic benefits has become probable, cantihgent assets are disclosed,

Contihgent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that develop are appropriately reflected in the Financlal Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an
inflow of economit benefits will anse, the asset ar the related income are recognised In the Financial Statements of the period in which the changes oecurs.

Provisions, contingent liabllities, co

ingent assets and s are ravl ] at each Balance Shaet date.

Segment reporting

An oparating segment is a component of the Group that In bush ivitles from which it may earn and Incur exp Including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components, and for which dizcrete financial Information |s available.

All operating seg| <’ op g results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make datisions about resources to be all ta the seg) s and assess
their performance.

Accordingly, the Group has Wdentified following as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108:

2) Real estate segment;

b} Lease rental activity;

¢] Powar generation

Real Estate sag (RE) prises develof of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable Development Rights (TDR3) and operation of all or any part of townships,
housing projects. Lease rental comprises the rental of properties as Shopping Malls, Pawar generation Is through Solar and Wind,

Sepment performanee Is evaluated based on profit or loss and Is measured consictently with profit or loss tn the financlal statements. Also, the Group's financing
{Including finance tests and finante Income;} and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not allocated to aperating sepments. Transfer prices betwsen

operating segments 2re on an arm’s length basis in a similar to kens with third pardes.
Business combinations
The Group applies the acq method in ac g for busi combinations far the busi which are nat under common contral. Tha cost of an acquisition is

measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date falr value and the amount of any non-controlling interests In the acqulree, For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling Interests in the acquiree at falr value or at the proporticnate share of the
acqulree’s Identijiable net essets. Acqulsition related costs are expensed as Incurred.

At the acguisition date, the Identiflable assets acquired and the abilities assumed are recognised at thelr acquisition date falr values. For this purpose, the Tiabllities

assurned Include contingent liabilities repr ing p bl and thay are i gt thejr isithon fair values Irespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying ecanomic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired In 2 busl binatlon are ed at the basis
Indicated below:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabllities and the assets or {iabiiities related to eamployee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
income Tax’ and Ind AS 12 ‘Employes Benefits’ raspectively.

h) Petenttal tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exlst at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are

accounted in accordance with tnd AS 12.

) Reacquired rights are measured 2t a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider
petentfal renewal of the reacquired right.

ARy ingent ¢onslderation to be ferred by the acquirer ks recognised at fair value at the acqulsition date. Contingent consideration elassified as an aszet or
liablitty that is & financlal instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 108 “Fi ¥ Instr A H ] at fair value with changes In falr value recognised in prefit
or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, 1t Is measured In accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.

Contingant conslderation that 15 classified as equity is not re-measurad at subseguent reporting dates and Its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Group aequires a busi It the financlal assets and labliities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in aceordance with the
rantractual terms, economic clrcumstances and pertinent conditions as at the aequisition date,

If the business combination Is achieved In stages, any previousky held squity IsT d atIks ac
recognised in profit or lass or OC), as appropriate.

qul date falr value and any resulting gain or lossis

Business combinations under common control
Bustmass combinations involving entitles that are contralled by the group are accounted for using the pooling of Interests method as follows:
* The assets and Jabilities of the combining entittes are reflected at thelr earrying amounts.

*+ N adjustments are made to reflect falr values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting pelicies,

+ The financlal Information In the financial statements in respect of prior periods Is restated as if the busl bination had cocurred from the beglaning of the

preceding period In the fl fal irraspective of the actual date of the comblnation. H , where the bus| combination had occurred after that date,

the: prior perled information is restated only from that date.

+ The balance of the retained Ings appearing in the fi lal of the transf: is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing irs the financial
\¢ ts of the trans{ of Is ad]usted agalnst g [ resarve.

» The Identity af the yeserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the raserves of the transferee,

+ The difference, if sny, bety the ] fed as thare capltal Issued plus any sdditionsl consideration in the form of tash or other assets and the amount of

share capltal of tha transferor 1s transferned to capital reserve and 1s presented separately from other capital resarves,
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notesto« idated financial for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Wote 7

Goodwill
Goadwlll on Consolidation

Note &
Equity accounted Investees

A. Investments measured at cost

1. In equity shates of assotiate companies:

Unquoted, fulky patd up

Whealabrator Alloy Castings Ltd (8,00,400 shares of Rs : 100 gach)
Add : Share of RC Investment {100 shares)

Add : Equity plckup

Add : Share of Reserves and Surplus

2. In shares of Jolnt ventuse companies

Unquoted, fully patd up

R Retail Ventures Pyt Ltd {formerly Virgo Retalls Ventures Pt Ltd]

CCPS Serles 2 0.01% Preference shares [20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 Each)
R Retail ventures Pvt Ltd

{10,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

Add : Equity plckup

Add : Share of Reserves and Surplus

R Mall Developers Pyt Lid -Class A |19,90,000 shares of Rs 10 each)
R Mall Developers Pvt Ltd

Class B (647142 shares of Rs 10 each a5 on March 2014 and 47142 shares of Rs 10 each March 2018 onwards)

Add : Equity pickup
Add : Share of Resarves and Surplus

Investments measured at Fair value through profit and foss (FVTPL)
Others
3. In partnership fm
Value Constructions SRA

i Is about investment In partnership firm

'Total capltal of the firm [fixed and current eapital)

Name of the partners and their profit sharing ratlos

1.Runwal Developers Private Limited
2.Mr, Subhash Runwal

3.Mzs. Sangesta Lalwanl

4.Mr. Vikas Lakwam

5. Dhruva Woolien Mills Private Limited

Note 3
Other non current lnvestments
mvestments measired at fale valug through profit and loss (FVTPL}
In mutual fund
Aditya birla sun Iife saving fund - growh - direct plan
{ CY - 14,121,602 units, P.Y. - NIl}

Agpregate of uoted | and market value thereof

Aggragate amount of unquoted Investments

(AN ameounts in Bs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
31:t Manch, 2022 31st March, 2021
Q.22 0.22
Q.22 0.22
Asat As at
315t March, 2022 315t March, 2023
1,720.86 1,720,396
Q.17
1,111.%% {875.47)
37204 1,988.23
20,310.00 20,310.00
.00 -
[756.77) 362.03)
{2,515.15) (394.74)
199.00 199.00
264.00 264.00
8,658.59 8,706.25
1,436.05 [a7.66)
30,603.55 31,507.44
- 33273
30,803.55 3403017
_Value Construction SRA__
As at

3]st March, 2021

3318.87

3328.87

As at
rch, 2021
51%
9%
20%
20%
0%

100%

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 315y March, 2021

62.59

52.89
-

§2.85




MNote 10

As at As at
315t March, 2022 st March, 2021
Loans
{Unsecured considerad good unless otherwise stated)
Ta partles other than related parties
Loan - 177728
- 1,777.25%
T T
Note 11 As at As at
315t March, 2022 A1st March, 2021
Other non-current financly) assets
{Unsatwred considered good unless otherwise stated)
To parties other than related pacties
Securlty depositsh# 240.16 131.68
Bank deposits with mara than 12 months maturity 378.94 298.90
1,219.10 430.58
# Security deposits are towards utility deposit: t money deposits and towards other deposits.
Note 12 As at Asat
31t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Other Non-Current Assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise staled)
To related partiex
Security deposit # 18.52 130.00
To parties ather than related partles
Other non current asset® 144.89 §50.05
’ 163.21 780.05
—
# Securities deposits will be adjusted agalnst the land for which the amount is given,
* Advance towards property are non - Interest bearing 1n nature and shall be settled against future purchase of such assets,
Note 13 Asat As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Inventories jvalued at lower of cost or net realisable value}
Construction work In progress 1,36,857.34 42,303.76
Finishad goods 33,204.55 90,796.80
Entidement of transferable development rights 718.38 1527.58
1,70,780.27 1,_341,623.14
The carrying ameunt of nventories charged as securities against borrowings.
Note 14 As at Asat
31st March, 2022 3ist March, 2021
Current Investments
Investments measured at cost
tvestment in del of joint ver «unquoted, fully paid up
R Mall Developers Private Limlted® 1,000.00 -
(1,000 Non-convertitle debentures of face value of iNR 1,00,000)
Investment In debenture mstruments {at amortlsed cost)
©C0 Serles 3
"Horizon Prajects Pyt Ltd (7,000 debentures of Rs 1,00,000 each) 7,000.00 7.000.00
8,000.00 7,000.00

* Debentures art redeemable in one year and cne day from the date of allotment Le. 02-07-2021.

Each OCD series 3 shall have a face value of Rs, 100,000. The Tenor of the OCD Seres 3 shall be uniil March 31, 2022, or such extended term as may be determined by the board
with the prior written congent of GCD Series 3 holders redsemable at a premium, which |3 to be decided at the time of redemption,

At the explry of the tenor any unredeemed face value OCD Sarles 3 may be zonverted to Class C Shares. The OCD Series 3 shall be unsecured. The OCD Series 3 shall not cammy
any wvoting rights.

Aggregate of unquoted k 8,000.00 7,000.00




Mote i5
'f(ade recefvables

‘To Parties other than related parties
Seturad, considered good

Asat
315t March, 2022

Asat

315t March, 2021

613,53
Unsacured, considered good 1,113.55 173.40
tnsecured, significant increase in cradit fskferadit impaired 504,89 565.57
Less : Allowance far significant increase in eredit risk/cradit impaired {260.44) -
1,971.53 738.97
Agelng of trade recalvables ;
Al Ageing for the 315t March 2022
Lesy tham
- - E Tota
Particular & months & months - 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years Mora than 3 years otal
ade lvables
Considered good 83549 163.77 12681 18231 418.70 1,727.05
Which have significant Increase in cradit risk 149.03 9401 137.22 7543 48.36 504.85
Credit impalred -
Disputed trade recelvables -
Consldered good -
Which have significant Increase in credit risk -
Credit lmpalred -
Total 984.52 257.78) 2164.03 258.76 466.8681 323197
B} Agelog fo 2021
Particular Lessthan [ @ onths-1year | 2-2vears |  2-3years More than 3 years Total
6 months e e yea e
Undisputed trade recelvables
Considered good 284.23 104.43 159.98| 16.87 173.46 738.97
Which have slgnilicant increase in ceedlt risk -
Credlt Impaired -
Disputed trade recelvables -
Consldared good .
Which have significant increase in credit risk hd
Credit impaired -
Tatal 284.23 343 159.98} 16.87 173.46 738.97
There are no unbilled trade recelvables.
Note 16 As ax Asat
315t March, 2022 J1st March, 2021
Cash and cash equivatents
Balances with banks
In turrent aecounts 267402 1178256
In deposlt ascounts with orginal maturdty of fess than 3 months 11,143.17 97.50
Cheque-In-hand 1,460.00 -
Cash on hand 57.99 51.34
15 275.18 1193180




Nate 17

As at 315t March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Bank balances other than above
In deposit accounts [with original maturity mors than three menths but less than twealve months) 1,371.94 212.52
1,371.94 212,52
# Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting to INK 9.30 lakhs {PY INR 104.50 lakhs)
Note 18 Asat As at
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Financial Assets - Loans {Current}
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
To related parties
Intar Corparate Deposits * A45.00 9,965.93
To Partles other than related partins
Security deposit 811.30 453.50
Inter corporate deposit™* 7,142.23 719.00
Loans and advances to amployees 3187 12.80
8,030.40 10,651.23

* Inter eorporate daposits glven to ralated parties are repayable on demand.

** Inter corporate deposits given to partles other than related partles have rate of interest of 18% p.a. and repayable within 1 year from date of disbursement.ln DVWMPL inter

corporste deposits given to partles other than related partles have rate of Interest of 8.5% p.a. and are repayable on demand.

4 Loans and advances ta employees are adfusted against future salari

imk +

of expenditures.

As at
Trpe of Barrawer 315t March, 2022 3ist March, 2022
Amount outstanding % of Total Amount outstanding % of Total
Promaters - 0.00% - 0.00%
Chrectors - 0.00% - 0.00%
KMP's - 0.00% - 0.00%
Related Partles 45.00 0.56% A,965.93 93.52%
Takal 45.00 0.56% 9!955.93 0.94
Note 19 As at As at
315t March, 2022 Sistoarch 201

Other Current Finanglal Assets

[Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated}

To Related Partles
Other advances# -
Balance recelvatle as retired partnar BE7 A5 2,957.21
Security deposit* 5,923.93 -
To Parties other than refated parties
Seeurity deposit® 231,09 23.30
Gthar advances 189.52 1,07017
Intefest acerued but not due 315.74 7264
Advance recoverable 452,05 234,04
8,179.78 4,417.36
¥ Other advances are repayable on demand
¥ Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money daposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand
Asat As at

Note 20 215t March, 2022 31zt March, 2021
Other Current Assets
{Unsacured considered good unless athenwise stated}
Advances other than capital advances
To Related Partles

Sectirity deposits* 4,374,00 -

Advance agalnst TDR - 7,900.00
To Partles other than refated partles
Ad ta suppllers and 1,459.40 910.29
Advance against flats 506.51
Balances with statutory authoritles F75.32 25148
Prepald expenses 94.81 £6.96
Advance far fandfothers/TDR# 16,106.59 382144
Deferred brokerage 1,794.76 77332
Contract Cost 581.62
Lease Equalization 65.77

26,728.76 1372899

' Advanees against land/others ave s purchase

"+ Sacutity deposits given to related parties are non Interest bearing.

Itments, are non - Interest baaring ln nature and shall be settled against future purchase of such assets
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RUMNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{AIl amounts in Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated}

Note 22

Other equity

Capital Resarve

Balance as at Q1st April, 2020 {33,695.59)
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 315t March, 2021 !33,695‘59!
Movernent during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (33,655.59]

Capital reserve on consolidation

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 232
Movermnent during the year -

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 232
Movement during the year 53,819.31
Balance as at 315t March, 2022 53,821.63

Securlties premium

Balance as at 01st Aprit, 2020 24,201.78
Movement during the yaar -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 24,201.78
Movernent during the year {3.14}
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 24,158.64

General reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 225.00
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 225.00
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 225.00
Retained earnings

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 84,797.15
Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2021 6,538.02
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {net of tax) 2057
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 91,355.74
Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022 -12517.85
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (net of tax) 15.35
Acquisition of subsidiary -6495.43
Effects of transaction batween equity participants 427.12
Reversal of excess value of treasury shares {refer note 21} -1408.76
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 ' 71,376.17

Non controlling interest

Balance as at 01st April, 2020 13,125.93
Movement during the year 3,006.08
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 16,132.01
Movement during the year 7,891.22
Balance as at 315t March, 2022 24,023.23
Total equity

At 01 April 2020 88,656.59
At 315t March 2021 98,221.26

At 315t March 2022 1,39,949.08




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

fAll amounts In Rs. Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Na;ure and purpose of reserves
1) Capltal reserve

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited {"RRPL"), Runwal Projects
Private Limited {"RPPL") and Runwal Township Private Limited {"RTPL"}have merged into Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting into a negative
capital reserve of Rs. 10,175 lakhs, negative capital reserve of 28,640 lakhs and a positive capital reserve of Rs. 3,097 lakhs.

2] Capital reserva on consolidation
Capital resarve arising on account of consolidation of subsidtaries.

3) Geneval reserve
The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve Is created

by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in genaral reserve will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

4) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profit that the Company (including all merged entities) has earned till date, less any dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders.

5} Securities premium
On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for wsing the poofing of interest method, the securities premium of the respective
companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves.




Runwal Devglopars Private timited
AUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to didated finandal far the year ended 315t March, 2022
{Al amounts ih As. Lakhs, unlass otheradse stated)
At As at
315t March, 2022 15t March, 2011
Note 22
"Mon-aerant tnarcel lnbiitles- ¢ ings {at d cost)
Secured:
Term loans
From banks ’ 922053 14,920,292
From others 4223269 12,685.92
Unsecored
T Redeemabla prefersnce shares* 64,00 64,90
51,528.12 Héﬂ.‘ﬁ
* The Company has Issued 6,449,000 7% Rad ble Hon pr shares of Rs. 10 each on 30th ber, 2019 In deration of l of RTPL, RPPL and RAPL with RDPL on 30th
November, 2019, The APS shall ba redaemable at par at the option of transleree company anytime after five (3) years but before 20 years from the date of allotment. On 36th September. 2022 with the
pp | ol shareholdars of the C these pref: shares have been redeemed.

A.. Secured loans from banks:

sr. Loan taken from Outstanding Rate af Interest § 4 againsf glvan Terms of repayment.
ne amount
1| Bank of Bareda - loan At no, Y. - 99255 8.65% Term loan undar futurs rent recelvable schems of Bank of Monthly EMI of Rs.47,65,000 tIll January 2024, last EMI on
0416060020468 {P.¥. - 1,455.34) Baroda , Securad by Agraement of assignment of rent 2oth February, 2024 of R3.25,37,662
recalvables and equitable mortgage of some commerclal shogs
situated in R-Odwon Mall, Ghatkopar East, admeasuring »
Ieasable area of 52,505 £q.ft.
2|Bank of 8aroda - foan Ajc ne, £¥.-1,166,14 a.65% Secured by laase rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of Rs.54,76,200 til Jarurary 2024, lastEMI on
04 160600020459 IIP,\". - 1,695.71) 29¢h February, 2024 of R5.59,60,248
3|Bank of Barada car loan agcollnt CY. - S.64 7 6500 €ar - maruti suzuki naw wagon B LX1{D) CNG 16 Months EMI
F#
4|Bank of Baroda lozn Afcno. C¥, - 1,442.60 8.65% Term loan tnder fullpe rent teceivable schama of Bank of Monthly EMI of Rs.12,91,600 till funa 2022,
0416060000506 (PY.-1,868.72) tBarcda, Secured by Agresment of acsignmant of rant "luly 2022 to Decomber 2023- As. 18,11 000/
rag bles and itabl of zome fal shops |lanuary 2024 to May 2026- Rs, 44,868,375/
I t at R-Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East, admeasuring a last EML on 30th June, 2026 of Rs.1,10,75,063/ -
leasakle area of 53,505
5|Bank of Batbda loan Afc no. CY.-3,796.37 B.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund, Monthly EMI of R5.35,47,812 4l Decamber 2021,
1) P 913,83 banyary 2027 10 Iyng 3023 Rs, 44,99.770/-
7.50% £ar - Mercades-banz 60 Months EMI
JULTH e
Unhn Bank ul India loan a/c < Y Z,J.B 55 13.75% 1. "Land & buliding ! ble in 109 hly instal of Rs. 30,47,500/-each
319306330000013, {P.Y, - 2,485 31] 2. Hypothecalion of plant and machinary and other azset commencdng from 281h February 2018,
creaied out of bank financa
8[1C101 Bank Ltd loan C.Y. -3,152.54 1.1125% L 'Excluslve charge by way of reglstered marigage on the 1. Repayment of RTL § & Il In 10 menthly (nstal imants
ATLI Py, -3,922.1) 2. 11L.25% {lune |Property (NIrvana Project) 257,453 sq. . excluding aleable fng Trom 15th November, 2021,
1. 603090002692 15 1o 16) & area of approximately 107,242 sq. fr.1 be deredtothe |2, Repay t of RTLIN In 29 hiy i L
2. 60305000270% 10.55% (lurve 27| Property Owner. from 15th December, 2021,
ETLI to 14 hily] 2. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage on
1. 603050002710 3. 15 July development rights of All the plece & parcel of land located at
2, B0300002711 Survey No. 3/2968, Cadastr#! Survey No. 662 of Parel - Sewrl
2, 603090002712 10.85% Diviston, sltvated at 5.0. Ambedkar Road *[formerly kivown a3
4, 503095000533 Parel Fank Acad] wluun une llesistre!ion District af tumbal Ciky
ATLIN and bal Sut priokimately 8,627.99
1. 602090011698 square meters {"sq. mirs. "}, indl.ldlng 4l the strirctures theredn
2 603090015401 both present & future but exduding rehab buikding A having
3. G03030003627 ares of appracimately 13269 square feet ["sy. i)
4, 603050000045 3. "Bxcluslve charge by wiry of regliterad mortgage on the
'S, G0I000004 Scheduled Recelvables and all i P 15, bath present
5, 50300010283 and futwre,
7. 603030010252 4, ‘Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage onh sacurity
8. 603090010454 ’ of all rights, title, interest, caims, benelits, damands undar all
9. GO3090HI5739 the dacuments pertaining to the Project Documenls both
10. 6030009 V4L {present and future.
5. "Exclusive charge by way of registered mangage on the
Escrow Accaunt and the D3R Account along with all monfes
ciedited/depasited thereln {in whatsver form the same may
ke, and all Investments In respect theraof [in whataver form
the same may be).




A.. Secured loans from banks:

4| standard Chartered Bank

C.¥.- Nil
{R.¥. 2,398.75)

10.75%

The Facllity, al| Interest therson, costs, charges, expenses and
all slher manles in respact thereof shall ba secured by: 1)
Exclusive charge by way of registarad mortgage on the Project
Elegante along with the underlying Land, 2) Bclusive charge by
way af hy ation on the scheduled reciaveables & Escraw
aciount of the Profect , all montes tredited f deposited thereln
and all Investments In respect thareal.

Repayahle in 14 quarterly instalments of Rs,21.43 o frem

Feb'3o

-
=

IEICI Bank car lpan -
LAMUMOODIS0 24347

¥, Nl

9.09%

Car - BMW-7GA7A-TMH14-730L0 DPE Signature

Eqyial monthly instalkmants of Rs 2,56,064 for 50 months upte

Oetgbrar 2021

—'T ICICI Bank Ltd

[

CY. i
(p.x. 1962.02)

9,20%

1} Exclusive charge by way of reglstered mortgage onthe
project named “Eirene™,“Uly” and "Dahlla” together with the
underlying land along with exclusive charge by way of

gl i onihe sck and all
insurance proceeds both present and future an the above three
projecis.
“2] Exclusive charge by way of reglsiered morigage on security
of all rights, tile interest, dalms, benefits, demand under the

. |abeve thres profects bath present and future,

'3} Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage on two
asecrow accounts.

'd) Exchlusive charge by way of regisiered morigage on TOR
bath present and future formerly part of the three projects.

12| Bank of Barada

C.Y.950.14
{P.Y. HIlj

B8.65%

1. Mortgags of land and bullding constructad thereon with
valuation not lezs than 2 times of the loan {EM of all thoza
pleces or parcals of {and in Revenue Yillage of Moujs Chitaizar,
Manpada ,Pot Tukdi and Tatuka Patha Thane, Tukd md District
Thane {W}) admeasuring 24182 €8 1q mt.and bearing survay no
22 Hissa No 1, survay m. 23 Hissa m 2 (part) and survey no 24
Hissa ra.2 {part] alongwith the Mall structures standing thereon
called R-MaH and having llcensable area of approx. 3,15.672 sqft
valued at Rs.205.55 crore.

2. The fipm has to submit an intevacable undertaking stating
that, the of rent Eles will e ta place til] the
currency of the term lean granted by the bank and e frm witt
reassign the renk regeivables iy respect of leass agraemants
which are raquired ¥ ded on axplry af aplion
pariod. Irrevocabls latlar of authority from the firm authorizing
the lrsses to pay tha rent/lease rant amount to o bank, duly
acknowladgad by the lessae,

3. Assignmant of rant recaivablas 10 be routad o ta ESCROW
accuunt wiih our bank. Exclusive charge on tha ESCROW
aceount.

Total

LY.+ 13,69532

X, 1932956)

B. 3ecured loans rown others:

S: Loam taken from

Outstanding
amournt

Rate of Interest

Securad against/ guarantee glven

TFerms of repayment

1 | Aditya Birfa Finance Limited -
12008400258 afc &
ABFLMUMCFCCOO136782

€Y. -11,295.89
(P.Y. -5,999.49)

10.50%

1.Unsold Inventory of “Tha Rersldence™ & "The Reserve®
Projects,

2, Persanal Guacantes of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for the proposed
Faciftles.

Repayabla In 24 monthly Instak;

g from 015t

(Qctober, 2021,

2 |Tata Capltal Houskg Finance Limited
10533130 & 10581337

CY.-(53.20)
{P.Y.-7,202.22)

11.00%

1. Excluslve charpe by way of registered mortzage on the unsold|
units In Property 1 90,786 sqft {"Security 1' localed at Survey
Na.fCT5 Mo, EB4A

2. Excluslve charge by way of reglstered mortgage on the unsald|
urits in Property 2A 56,545 sqft {'Security 2') located at Survey
No.fCTS Mo, B8JA

3. Ecfusive charge by way of reglstered martgage on the unsold
unlts in Proparty 28 1,34,704 sqft {'Security 3') located at Survey
No. f CTS No. -B84A

4, Personal Guarantes of Mr. Sandeep Runwal to the tune of Rs
75 croves under the proposed faclitles

5. D5RA equivalent to 3 months' Interest on outstanding
amount to e matntalned in the form of FD with Nen marked to
TCHFL during the currency of loan

6. Securfty Interest on unsold Units along with residual Interest
onsold unlls In the Property 1, 2A & 28

60 Months Including meratorium pariod of 20 months from

the data of first dishursament




B, Secured loans from ethers:

9 j Tata Capital Houslng Finance Limited - | €Y, - 7,813,838 12% & 11.60% |1 1. Exclusiva charge by way of reglistered mertgago an the 72 Months including moraterium peciod of 42 menths from
10704493 & 10705475 |P.Y. - Nil] ROPL's share of right/title/Interest in the project "funwal the date of first disbursament
TMimelass” being developad on land parcel forated at €5 Mos. 4
{part], 5 (part), & [part), and 7 (part) of 53kt Pan Divislon, Son-
situated ot Pratihsho Nagar, Shastri Nagar, “C" Dlvislon In
F/Marth Ward, Mumbai, Maharashtra, including all future
F51, TDR, and benefits thereon to the extent of
ROPL's share.
2. D5RA equivalant to 3 months' interest on outstanding
amount of the ladily.
11, Additional Securiy:
1. Extenshon of firsi charge by way of reglyierad mortgage on
the unold praportlon of land 3nd building of the projects "R
Anthurfurn™ and *R Square” located st LBS Marg, Mulund,
Mumbsal, along with any prasent and future construction,
[Receivables
Hl. Primary Recelvables:
1. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all bk
to the extant of developer's share, including sobd, unscld,
|irrsurance cacedpts az well as davalepment and other charges
4 | Aditya Birla Finance Ltd LOC Afz 29177 | CY. - NIl 10.50% Life Inturanca pallcy of Mr. Sandeep Runwal & Mr. Subadh Interast |s padd monthly.
|P.Y, - 2,550) Runwal, premium tareo i d in units of bered
securities.
5 [Aditya Birda Finance Limited Loan Afc | C.¥. - NI 10.50% Aditya Birla Finzndial Ltd sanctioned Bne of credit against Vallgity of facilly : One yaar from the data of first
no. 18511 [P.Y. B42.7} Insurance policies of Rs, 27 Crores agalnst unencumd iand |dish From March 2018 and such option to rensw at
itradable securitles. the sole disoretion of ABFL hased on writtan request recefved
from bormwer.
& |Adtya Birls Finance Ltd CN. 12BBE.71 7.35% Exchusive chargs by way of flrst pari passu charge on land at Terior of total 60 months jwhercin scheduled repayment wll
{P_¥. NI Villaga Dhokall [Balkum} in Thane, along wilh Resldential start from the end of the 3Gth month from date of first
Building knowr: as Aunwal Eirene and TOR/FS] thereon, disbursement]
Exclusiva charge by way of escrow of recelvables from sold and
hypothecation of unsold units In the project ‘Runwal Elrene’,
Tawer 6A 1o 6D and Tower 7 to 13,
7 |HBRC LA C.Y. 1028921 1L.00% 1. Exdusive charga by way of registered mortgage on the
{P.Y. NI} project land of "Runwal Sanctuary’ belng developed on land
{admeasuring 24,496, 20 7q mtr of area and stuated st C5 Ko,
544 and 54471 of Village Nahur, Telukas Kurla, together with
construction thereon both present and future.
‘2. Excluslve charge by way of registered morigege on security
of all schedul=d bles under the d enterad Inte
with the customers of the funded projects by the Borrawer and
all insurance proceeds, both present and future scheduled
amounts arising out of or In connactian with prrefating totha
project.
3. Exclusive charge by way of reglsterad marigage an ascrow
Jatcaynts.
4. Exclushve charge by way of registered mortgage an TDR both
prasant and future farmerly part of the Lhres profects.
CY.-a2,232.69
Tetal [P.Y. - 1s!m£!
*This changes I liabdlii hedua inchid For current 23 well o3 non - current portion of term loans,
Noiw 24 .
As ot Az at
Proulslons —3stMarch 2022 JstMarch. 2023
|} Provision for gratuity 100.54 99401
|b) Provislon for laave encashment 70.63 5721
17117 156,22
Refer not¢ ra, 42 employes benefit 2xpenses
Nete 25
A at Asat
Deferred Tax Assets [Liabikitles) — g March 2032 starch. M2l
Deferred tax Babliter)
Property, plant & equipment {1,504.97) (149594
Right of use asset {27.08) "
frwastment property (13,323,500
Iestment 117562}
FVTPL finandst asssets {019 -
FOC] Anandal assets - -
Leasa scualization reserve ssets 175.209 (214.64)
Revaluation of inventory on account of buginess cembination {310.20) [0.45|
Capltal i on unsold inventory (tand] - 3,999.18]
Flrishad Goods (397.24) -
Advancs fram eustemer {551.14)
Canstruction Work In Progress [2,738.72) hd
— {woven) | (5N62)




Raferred tas assets

Carry forward losses of house property income 5.3 211
Carry larward lassas of capltal transaction - 1,379.54
Proviztons for retiremant benef(ts 36.08 2678
Disallowance under secilon 438 341 16.15
Discounting on securlty deposiis 2811 -
Expenses incurred on business combination 158 .44
Falr valuation of merged entity {Rupwal Township Private Limitad) - -
Advance from customar 155.22 5,312.26
190.69 6,750.48
Deferred tax Habillties {net) !18!611.!1! 1,050.27
Az at Az at
Reconcliation of tax enpanses : 3ist March, 2022 315t March, 2021
&) Amount of current tak fsed s the dal of profit and loss 3,439.53 1,863.57
B}  Daferved 1ax [charge) f credit
Praparty, plant & equipment {272.33] [63.584]
Right of use aszet 1708 -
FYTPL Rnancial assats n1e {802}
FYOC! financlal assets [829.01) 177.03
Lease squalsation reserve assels . 538 -
Revaluatien of | ¥ on account of bual t 104,44} {a0s.79)
Carry ferward losses hona proparty Income: {13.09] -
Carry ferward logses capital bransacilon 1,378.64 -
Previsions for retirement beneflts 190 4,20
Disallovweance utidar sacticn 430 {1220} {1.78)
Discounting on security deposits {28.11} -
Expenses ncurred on business cembinatfon 0.56 -
Finished goods [3,897.24) 1,406.33
Advance from customer 5,156.98 (2,067.19}
Capltal gain oh unsakd Inventory (land] {045} [0.25}
Fair valyation of merged #ntity (Runwal Township Private Limiled)
Totalol B 166106 1856.41!
Totalof A +B 5,100.59 3007.16
€} Rexandlistion of effecttve 1ax rate
Prafit bafors 1an 14,518.33 1,228 2
Tan* 3,653.97 1,824.41
T effectof : . -
Men-deductible expenses 179.93 19.49
Tax on exampted Income 1BB.12 0.95
LA expansas 7914 531.27
Tax on deemed rent 17.36 172
[Expensesl f Income offered In tak baaks {net] 9RL07 207.31
Tax eapenses racagnised 5,100.59 3ECIJ7‘IG
* Tax rate : for carporate @ 25,168% (P.Y, 25.168%) and for partnership {lrm @ 34.32% [P.Y. 34.32%)
Azat As at
Hote 26 — sMarch, 2022 Jlstiorch 2021
Cuarrent Pomowings
Secwed
Bank overdraft {refer table below) 400314 995.44
Currant matunitles of long-term borrowings {also refer pate 23}
From banks 4,474.80 4,80B.62
Fram athers - 4.003.57
Unsecured
0.01% Redeemable preferance sharest 1.607.52 1,738.32
Book avendraft 28865
Payable toretire parthers 12,007.77
S— 7N o
Bank overdraft
sr:; Bank cvevdraft tuken from Ou mu“n:l"‘ Rate of mterest Secured agalnst/ guarantea ghwan Terms of repayment
1 |HOFC Bank Afc - 5020005802408 €Y 3,832.00 7.00% AELIULIP Policles of Mr. Sandeep Aunwal & Mr. Subadh Remewal pwary yaar
if] .80 L] LELT]
2 [1CKCI Bank Ltd ASC 674005001213 CY.-42 11.25% 1. Exclusive charge by way of regisiered mortgage an the The Borrower shall be enlithed to repay the ©D Facllity at any
Property | time: from the daie of dishursement of such OD Taclity, til the
3 JICKI Bank Lud A/C 623505026781 11.25% 2. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage an last QD reductan 15th November, 2023.
62) deynl ehic of the B
4 |Staratard Chartered Bank Afc Ho. 10.75% 'Working capltal loan Is secured agalnst unsold Inventory and
- L lsales coclowable froon unsold invantoey of profeck "Flegante”
Total CY.-2,003.13
{P.Y.-595.44]
' The Company hasIssued 1,73,583,200 6.01% Red ble ran - latlve pref shares of Rs. 10 each on 4th M ber 2020 n dderation of amal of Ruhwal Bullders Private Lmited

{'RBPL'), Rurwad Properties Private Lkmited {'RPPL'} , Veear Praperty Developers (Bambay) Private Umited ('VPDBPL') ahd Odeon Exhibltars Private Umited {'DEPL'} with RDPL on 4th Novemibrer 2020, The RPS
shall be redeemable st par at the option of Trandleree Company anytime giter five [S) years but before 20 years trom the date of allotment.

Afver the prefeyence shares wers Issued an 41th Novambar, 2020, in tha momh of March 2021 the Company Inltlated the di Ian with the p h dders ta redeam these preferenca shares on
Immadiata basis, Hence, hese preferance shares were thown as a part of Current Liability In bath the present years and thelr carrying value was sonsidered as fair valua. With the approval of sharehelders,
tha G I h 1 thets prefer sharas sub t to the balance date Le. on 25th September, 2022,




Hote 7

As at 1ot March, 2032 Az av3ist March, 2021

Trade payables

Trade payables

11} total outsranding dues of mico and small i 179,97 454.19

1) tetal ding dues of other than and smak T 6,822.17 4,429.715

Ratentlon Money -

i Dues of micra and small 113.57 94.97

1l Dugs of craditors ather than mico and small 2,228.77 1,504.29
9!544.5! 5,383.20

For transactfons with related parties, refer te note 43

Far explanalions on ke Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 49

Datzils of dues to Micra, Small and Med|um Entergrises under the Micro, Smadl and

There are no unbilled trade payables.

Act, 2006 * [Refer note no, 57)

Ageing of trade payables :
A Ing of trade ibles as on 31t March, 2022
articutsr Dutstan for following perods from tha dus date
Less than Lyear|1.2 yasr 23 years Mora than 3 years Tatal
317.87 34.99 17.37 975 379,98
5,677.94 25935 165.11 519.37 6,822.15
$.195.81 a1 183 a8 529.02 7,302.14
Cutstanding for following perfads from the dus date
Less than 1year]3 -2 year 2-3 years More than 3 years Torat
143.33 1.0t 259 - 453.86
16294 275.33 69.72 4710 443003
3,756.27 2RT.34 368.24 471140 4,683.94

In various

Ratention money [§ callscted and ratalnad basad on various tarme and conditions agread wpce with the monay is payabla when tha milestone of the entire set of

services i compieted and that too with a covenant Lhat It will ba pald after 2 period which ranges batwean 3 to 5 years, If no deficiency Is found during 1his specified parfod towards tha services which were
randarsd by thatn. Hanca, practically it s difficult 1o axtract the agsing of ratention money.

Asat Azat
Rote 18 3254 March, 2022 315t Margh, 2021
Other currant financlal latdliies
To releted parties
Inter corperate daposits 508.00 -
Amount payable on account of dissalution of partnership firm - BOG.44
Advances - athers 202613
To other than vetated partles
Salary and bonus payable 196,37 23148
Security deposits 1,306.21 152393
Oeferred income .92 0.71
Expenses peyable 206,10 10,713.64
Interest accrued but not dee 191.61 17763
Amount payable towards cancelled
flats 930.02 1,595.40
3,365, 93 1716553
AFat Az at
Notz 29 315 March, 22 215t March, 2001
Other current Hablllies MR INR
Advancs againk sabe of shares 1,690.00 206.00
Te other than retated parties
Advance from customers TS5.96 59,064.73
Statutory remittances 1,084.37 504.06
Deferred llabHity against purchase of development rights 9,543.55 -
Other payable 577218 11.307.72
S 77 ¥ 7 — T N
AS Mt Az at
Nete 30 —3lstMarch 2002  _ MstMarch.0al
Current Provitlens INE INR
Provitlon for amployas banefits:
Gratulty 20.83 743
leave encashment 2.2 697
6005 14.40

Refer note no. 42 employee bensiit expenses




ALNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE UMITED
Notes to VA tal

for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Note 31
Revenus from operstions

Sale of flars

Sale of solar power

Satle of wind power

Income from lease rental

Deterred revenue fram Jint development afrangement

Qther operaling revenue®

120l arnounts In R, Lakbs, unfess otherwize steted)

For tha year ended For the year ended
315t Magch, 2002 313t March, 202
68, 184.54 T8,735.28
EEFAL] 198.98
BT.05 45.62
131336 558.7F
5,505.2% -
7541787 79,639.89
143119 1,206.73
;&gg.ﬂﬁ B0 346 5F

* Other operaling revenus comprlses of income towards cancellation charges, imerest on delayed payment from customers, cheque bounce charges, dub uszgs charges wic,

Noe 32
otbar Income

Buslness suppan Service
Finance lncome
Interast Income on fixed depasits
intarest Income on Inconme Tax Kefurd
Interest Incomes on debentures
Intarest Income on KD
Intarast Income on Other Deposits
Proflt / jLoss] on sale of tangible fxed acsets
Share of prafit from Arm
Miscellaneous Incoma
Falr Value galn Mutual Fund (FVTPLI"
Sundry Balances Written Back
Project manapemant service

* Torai nat paln én Fake value changes indudes As.0000 lakhs [PY Rs. 4.71 lakhs) a5 nal gain on sale of kvestments,

Hete 33
Costod ton and devel

Cansieuction Materlal znd Other Expenses

Note 34
Changes in kwentories of finkshed goods wnd construction work-In-progress

Opening Stock
Construction work In progress
Finkshed poods
Teaansterable development rights
Capital work In progress

Clogng Stock
Constiruclion work in progress
Finlshed poods
Transferable develapment rights
Capiial work ln progress

Nota 35
Emploves benefiis expenres

Salarles, wapss and bonus

Compensated ahsences

Contribution o provident & ether fithd

ifeder nota ne. 42 armolaves benfit enentes)
Staff wellare spenses

Grasulty Expenses

{kefer note ne. 42 emoloves benefit &menses]

Lezs: Transferrad to construcilon work In progress

For the year ended Forthe year ended
31st March, 2002 kst March, 2021
360,00 360.00
91.97 T4F9
63.31 5.45
54.47 -
E vl 4.93
16 66 ZL1E8
144 5.64
- 0.13
7166 114.06
1,509.37 an
126458 452226
FOO00 -
572126 511427
For thve year ended Far the yenr ended

S1st March, 2033

58,978.37

&

311t March, 2021

22043 48

ﬁ

Far the year ended
315t March, 2022

For the yrar ended
31sr harch, 2031

63,155.66 44,207.21
91,620,391 1,33.359.25
BO5.20 409.20
1,592,658
{1.36,852.34) (42,3037
[33,922.58) (91.515.18)
- (80520
P i 1. s | _—
!1.2 20?.03! AE, 747.5%
Far the year anded For the year ended
315t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
338262 73459
43.71 2299
5926 2039
&5.04 1055
§1.37 111e
3.618.60 B0d.40
12:456.90) J321.25]
;sl.&l.ﬂ 447.15




Note 36

Finance costs

Interast

- On fixad period loan

- On bank averdraft,

- Dividend on redeemable Praferance Shares
- On inter corporate dapasits
- Otherinterest cost
Finance charzes

Total interest expense

Less Capitalised Tn WIP

Note 37

Depreciation and amortization expense
Dapreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amurtisation on right 1o use

Depraciatian on investment proparty
Amaortisation of intangible asseta

Hote 38
Other enpenses
Electricity Chamgas
Repairs and malntenance
Bulkiing
Qthers
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditor (refer note balow)
Rent
Advertising and sales promation
< Social Respansibility Exp
Donattan
Miseellaneous axpensas
Proparty tax
Brokerage Cormmisslon
Provlsion for mxpected credit loss
Sundry balances w/off
Fixed aszats wioff
Loss on sale of tangible Mxed assets

Payments to the auditer:
A3 auditor®

Aurdit fae

Certification

Gther servicas

* Exclusive of G5T

* Payment of FY 2021-22 Is inclusiva of payment of INR 7,81 kekhs paid to previous auditors

For tha year ended
31st March, 2023

Fer the year ended
— HstMach, 2021

3397.06 5.151.54
B8.83 215.52
472 451
117.27 6470
1391.02 8a?
3530 25.44
383470 5.469.98
— nasgas) —  (somsw
2!344.22 g gg,ﬂ!
Far the year ended Far the year ended
31st March, 2022 st March, 2021
480.15 458.59
597 -
4B4.91 92,54
B34 3.61
972.2',‘ 55;.711
For the year ended For the year ended
31at March, 2022 313t March, 2021
{17.73) 194.43
5.29 1272
397.84 6273
59,95 34.43
153.99 15277
13532 6157
BS.67 21.47
30,00 -
1.254.14 19.84
3iz.00 257.35
245 873
57A.74 55711
4771 -
4937.12 108.69
479.43 -
195.02 20,18
297 -
. 1.78
——AHEHL, 151385
4136 19.57
0.31 -
431.00 1.80
85.67 21,47




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to ¢ lidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)
Nate 39
Earnings per share (EPS}

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit / {loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings par shares is calculated by dividing the net profit / {loss) attributable for the year to equity shareholders {after adjusting for dividend on the
preferance shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be
issued on conversion of alt the dllutive potential equity sharas into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

$r.no. Particulars . for the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
A Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for basic / diluted eamings {6,971.50) 9,545.05
B Qutstanding number of equity shares
1 Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year $,36,829 6,36,829%
i Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year [refer note 21) 6,26,107 6,36,829
i f:l;sseciuent event: Increase in number of shares due to split in face valua of shares from Rs. 10 62,61,070 63,68,200

Subsequent event: Increase in number of shares due to approval of issuance of bonus shares in

5,21,
w the ratio of 34:1 i.e. for every 1 equity share, 34 new equity shares to be issued 21,28,76,380 21,65,21,860
Total weighted average number of equity shares considered as outstanding at the end of the
2
v year (as per Ind A5 33 “Earnings Per Share”) 21,81,37,450 22,28,90,150
vi  Basic and Dituted earnings per share {in Rs.] P‘Bl 4.28

Subsequent events after the balance sheet date
Subsequent to 315t March, 2022 the following events has been carried out by the company:

a) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company In their meeting hetd on 215t Septernber, 2022 approved the redemption of 6,439,000 7% redee mable

prefarence shares and 1,73,83,200 0.01% redeemable preference shares to happen on 26th September, 2022. Further, on 26th September 2022 redemption
has taken place.

b} The Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their meetings held on 21st September, 2022 and 26th September, 2022 respectively
approved reclassification of 7% and 0.01% authorised preference share capital to authorised equity share capital and sub divisien of 55,000 equity shares of
Rs. 100/~ each to 5,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- mach,

¢} The Board of Directors and Mambers of the Holding Company at their meatings held an 27th September, 2022 approved spllt of 1 equity share having face
value of £10/- to 10 equity shares having face value of 1/- each.

d) The Beard of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their meetings held on 28th September, 2022 appraved the issue of 23,65,21,960 bonus
equity shares in the ratio of 34:1i.e. for every one equity share held 34 new equity shares to be issued.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company vide circular resclution dated 29th September, 2022 approved allotment of 21,63,21,660 banus equity
shares.

€] The Holding Campany has recelived approval of its members on all the above-mentioned matters and is in the process of carrying out all the procedural
requirements with the Registrar of Companies,

f} As on 31st March, 2022 the face value of the equity shares is of Rs. 10 each. Considering the fact that the presanted basic / diluted EPS should be
comparable with face value, face value of equity shares is shown as Rs. 1 each as on 31st March, 2022 an the face of Statement of Profit and Los s.

6) Considering these subsequent events, basic / diluted EP5 has now been restated in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share”
which is as follows:

Basic / Diluted EPS before Restated Basic / Diluted
Sr.no.  Particulars tatement {in Rs.) EPS {in_Rs.)
1 RY. 2020-2021 1,498.84 4.28
2 F.Y. 2021-2022* {1,094.74) (3.18)

* For FY 21-22, there 1s no vestatement of basic / diluted EPS. It has been corputed and shown here for comparative purposes only.




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Alf amounts in Rs, Lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 40
Summarised financial information for assoclates and jolat ventures

The table provides summarised financial Information for associates and jeint ventures. The information disclosed reflects the amount presented in financial
statements of the relevant associates and joint véntures and not the Company’s share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by
the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments need by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made

at time of acquisition and medification far differences in accounting policies.

{i} R Malt Developers Private Limited ("RMOPL")

The Groug has a 49.75% (P.Y. 49.75%) interest in R Mall Developers Private Limited {"RMDPL"), a joint venture involved in mall management of the R City Mall,
Ghatkopar. The Group's interest in RMDPL Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial

statements are set cut below:

Summarised balance sheat

Particulars Asat As 3
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A. Non-turrent assets 47,474.88 48,760.56
B. Current assets

{i} Cash and ¢ash equivalents 2,611.44 2,057.41

[ii) Others 6,058.29 5,825.40
Total current assets - 8,669.73 7,882.81
k. Total assats (A+B) 56,144.61 56,643.37
C. Non-current liabilities

(i) Financiat Yiabilities 16,773,565 28,774.74

(il) Non finandial liabilities 2114.51 455.68
Total non current liabilities 15,988.16 28,240,492
D. Curreat liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities 17,141.43 B,442.43

{il} Non financial liabilities 793.68 617.18
Total current liabilitles 17,935.11 9,059.61
1N, Total liabliitles {C+D) 34,923.27 38,300.03
Net assats (I-1} 21,221.34 18,343.25
Group’s interest in net assets 10,557.61 9,125.82
Summarised statement of profit and loss of the RMDPL:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

fevenue from cperations 13,452.78 9,979.47
Other incoma 623.40 185.41
Cost of raw material and components consumead - -
Depreciation & amartization 1,574.38 1,706.23
Finance cost 2,571.77 2,597.53
Employee benefit 860.16 611.86
Qther expense 5,189,585 4,917.24
Profit before tax 3,87C.01 332.03
Tax expense 995.38 430,44
Profit for the year {continuing operations) 2,874.63 {98.41)
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss): 3.36 263
Total comprehensive lncome for the year (centinuing operations) 2,877.99 {95.78)
Group's share of profit for the year 1,431.80 (47.65)

{ii) R Retall Ventures Private Limited {"RRVPL") {consolidated}

The Group has a 43.57% (P.¥. 43.57%) interest in R Retail Ventures Private Limited {"RFVPL"}, a joint venture involved in construction of Residential and
Commerctal properties, The Group's Interest in RRVPL is actounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, Summarlsed financial
information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and recondliation with the carrying amount of the Investment in conselidated financial

statements are set out below:




Summarised balance sheet of RRUPL

A. Non-gurrent assels

B, Current assets
{i] Cash and cash equivalents
{iii) Others

Tatal current assets

1. Total assets {A+8])

. Non-current fiabilities

{i) Financial liabilities

{i1) Mon financial liabilities
Total non current liabilities

D. Currentliabilities

(i} Financial liabilities

[ii] Mon financial liabilities
‘Total current Habilities
W. Tota! liabifities {C+D)

Ket assets (1)

Group's Interast in net assats

Summarised statament of profit and loss of the RRVPL:

Revenue from operations
Other incarne
Employee benefit
Depreciation & amortization
Other expense
Finance cost
Prafit before tax
Tax expense
Profit for the year {continuing operations)
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss):
Totat comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations)
Group's share of profit for the year

[iii) Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ("WACL™}

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
§7,451.77 40,252.61
1,956.65 1,140.60
33,292.65 17,234.41
35,249.30 18,375.01
1,02,701.07 58,627.62
80,265.82 53,941,14
24.44 24.58
80,290.26 53,965.72
6,882.79 1,759.83
23,030.20 6,026.02
29,912.99 7,785.85
1,10,203.25 61,751.56
-7,502.16 -3,123.95
(3,266.70} (1,351.10)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
47.10 22.19
945.47 883.08
B3.62 .81
4,137.42 1,610.25
20.84 26.14
{5,120.24) (2,570.10}
{749.45) {278.36}
{2,390.79) (2,291.74)
1256 027
{4,378.24) (2,291.47)
{1,907.60) {998.39)

The Group has a 34.26% (P.Y. 34.26%) interest in Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited {"WACL"), an associate involved in Real Estate business. The Group’s
interest in WACL is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the assodiate, based on
its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolldated financial statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet of WACL as at 315t March 2022:

A Nor-current assets

B. Current assets

{i} Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Others

Total current assets

L Total assets (A+8}

C. Non-current liabilities
{i) Financial liabilitles

{iiy Non Ainancial liabilities
Total non current liabslities

D. Current liabilities

{i} Financial llabilities

{it] Non finandial liabilities
Total current ligbilities

I\ Total labltitles (C+D)

Net assets {11}

Group's interest in net assets

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
780.98 895,55
393.87 399.50
97,753,40 1,10,608.27
98,147.27 1,11,007.77
98,928 1,11,903
16,887.19 39,017.03
88.01 107.88
26,975.20 39,124.91
10,670.15 13,739,02
51,928.56 50,771.28
62,508.71 64,510.30
89,573.31 1,03,625.21
9,354.34 8,268.11
3,204.80 2,832.65




Summarised statement of profi fass of the WACL:

Revenue from operations
Other income
Cost of raw material and components consumed
Changes in inventory
Depreciation & amartization
Finance Cost
Employee benefit
Other expense
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Profit for the year {continuing operations)
Other Comprehensive Income/{loss):

Total comprehensiva income For the year {continuing aperations)

Group's share of profit for the year

[iv} SR Construction

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
31,806.36 1,22,771.77
209.93 276.63
8,890.00 6,046.79
8,759.42 91,185.27
B1.34 404.97
4,330.53 592012
1,367.57 1,563.21
7.039.04 10,509.72
1,548.39 7,418.32
456.43 1,601.30
1,091.9 5,817.02
(5.73} 411
1,086.23 5,81.13
372.14 1,994.32

The Group has a 0.B6% {P.Y. 0.B6%] interest in SR Consruction a joint venture of an associate {(WACL) involved in Real Estate business. The Graup’s interast in 5R
constructian is accounted for using the equity method in the consclidated financial statements, Summarised finandal information of the joint venture, based on
its Ind AS financial statements-management accounts, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial staterments are set

out below:

Summarised balance sheet of SR Construction as at 315t March 2022:

A, Non-current assets
B. Current assets
(1) Cash and cash eguivalents
{ii] Others
Total current assets
1. Total assets (A+B)

C. Non-current liabilities

{i} Financial lisbilities

{ii) Non financial llabilities
Total non current liabilitles

D. Current lisbilities

(i} Financial liabilities

(ii] Non financial liabilities
‘Total current liabillties

1. Total liabitities [C+D}

Met assets {I-1))

Group’s interest in net assets

Revenue from operations
Other income
Cost of raw material and components consumed
Changes In inventory
Depreciation & amortization
Finance Cost
Employee beneflt
Other expense
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Profit for the year {continuing operations)
Other Comprehensive Income/{loss):

Total comprehensive Income for the year [continulng operations)

Grougp's share of profit for the year

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
23203.46 2329496
8.75 3.90
55.29 236.35
54.04 245.25
23,267.50 23,540.21
16.88 76.90
16.85 76.90 -
16.88 76,90
23,250.62 23,463.31
1599.96 201.78
27.52 197.83
0.32 15.58
- 12,82
23.84 114.88
113 37.35
2.87 48.46
0.87 5.86
2.00 3B.60
2.00 38.60
0.0z 033
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{v) summarised financial statement of subsidiaries

Particulars

Non -current assets
Current assets

Non - current lizbilities
Current liabilities

Net asset

Attributable to:
Particulars

Equity holders of parent
MNon controling interest

{vi) Summarised statement of profit and loss of subsidiaries
Particulars

Revenue from operations
Qther income
Total

Cost of construction and development expenses

Changes in Inventaries of finished goods {including Stock in
trade} and work - in - progress

Employee banefit expenses

Finance cost

Depreciation

Othar expenses

Tatal

Profit/{loss) before tax

Tax expenses

Profit/{loss) for the year

Share of loss from the joint venture

Other comprehensive income

Total Comprabensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Particulars

Equity holders of parent
Non controling interest

{vhi) Summarised cash flow informatlon of subsidiaries
Particulars

Operating activity
Investing activity

Financing activity
Net increase in cash ang

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Runwal Constructions

As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021 31st March, 2022
591.22 2,121.58 57,267.39
84,797.76 64,203.30 57,861.76
12,930.89 1,425.80 27,491.47
25,740.57 46,059.75 37,916.58
46,717.52 13,839.33 49,821.10
As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2022
23,825.94 2,707.21 -
2289158 15,132.12 -
As at As at As at
315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2022
32,595,320 17,457.09 1,163.79
2,571.28 92.22 450,77
35,166.63 17,549.31 1,614.56
13,314.41 8,257.37 26,769.77
10,639.16 4,639.35 (26,6456.09}
221.23 {1.49) 35.52
43.25 3.01 96.24
32.44 3414 426.11
474,82 109.88 812.82
24,725.91 13,042.26 1,494.37
10.440.77 4,507.05 120.19
2,634.96 995.36 17,425.06
7,805.31 3,511.69 {17,304.87)
{4.18} {1.22) 2.02
7,801.63 3,510.47 {17,302.85})
As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2021 31st March, 2022
1,632.14 504.40 {16,677.03)
6,169.49 3,006.07 {625.82)
As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 81st March, 2021 31st March, 2022
{7,498.67) 6,521.69 -
{15,148.62} 3,816.45 -
30,815.82 {7,220.57) -
8,168.53 3,117.57 -
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RUNVVAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to conselldated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All amaunts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 42

Employee Benefits
{A] Definad contributlon plans

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognised as an expense for the year are as under:

for the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Emplayer’s contribution to provident fund 66.85 49.1
Employer's contribution to ESIC 211 3.17
Labaur welfare fund contribution for workmen 013 0.07
{a) Daflned Benefit Plans
a. Gratuity

Gratulty Is payable to all eligible employees of the Group on retirement, death, permanant disabtement and rasignation in terms of the
provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1372, or Group's Scheme whichever is more benefical, Bepefits would be paid at the time of the
separation based on the respactive Schemaes,

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

Asat Asat
31st March, 2022 315t March, 2011
INR IR
I Change in present value of deflned benefit ohligation during the year
1. Present value of defined henefit obligation at the beginning of the year 141.08 113.85
2. interast cost 7.50 .57
3. Current servi¢e cost 34.51 36.81
4, Past senvice cost - -
5. Liablity transferred In/Acquisitions 37.65 3.44
6. Liability Transferred out / Divestment (52.53) {15.48)
7. Benefits paid directly by employer (26.71) {17.35)
8. Benefits paid - -
9. Actuartal changes arlsing from changes In demographic assumptions (22.40) {4.49)
10, Actuarlal changes arlsing from changes In financial assumptions 13.29 {13.57)
11. Actuarial changes arising from changes In experlence adjustments (1.43) {4.35)
12. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 131.37 108.44
Il Net asset / (llability) recognised in the balance sheet
1, Present value of defined benefit chligation at the end of the year {131.37) {106.44)
2. Fair value of pfan assets at the end of the year - -
3. Amount recognised In the balance shaet {13131 [106.44]
4, Net (llabillty)/ asset- Current (30.83) {7.43)
Net (Hability)/ asset- Nan-current (160.54) {99.01)
I Expensas recognised In the statament of profit and oss for the yaar
1. Current service cost 34.51 36.81
2, Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net) 790 7.57
3. Total expenses included In employee henefits expense 42.41 44,38
IV Recognised In other comprehensive Income for the year
1. Actuartal changes arising from changes In demographit assumptions {11.59) (5.50)
2. Actuarial changes arlsing from changes In financlal assumptions 7.61 {2199}
3. Actuarial changes arlsing from changes [n experlence adjustments {6.57) {4.52)
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income - -
5. Recognised In other.comprehensive Income {10.55) (22.41,
V Maturity profiis of defined benefit obligation
1, Within tha next 12 manths (next annual reporting period) 30.84 743
2. 2nd Following Year .51 781
3. 3rd Followlng Year 19.15 9.04
4, 4th Followlng year 20.03 9.85
5. 5th Following year 16.31 11.25
8. Sum of years Gth ta 10 years 37 52.14
7. Sum of 11 years and above 8.9 89.98




Vit Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptlon is as helow:
1. Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

{} One percentage point increase in discount rate {3.61) (7.15}

{il} One percentage point decrease in discount rate 3.85 8.10

{# One percentage polnt increase in rate of salary Increase 3.47 8.06

{iS) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary in¢rease (3.34) (7.24)

i} One percentage point increase In employee turnover rate (1.66) (0.87)

{ii) One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate 1.72 0.87
2, Senstivity Anslysls Method

The sensltivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions oceurring at the end
of the reparting period, while holding all ather assumptions canstant.

The sensltivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligaticn as it is unlikely
that the change In assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Fusthermore, In presenting the above sensltivity analysis, the present value of the projected beneflt abligation has been calculated using

the projected unit credit methad at the end of the reporting period, which Is the same method as applied in calculating the projected
benefit obllgation as recognised In the halance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Vi The major catagories of plan assets as a percentage of total

Insurer managed funds L NIL
Vi) Actuarlal assumptions
1. Discount rate 5.15% B.57%
2. Salary escalation 9.00% 6.00%
Indlan Assured Lives Indian Assured Livas
Meortality 2012-14 Martallty (2006-08)
3. Mortality rate durtng employment {Urhan) Ultimate
4, Mortality post retirement rate
5. Rate of employee tucnover 30.00% 10.00%

Nates:
() #he actuartal valuation of present value ot the detined benetit obligation were carried out at 31st Mardh, 2022, (he present vaiue ot

the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, ware measured using the Projacted Unit Credit
Methad,

{1} Discount rate Is based on the prevailing market ylelds of Indtan government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated
term of the obligations.

{iil} The salary escalation rate Is arrived after taking into consideration the seniorlty, the pramotion and other relevant factars, such as,
demand and supply In employment market.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Interest rate risk:

A fallIn the discaunt rate which is linked to the government securities rate will Increase the present value of the liabllity requiring higher
provision,

Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liabillty Is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members, As such, an increase in
the salary of the membars more than assumed tevel witl increase the plan's Habliity.

Asset liablivy matching risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basts from own funds.

Mortallty rigk: _
Since the benefits under the plan Is not payable for life time and payable till retirament age anly, plan does not have any longevity risk.

{il}. Compensated absences
The employees of the company are entltled to compensated absences as per the policy of the company.

As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Defined benefit sbilgation as at end of the year 95,85 54.18




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LINITED
Notes ta consalidated financial staterents for the year ended 315t March, 2022

. {Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)
Note 43

Related party disclosure
A) List of related parties

0] Ferson having Control
Mr. 5andeep Runwal

(i) Close family bars of person having control
Mr, Subhash 5. Runwal {Father]
Mrs. Chanda § Runwal {Mother)
s, Privanka Runwal {Spouse]
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal {Brother)

{iil} Assoctate
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Lirited
Runwal Finance {Dissolved w.e.f. 31.03.2021)

{iv} Iolnt venture
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail Venturas Private Limited

{v) Subsidlary of joint venture
Galleria Retail Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited
Aethon Developers Private Limited

(i) Others {entities controlled by person mentioned {I) & (i) having contral or Joint contraf)
Anand Developers
Arlane Orgachem Private Umited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
M/s.Subkash Runwal HUF
Ruswal & Assoclatas
Runwal Farms Private Umited
Runwal Foundation
Ruprl Consultancy LLP
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Sandeep Construction
Value constructions SRA*
Runwal and Kunal Venture**
Runwal Wonder Venture**
Runwal Finance#

{vil}  Key management personnel (KMP):
R I Developers Private Limited
Pallavi Matkar!, Director
Rawi Sharma, Director {Appointed on Wef 22-02-2022)
Sujata Rao, Ditector {Appointed on Wef 24-02-2022)
Sanjay Daga, Director [Resigned on 15-03-2022)
Kishorkurmar Jain, Director {Resigned on 27-10-2021}
Mahesh Iyer, Director (Resigned on 16-05-2022)

Chruva Woollen Mifis Private Limited

M3. Sangeeta Prasad, Director (appointed w.e.f. 14-02-2022)
Mr. Visweswara Hagsan Anantharamaiah, Director

Mr. Prashant Mewada, Director (appointed w.e.f, 14-02-2022)
Mr. Sanjay Daga, Director [resigned w.ef. 14-02-2022)

{niii)  Relative of KMP
Mrs. Babita Daga (Spouse of Mr. Sanjay Daga)

# Runwal Finance has been dissofved on 31st March, 2021
* Retired from partnership firm from 30th September, 2021
** Retired from partnership firm fram 315t March, 2021




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Alf omouints In Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}
B) The fotlowing transactions were carried qut with the refated partles in the srdinary course of business:

5r.

No.  Mature of transaction / refationship For the year ended Far the year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
1 Sale/purchase of material

Sale
Harizon Projects Private Limited 65,78 38.54
R retail Ventures Private Limited - 10.44
Histyle Retail Private Limited. 0.36 2.02
Purchase
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 1.25 -
Horizon Projects Private Limited 7.54 357
R Mall Developers Pvt Ltd 0.61 -
Rupri Consultancy Pvt Ltd 59.00 -
1 Saleofflas
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal 2,086.67 -
3 lncome from sub-leRting
R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 18.57
tncome from praject management servicas
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd 466.11
Rent Paid
Mr.Subhash 3.Runwal 35.40 84.96
4 Reimbursement of expenses
R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 0.50
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 16,79 .
% Advance received agalnst material supphy
Histyle Retail Private Limited 225,72 112.86
Repayment of advance
Histyle Retail Private Limited 225,72 169.29
R Retail ventures Private Limited - 497.99
& Sale of electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited 172.25 240.63
7 Business facillty services
R Mall Developers Private Limited 35.58 35.12
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 203.15 169.29
8  Maintenance service glven
Ariana Orgachem Private Limited 19.55 13.88
9  Maintenance service & property tax received
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal 3,59 254
10 Divldend accrued -
Anand Developers 0.01 0.01
Mrs. Chanda 5 Runwat - Q.01
M/s.Subhash Rusywal HUF - 0.01
Mrs, Privanka Runwal 011 011
Runwal Associates 0.0 0.01
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 3.21 L33
Mr. Subbash 5. Runwal - 178
Mr. Subadh Subhash Auriwal 134 133
11 lwestinent in partnership firm/AQP
Runwal Kunal Venture - 17.96
Runwal Wonder Venture - {1,063.71)
Runwal Finance 2,291.48 {972.01)
Value Constructions SRA, - 34.31

12 Share of profit f{loss) from AOPffirm
Runwal Finance - 0.12
Value Constructions SRA - .01




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

13

14

15

16

17

18

20

21

22

Security deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Repaid
Horizen Projects Private Uimited

Security deposit taken

Received
R Retall Ventures Private Limited

Repaid
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

EMD Received
Received
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Repaid
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Intercorporate deposits received
Taken
Ariane Orgacham Private Limited
Runwal Farms Privata Limited

Repaid
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Intercorporate deposits given
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Retall Ventures Frivate Limited
Histyle Retall Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Repald

Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Retai Ventures Private Limited
Histyle fetail Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Loan repaid
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mrs. Chanda 5 Runwal
Artane Orgachem Pvi. Ltd. (Retired Partner’s) Loan Afc
Runwal Farms Pvt. Ltd. {Retired Partner's} Loan Afc
Mr Subhash Runwal

Purthase of equity share of R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Mrs. Privanka Runwal
Wr. Sandesp Runwal

Investment in equity shares
R Retail ventures Private Uimited

frvestment in debentures
R Mall Develapers Private Limited

Interest on dabentures
R Malk Devetopers Private Limited

t repaid to relative of director
Mrs. Babita Daga

CSR expenditure
Runwal Foundation

Safary pakd

Mr. Sanjay Daga

Mr, Mahesh lyer
Mr. Ravi Sharma
Mrs Privanka Runwat
Ms. Sujata Rao

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, umless atherwise stoted)
24,183.93 -

15,542.00 3,165.00

497,95 -

497.99 -

282.15 -

282,15 -

200.00 8,403.00
508.00 -

200.00 13,768.1

- 8,140.00
677.16 56.43
517.46 -
376.00 .

9,165.93 7,605.08
677.16 315.16
517.46 -
331.00 -

1,852.21 360.00

134.52 684.35
2,779.00 -
41,50 -
1,182.33 -

120 -
1.50 -

169 .
502.50 .

27.37 -

297.00 257.35

168.07 61.96
158.63 7.17




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financtial staterments for the year anded 31st March, 2022

24

Q)

Brokerage charges paid
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Professional fees pald
Rupri Consultancy Private Limlted

Refund of capital t 1 in subsidiary
Value Constructions 584

Paid to partnership firm as retired partners balance
Runwal Finance

Guarantae taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal*
(* Refer note 23}

Sharing of Infrastructure
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
Hartzon Profects Private Limited
Ariane Qrgachem Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Rupri Consubtancy LLP
Runwal Foundation
{Transaction of non monetary nature)

Amount due to f from related parties

inter corporate deposit
Given
Haorizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Lirnited

Taken
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Inter corporate guarantee
Given
R Mall Developers Private Limited {Refer Note 23]

Loans & advances
Pavable
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mrs. Chanda 5 Runwal
Ariane Orgachern Put. Ltd. [Retired Partner's} Loan Afc
Runwal Farms Pvt. Lid. {Retired Partner's) Loan Afc

Security deposit
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Receivablef{payable) as retired partner
Runwal Finance
Rurwal Wonder Venture

Investment of capital In partnership firm {fived and current capital}
Value Constructions SR

Investment Tn equity shares
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Investment in preference shares
R Retatl ventures Private Limited

Investiment In debentures
R Mall Develapers Private Limited
Horizon Projects Pyt 1td

{Alf amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwlse stated)

74.91

100.30

3,372.43

296,74

Asat
st March, 2022

— e e

45,00

508.00

21,055.00

.77

4,976.31
7,018.58

10,297.93

661.45%

1,131.29
232.66
1.69

11,460.93

24.63
7,000.00

As at
31st March,

21

9,165.93

11,055.00

1,892.21
134.52

(896.44)
661.45

332273

1,131.29
232,66

11,460.53




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

) Trade receivables
Horfzon Projects Private Limited
R Malt Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

11  Trade payable
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Pyt Led

12 Brokerage charges payable
Aupri Consultancy Private Limited

13  Professional fees payable
Rupri Consultancy Privata Limited

Other Advances
Mr. Subhash Runwal
Runwal Finance

Sakary Payable
Mirs. Privanka Runwal
Mr. Mahesh lyer
Ms. Sujata Rao

Advance from Customers
Mr Subhash 5. Runwal

14  Dividend payable
Anand Developers
Mrs. Chanda 5 Runwal
M/s.Subhash Runwal HUF
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
M. Sandeep Runwal
Mr., Subhash 5. Runwat
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal

15 Partner's Capital

Mr.Sanjay Daga
Mr. H A Vishweshwara

Comp thon of key manag per | of the C

Nature of transaction / relationship

Short-term employee benefits

Post-employment pension and medical benefits*
Cther long term benefits*

Termination benefits

Share based payments

AN emounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

137.63 76.15
19.29 (52.31)
- 9.97
5.10 4.63
91.89 -
74,91 -
59.00 -
5.00 5.00
- 229148
5.04 4.06
7.94 -
.04 -
91.74 91.74
0.01 0.01
- a.01
- 0.01
0.11 011
0.01 4
3 133
- 178
134 133
0.05 -
0.05 -
For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

440,81 129.13

* Provision for gratuity and leave encashment benefits are determined on actuarial valuation basis. Hence the same is not seperately reported hare

far KMPs.

Total compensation paid to key management personnel -

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions, This assessment is undertaken
each financial year through examining the financial poasition of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding

balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash.




AUNWAL DEVELOPEAS PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes ta c lidated financlal for the year ended 315t March, 2022
A amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess othenwise siated)
Note 44
G L and .2
a. Leases
perating lease i — Company a5 lessee
The Company (DWMPL] has entered into a cancellable operating lease on | premisas with the terms of five year, The lease ag is usually ble by mutual conse nt on mutually agreed
terms. The company does hot have any Jease commitments a3 an 31 March 2022,
Year endad Year ended
Particulars 315t March 2022 315t March 202
Cancellable opersting lepse 30.00 T2.00
b. Cornmmnents
Estfi of ing to be d an capltal and not previded for:
The Group does not have any cont. ining to be ted on capital which it has nat pravided for.
Other Commitments:
a) The Group snters into I t with [ts venders, The final its payable under such contracts will be based ah actual and negotlated rotes, which are daterminable as and
when the work under the sakd contracts Is completed.
b) The Company has entared into Joint develos t ag) with owners of land for its and devalop Undar the agr L5 the C is raquired to give share in built up area
from such davel ks in axct of undivided shara in land as stiputated undar the ag ts to ithe ownars of the land and to MHADA
- Cantingent Kabilitles
Disel as Ired by Indlan Ao ing Standard (Ind AS) 37 Previsions, tncame tax Exclze and sarvice Goads and
q T3 T
Contingent Liabtes and Contingent Asset: _ demand  _ txdemond ST om0 TOM
INR INR INR INR INR
Carrying Amount as at 01st April, 2020 10,408.62 154.60 28.07 26037 10,852.26
Arlsing dyring the year 451.26 - - 1,081.26 1,534.52
Utilised ja16.01) 145.02) - - (462,03}
Unused amounts reversed - - -
Carrying Amount as at 31st March, 2021 10.445.87 109.58 28.07 ‘1,342.23 1192575
Cavrying Amount as at 3 1st Marech, 2021 10,4587 109.58 .07 1,342.23 21,925.75
Agising during tha year 798.86 738.86
Utilised 4,269.27 359,20 4187 198,34 4,068 68
Unused amounts reversed - + {1.21) - {1.21}
Carrying Amount as at 315t March, 2022 597596 466.78 68.73 1,540.57 17,592 .08

Mature of Provision

1) Service tax notice is also issued by Commissloner of Service tax and dernand is raised for short payment of service tax on ranting of immavahle propsrty at Remafl Mulund and also for FY 2011-12 and

2012-13 showing tha pay 1gly under as Input tax cradit avalled instead of showing it 2s Sarvica tax pald and for few of tham an appaal Is also filed in CESTAT.

(i§) The Group's f= 3 party to various legal proceedings In narmal course of business (Induding cases pending befare RERA autheoritles] and does not expect the outeome of these proceedings to have any
adverse affect on Its Ainancial condiv resutts of the operations or cash flow. A af such disp are Inabk

(i) The Group's Is ing the d Is and the g is of the vlew that It has a good case with Hkelihood of Fability / any loss arising out of thass tax being Accordingl

pending settlement of tha tax dizpute, no adjustment has bean mada In the Ind AS financial staternents for the year ended 31st March, 2022, The management believes that the ultlrmate outcomes of these
pracaedings will not hava a material adverza affact on the Group’s financlal position and results of Its aparations or cash flows,

{iv} As per tha lar ts with brak brokerage is payable to thern on the units sold through then only when 10% of sala d af the respactive unit Is recelved. Hence, such
brokerage ir contingent fn nature which amounts to Rs 563.79 lakhs as at 313t March 2022,

[¥) Incame tax d 1 ufs 343(3) Includas disall afexp debited to P& L Afc on account of 8018{10} for assessment year from 2000-03 to 2004-05 for smounting to Rs,120.90 lakhs agsinst
which appeal filed with High Court.

v} Incorna tax d d 1yfs 143(3) includes d d rent additions agalnst J d let aut properties and sundry creditors additlans of Rs.677.96 lakhs for A 2015-16 & 2016-;7agalnst which appeal filed
with CIT(A)}-52.

(v Incorna tax demand ufs 143(3) Includes disallowance against sundry creditors and exempt Income additions of Rs.82.45 lakhs for AY 2018-19 & 2020-21 agalnst which appeal filked with CIT{A)-52.

{viil) G5T 4 t against disalk af Hional cradit under SG5T for FY 2017-18, 5G5T appeal pending with Joint & Appeal, CG3T show cause notie recelved and reply fled,

{Ix} MVAT demand agsinst disaffowanes for FY 2017-18. Appeal filed with Joint Commissioner Appeals

{x} The Firm I5 a patty ta varlous lagal proceadings In normal course of busk {including casas p g befors RERA Iuthnrkl'u} and does not axpect the out of thase p di to have any
ndyerse affect on its financial conditlons, resylts of the operations or cash flow. A ks of such disputes are

{ul) The Firm 15 1ing the d ds and the g Is of the view that it has a good case thh likelihoad of labilty f any loss arlsihg out of these tax matters being ramote. Accardingly, perding
settlement of the tax dispute, no adjustment has been made In the Ind AS Financlal Staternents for the year endad 315t March, 2022, The Managemant bellevas that the yltimate outcome of thase
proceedings will not have a material adversa effact on tha Firm's financial poziion and results of ILs cperations or cazh flows.

{xH) The enilty d imo develop 4 with the owners of land for devalopment of prajact,and given bank g to The Prott v and Sanlor Master, High Court of Rs. Nil.

{ill) The entity has stamp duty payable of Rs 359.85 lakhs. In viaw of the managament, no picvision ks raquired ta ba madc as on 31st March, 2022,




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 45
Segment Reporting

The Group identifies the foHowing activities as independent segments !

i) Real estate business
i} Mall
it} Electricity generation

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Total Rea'l estate Electrn:i_ty
business generation
Revenues from extemal custamers
Current year 82,570.34 79,883.70 414,17 2,272.47
Previous year 85,960.84 84,575.68 345.80 1,039.36
Intersegment revenue
Current year - - - -
Pravious year - - - -
Total Revenue
Current year 82,570.34 79,883.70 414.17 2,272.47
Previous year 85,960.84 84,575.68 345.80 1,039.36
Segment results before exceptional items, interest, tax
and depreciation:
Current year 19,701.68 18,109.66 207,19 1,384.83
Previous year 13,063.31 12,556.23 77.39 429.69
Reconciliation to profit/{loss) for the year:
Add: Finance income
Current year 714.11 611.63 - 102.48
Previous year 105.55 81.38 - 24,17
Less: Finance costs
Current year 2,344.55 1,294.83 232.16 817.56
Previous year 1,395.09 443.22 269.10 682.77
|ess: Depreclation and amortisation
Current year 979.37 -127.04 211.39 895.02
Previous year 551.75 247.82 211.39 92.54
Add: Share of profit/f{ioss) of joint ventures and associates
Current year {712.24) - - -
Previous year 1,542.99 - - -
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Current year 16,379.63 16,841.26 {236.36) (225.27)
Previous year 12,765.01 13,489.56 {403.10) {321.45)




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Total Real estate Electricl'ty Mall
business eneration

Add: Exceptional items

Current year - - - -
|Previous year - - - -
Profit before tax

Current year 16,379.63 16,841.26 {236.36) {225.27)
Previous year 12,765.01 13,489.56 {403.10) {321.45)
Less: Tax expense

Current year 23,351.23

Previous year 3,219.96
INet profit/(loss) for the year

Current year {6,971.60)

Previous year 9,545.05

Segment assets

Current year 3,40,584.48 2,67,5956.94 4,126.28 £8,501.26
Previous year 2,33,865.33 2,08,558.98 4,334.67 20,971.68
Total assets

Current year 3,40,584.48 2,67,956.94 4,126.28 68,501.26
|Previous year 2,33,865.33 2,08,558.98 4,334.67 20,971.68
Segment assets include:

Equity accounted Investments

Current year 30,803.55

Pravious year 34,830.17

Segment liabilities

Current year 2,00,572.79 1,83,181.36 2,123.85 15,267.88
Previous year 1,35,580.29 1,19,451.72 2,485.21 13,643.46
Total liabllities

Current year 2,00,572.79 1,83,181.36 2,123.55 15,267.88
Previous year 1,35,580.39 1,19,451.72 2,485.21 13,643.46




Note 45
IND A5 115 - Revanuee from Contracts with Customers
(a) The amaunt of INR §9,287.38 lakhs (Previous Year: INR 79,964.27 lakhs } recognised in contract liakilitizs has been recognised as revenue.

(b) Skgnificant changes In contract asset and contract Labilities balances are as follows:

Particulars Asat 53t
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Contract Habllity
At the beginning ol the reporting perlod - advances from custemers £93,171.11 39,515.14
Amounts recelved during the year 78,616.36 1,00,113.24
A lzad ax during ths year 69,287.36 78,964.27
At the end of 1he reporting perlod 78,500.11 60.664.11
Contract llabllities rep ta callactad from ¢ based on I mi P toag d with such for to fon #nd sale of residential units. The
tarms of 2z t: d with require the to make pay it of Ideration as fiked in the ag! oh achl it of I milasty though such mllestones may not

nacessarily coinelde with the point In time at which the Company transfars control of such units to the customer, The Company I liable for any structural or ather dafacts in the reside ntlal units as per the
terms of the ag d with cust and the applicabis laws and regulati

The Graup expects to satlsfy tha sald parformance obligations when (or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such performance obligations relate are plated. Such real astate profacts are in
various stages of devalopment as at 31 March 2022,

(c) Disapgragated ravenve informatlon

St out below is the disaggragation of the Company from ts with by timing of transfer of goods or services,
As at Asar
Particulars 3151 March, 2072 31stMarch, 2005

Timing of transfer of gonds or service
Revenua from goods or i i ] to at a polnt fn time 71,214.13 80,618.57
Revanue frem goads or services transferred over time 5.505.49 .

|d) Assats recognised from the costs to obialn or fulldil 2 eontract with a customer

As at As at
Partfculars 325t March, 3020 31st March, 3021
Invantory
Far poods or services transferrad to custamars at a point n time 69,525.22 70,751.99
Far goods or sarviees transferred over tima 5,505.43 -
Brokerage costs p g to sale of rasid | wnits 497.13 108.64
{e) The lon prica of the perfarmance obigations as at I1st Merch 2022 INR 1,60,914 78 lakhs, 31st March 2022 (s MR 1,38,572.43 lakhs, The same is expeciad to be recognised within 11a5

yaars
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RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All amounts in Rs. Lakks, unfess otherwise stated)
Mote 52

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group™s Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disdosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabliities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcormes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or lizbilities affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
histarical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the dircumstances existing when the financial statements
were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in
the vear in which the estimates are revised and in any future vear affected.

Note 53

Consequent to COVID-19, the Government of India declared lockdown on March 23, 2020 resulting in the Group suspending its operations in
ongoing projects during the lackdown period. From fune, 2020 onwards, the Group has resumed construction activity on all its ongoing projects.
The Group has performed comprehensive assessment of the possible impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic on their operations, liquidity
position and consequential impact on the realizability of its asset bafance including carrying value of inventories as at 31st March 2022, The Group
does not expect any material impact of COVID-19 on it’s operations, iquidity position or on realisability of it’s assets,

Note 54

During the year the Group had investments in capital account of a partnership firm “Value Construction SRA”. Profit sharing ratio of the Company
int as a Partner was of 51%. Though it has this significant profit sharing ratio, by virtue of contractual arrangements between the partners of this
partnership firm, the Group does not exercise control or any significant influence on this partnership firm. Hence, this investment in partnership
firm is categorised as athers and not as a Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate. As on 31st March, 2022 the Group is not 3 partner in this firm,

Note 55

Construction work in progress includes

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Approval fees 25,847.53 3,667.49
Employee benefits 5,81944 2,015.01
Finance cast 5,360.48 3,266.31
Land 40,224.05 22,773.08
Materials & labour 37,186.07 6,302.83
Others 22.409.77 4,279.04

1,36,357.39 42,303.76

Note 56
Details of corporate social responsibility {CSR) expenditures

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gross amount raquired to be spent for CSR activity 310.63 257.35
Amount spent during the year * 31200 257.35

* The amount spent during the year has been incurred for the purposes other than construction/ acauisition of any assets. {Also refer note
42 (221




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

{All omounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)
Note 57

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises;

Particulars Asat As at

315t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Amount unpaid as at year end - principal 493,64 549.16
Amount unpaid as at year end - interest il Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, of the Micra
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 {the 'Act"Jalong with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year. NI} Nil
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year) but without adding the interest specified under Act. il Nil
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year. il Nil

The amount of further interast remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, untll such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Act. il it

Disclosure of outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise under trade payables is based on the information available with the Group
regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further,
outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises are on acoount of deficiency in service/ products/ documents. Hence, interest has not been
provided on these overdug amounts. This fact has also been disclosed in the MSME form | {return) filed on half yearly basis by the Group
with ROC. This has been relied upon by the auditor.

Note 58 : Business combination:

{A} Summary of acquisition
The parent entity along with its Subsidiary acquired 95,72% stake in Runwal Constructions [RC) —a partnership firm from its erstwhile partners,

resulting RC becoming a subsidiary w.e.f. 3st Gctober 2021, The acquisition would bring synergies to the Group as RC is in the same line of
business as the Parent Company.

As per Ind AS 103 “Business Combination” the fair valuation has been determined by an independent registered valuer as per details given below:

1. Purchase consideration {inclusive of contribution of subsidiary Company)
Totat capital to be contributed {Fixed and Current} i.e. total consideration — R5.55,440.68 lakhs

2. For the purpose of preparation of the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements, RC has been considered as a subsidtary with effect
from close of business on 1st October, 2021,

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition as on 1st October, 2021 are as follows:

Particulars Fair value
Property, plant and equipment 48,047.72
CWIP 1,612.96
Non current investment 1,540.70
Total non - current assets 51,201.38
Current assets
inventorias 30,757.74
Financlal assats
Trade receivables 540.59
Cash & cash equivalents 340.44
Loans 3,785.31
Total current assets 50,424.08
Total assets 1,01,625.46
Financial Habilities
{i] Borrowings 12,820.75
Total nen - current liabilities 12,830.75




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All smounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Current Hiabilities

Cther current liabilities 23,779.84

Total current liabilities 23,779.84

Contingent Habllities 128.54

Total habilities 36,733.13

Met assets 64,886.33

Calculation of Capital Reserve Amount

Total Consideration {inclusive of contribution of subsidia

. ¢ v 8,292.35
ompany)

Add: NC| based on Fair Value of net assets 2,774.67

Less: Net assets acquired (as above) 64,886.33

Capital Reserve arising on acquisition 53,819.31

{B] Accounting policy choice of non-controlling interest:

Tihe group recognises non-controlling interest in an acquired entity at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

{C} Revenue and profit f (loss) contribution:

Revenue from operations of Rs. 1,163.79 Lakhs and Loss after Tax of (17,304.87) Lakhs has bean included in the Current Year's Consolidated
Statement of Profit & Loss.

{D) Purchase Consideration — Cash Qutflow:

Particulars Amount
Outflow of cash to acquire the stake (including amount payable

before 31" March, 2022)

Cash Consideration 14,815.59
Lass: Balance acquired 340.44
Net Outflow of Cash = Investing Activitias 14,475.15

(E) There are no acquisition related costs to acquire the stake in thls partnership firm.

{F} The revenue and profit before tax of the combined entity for the current reporting period would have increased by Rs. 398,23 lakhs and Rs.
244.65 l2khs approximately, if the acquisition date for the business combination occurred during the year in Runwal Constructions had been as of
the beginning of the annual reporting pertod {i.e. 1st April, 2021).

Note 59
Other information

i

The Group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any
benami property.

The Group has availed various borrowing from banks and financiat institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly retums
or staternents of current assets filed by the Group with the banks and financial institution are in agreement with books of account.

The Group registered alf the charges and satisfaction of charges with registrar of companies within statutory period.

The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Group has not traded or Invested in crypto currency or virtual cusrency during the year.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity(ies), including fareign entities {intermediaries)
aj directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoevar by or on behalf of the

Group {ultimate beneficlaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statemenits for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{All omounts in Rs. Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)}
7 The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall;

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identtfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate bensficiaries.

8 The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of aceount that has baen surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any ather relevant provisions of the
Inceme Tax Act, 1961).

9 The Group has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or other
lander, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulter issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Note 60 -

During the year, the Company has increased its stake in “Dhruva Woller Mills Pvt. Ltd. (DWMPL)", by virtue of which it has established control on
DWMPL and hence it has become subsidiary of the Company. This establishment of control falls under the principle of common control as
sperified in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 - “Businass Combination”. Hence, the consofidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2021 has been restated in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 103, from April 1, 2021,

Note 61
There are no new standards that are notified upto the date of issuance of the Group's financial statements.

There are no other significant events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statemants as at the Balance Sheet date

Previous period figures have been re-grouped / re-classified to conform to the requirements of the amended Schedule 1ll to the Compariies Act,
2013 effactive 1st April 2021.

As per our report of even date attachecd For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. e, e For Rupwal Developers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No 302049€

Amit Hundia P Navi Matkar}

Sujataifan
Partner Director Diractor
Membership No. 120761 - BIN: 03473837 DIN : 08054518
Date - 30th September, 2022 Date - 30th September, 2022

Place - Mumbai Place - Mumbai



